
 

 

CITY OF LOCKPORT 
CORPORATION PROCEEDINGS 

 
Lockport Municipal Building 

 
Regular Meeting 
Official Record 

 December 13, 2023 
 6:30 P.M. 
 

Mayor Michelle M. Roman called the meeting to order. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

The following Common Council members answered the roll call: 
Aldermen Beakman, Devine, Fogle, Swanson-Gellerson, Kantor, and Lupo. 

 
 

INVOCATION- Moment of Silence 
  

MAYOR’S UPDATE 
 

RECESS 
Recess for public input. 
 
121323.1          APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
On motion of Alderman Beakman, seconded by Alderman Fogle, the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of November 15th, 2023 are hereby approved as printed in the Journal of 
Proceedings.  Ayes 6.  Carried. 
 

FROM THE MAYOR 
 
Appointments: 
 
11/17/2023 Flora Hawkins, 199 West Avenue, Lockport, NY has been re-appointed to the 
Police Board. Said term expires December 31, 2027. 
 
11/17/2023 Laurie George, 38 Hi Point Drive, Lockport, NY has been appointed to the Youth 
Board. Said term expires December 31, 2026. 
 
11/17/2023 Roxanne Devine, 114 Maple Street, Lockport, NY has resigned from the Zoning 
Board of Appeals effective 11/30/2023. Said term expires November 15th, 2025. 
 
11/27/2023 Victoria Pearson, 496 Davison Road, Lockport, NY, has been appointed to the 
Human Relations Committee. Said term expires July 15, 2024. 
 
11/27/2023 Henry John Leible, 4321 Purdy Road, Lockport, NY has been appointed to Public 
Works Supervisor for the City of Lockport Public Works Department effective 11/24/2023. Said 
appointment is provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules 
and Regulations. 



 

 

 
11/28/2023 Daniel A. Mullane, 93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY, has been appointed to the 
City of Lockport Planning Board. Said term expires October 14, 2026. 
 
11/28/2023 Ashley Pietrzykowski, 323 East Avenue, Lockport, NY, has been appointed to the 
City of Lockport Planning Board. Said term expires October 14, 2026. 
 
11/28/2023 Anita Mulllane, 93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY, has resigned from the Police 
Board effective November 27, 2023. Said term was set to expire December, 31 2026. 
 
11/28/2023 Christina Quagliano has been appointed to the City of Lockport Police Board to 
fill the unexpired term of Anita Mullane effective November 28, 2023. Said term expires 
December 31, 2026. 
 
11/28/2023 Kevin J. McDonough, 70 Lakeview Parkway, Lockport, NY, has been appointed 
to the City of Lockport Zoning Board if Appeals to fill the unexpired term of Roxanne Devine 
effective November 30, 2023. Said term expires on November 15, 2025. 
 
11/28/2023 Andrew Rosenberg, 268 Genesee Street, Lockport, NY has been reappointed to 
the Zoning Board of Appeals effective November 16, 2023. Said term expires November 15, 
2026. 
 
11/29/2023 Sheila M. Tracy, 19 Grosvenor Street, Lockport, NY has been re-appointed to the 
Zoning Board of Appeals effective November 16, 2023. Said term expires November 15, 2026. 
 
11/29/2023 Debra Allport’s term on the Planning Board has been corrected to expire on 
October 14, 2024. 
 
12/6/2023 Robert E. Bates, 147 Outwater Drive, Lockport, NY has been reappointed as Fire 
Commissioner on the Fire Board effective January 1, 2024. Said term expires December 31, 
2027. 
 
12/11/2023 Mayor Michelle M. Roman- letter of notification for the appointments to the 
Commissioner of Deeds:  For the term of two years expiring on December 31, 2025. 
 

1. Paul M. Beakman, Jr., 104 Caledonia Street, Lockport, NY 14094 
2. Benjamin Briskey, 120 Grant Street, Lockport, NY 14094 
3. Marco Notaro, 5251 Bridgeman Road, Sanborn, NY 14132 
4. Daryl Bodewes, 2462 Woodthrush Court, Niagara Falls, NY 14304 
5. Colin Ligamarri, 4210 Washington Street, Niagara Falls, NY 14305 
6. John Jacoby 4621 Lower River Road, Lewiston, NY 14092 
7. Paul Drabinski, 1495 Abington Place, North Tonawanda, NY 14120 
8. Maggie Lupo, 17 Boblink Lane, Lockport, NY 14094 
9. Doug Mooradian, 6964 Lakeside Drive, Niagara Falls, NY 14304 
10. Anita Mullane, 93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY 14094 
11. Douglas C. Nicholson, 22 Roosevelt Drive, Lockport, NY 14094 
12. Jeanann Page, 532 Irving Drive, Lewiston, NY 14092 
13. David Keegan, 3772 McKoon Avenue, Niagara Falls, NY 14305 
14. Michelle M. Roman, 30 Cherry Street, Lockport, NY 14094 
15. William C. Rutland, 5798 Locust Street, Lockport, NY 14094 
16. Carla L. Speranza, 6438 Lincoln Avenue, Lockport, NY 14094 



 

 

17. Sarah Waechter, 4791 Oakridge Lane, Lewiston, NY 14092 
18. Tom Reynolds, 739 E. Robinson Street, North Tonawanda, NY 14120 
19. Steve Allore, 154 Locust Street, Apt 2, Lockport, NY 14094 
20. Adam Dickey, 324 Ward Road, North Tonawanda, NY 14120 

 
 

FROM THE CITY CLERK 
 
The Clerk submitted payrolls, bills for services and expenses, and reported that the 
Department Heads submitted reports of labor performed in their departments. 
Reviewed by the Finance Committee. 
 
12/1/2024 Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk – notification that the Lockport Municipal Offices will 
be closed on Monday and Tuesday, December 25th and 26th for the Winter Holidays. 
 
 
Communications (which have been referred to the appropriate City officials) 
11/17/2023 Roxanne Devine, 114 Maple Street, Lockport submitted her resignation from the 
Zoning Board of Appeals, effective November 30th 2023.  
 
11/22/2023 Lockport Cares, 188 and 192 Genesee Street, Lockport, letter requesting 
permission to hold annual “Coldest Night of the Year” event on February 24, 2024. 
 
 
Notice of Complaint: 
11/16/2023 Brian Frazer from 97 Continental Drive, Lockport – Driveway damage 
 
Referred to the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution. 
 
Notice of Claim: 
 
11/13/2023 Daniel Warmus vs. City of Lockport, Lockport Police Department, Lockport 
Lieutenant Steven Tarnowski, Lockport Police Officer John Does, City of Lockport employee 
Carol Edwards, City of Lockport employee Sarah Lanzo, City of Lockport employee Jennifer 
Wochna and City of Lockport employee Emily Stoddard. 
 
11/30/2023 Brianna R. Brundidge vs. City of Lockport 
 
11/30/2023 Casey I. Dahlstrom vs. City of Lockport 
 
Referred to the Corporation Counsel. 
 
 
MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS 
  
121323.2  WITHDRAWN 
 
121323.3 
By Alderman Lupo: 
 



 

 

Whereas, the City of Lockport has appropriated $75,000 in A.1900.54055 in the FY 
2024 appropriation for a public works audit; and  

Whereas, the City has published a request for proposals and has obtained three bids, 
from Matrix Consulting Group, Baker Tilly, and Raftelis; and  

Whereas, a committee has reviewed said bids and has recommended to proceed with 
the most diligent and responsible bidder: Matrix Consulting Group for an estimated total of 
$75,000 (including additional on-site days); and  

Now, therefore be it resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby 
approves of the Mayor to enter into a contract, with Matrix Consulting Group, contingent on 
corporation counsel approval.  
 
           Seconded by Alderman Swanson-Gellerson and adopted. Ayes 6. 
 
 
121323.4 
By Alderman Beakman:  
    

Whereas, the Fire Chief of the City of Lockport is a position that is not represented by a 
collective bargaining unit; and 
           Whereas, the City of Lockport and the Fire Chief desire to enter into an amended 
written Employment Agreement thereby describing the salary, benefits and terms of 
employment for the Fire Chief; now, therefore, be it 
           Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute the 
attached Employment Agreement with Fire Chief Luca Quagliano. 
 
        
 Seconded by Alderman Lupo and adopted. Ayes 6. 
 
 
121323.5 
By Alderman Devine:  
 

Whereas, the Police Chief of the City of Lockport is a position that is not represented by 
a collective bargaining unit; and 
           Whereas, the City of Lockport and the Police Chief desire to enter into an amended 
written Employment Agreement thereby describing the salary, benefits and terms of 
employment for the Police Chief; now, therefore, be it 
           Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute the 
attached Employment Agreement with Police Chief Steven Abbott.  
 

Seconded by Alderman Swanson-Gellerson and adopted. Ayes 6. 
 
 
121323.6 
By Alderman Swanson Gellerson: 
 

Whereas, the City of Lockport’s Water Filtration Chief Operator has requested plant 
improvements to the turbidity system and heating system; and  

Whereas, the department has compiled a quote for turbidity improvements from Hach 
for a total of $59,714.87 under NY State Contract #PC67243; and  



 

 

Whereas, the department has compiled a quote for heating system improvements from 
Grainger for a total of $8,791.16 under NY State Contract #PC69879; and  

Resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby approves of the City to 
enter into agreement with Hach and Grainger, utilizing funds in the H204 capital project (FX 
Infrastructure Improvements) and that the FY 2023 Water Fund Budget is amended as follows:  

 
Expenditures  
 
Decrease 
FX.1900.54775  Contingency  $21,822 
 
Increase 
FX.9901.59000.H Interfund to Capital $21,822 

 
 

Seconded by Alderman Devine and adopted. Ayes 6. 
 
 

121323.7 
By Alderman Kantor: 

 
Whereas, the City of Lockport has appropriated $113,423 in A.5110.52030 in the FY 

2024 appropriation for a trimmer attachment; and  
Whereas, the Director of Streets, Parks, and Distribution has collected a bid from 

Stephenson Equipment, Inc. for a total of $113,423 under NYS OGS bid PC69840 with a lead 
time of 35 to 37 weeks; and  

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby 
approves the City to enter into a purchasing agreement with Stephenson Equipment, Inc. 
 
 

Seconded by Alderman Lupo and adopted. Ayes 6. 
 
 

121323.8 
By Alderman Beakman: 
 

Whereas, the New York State Community Development Block Grant Program provides 
funding to communities under the Economic Development Program to undertake activities that 
focus on economic development needs such as creating or expanding job opportunities, and 

Whereas, Big Ditch Brewing Company LLC (hereinafter the “Company”) is proposing to 
construct leasehold improvements and acquire furnishings, fixtures and equipment in 
connection with the establishment of a restaurant/taproom, event space, and small-batch 
brewery in the former Post Office Building at 1 East Avenue in the City (the “Project”); and 

Whereas, the Project will have an estimated cost of $1,875,000 and will create an 
estimated 52 new full-time equivalent employment opportunities within the City of Lockport; 
and  

Whereas, the City of Lockport (the “City”) has submitted an application to the New York 
State Office of Community Renewal (“OCR”) for $750,000 in grant funding to assist the 
Project; and  

Whereas, the City desires to partner with The Greater Lockport Development 
Corporation (“GLDC”) which would act as a subgrantee for the grant funding, which would be 



 

 

used by GLDC to make a term loan and deferred loan to the Company to fund a portion of the 
Project costs. 

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the Mayor is hereby designated as the 
Environmental Certifying Officer for the purposes of complying with the applicable federal 
environmental review requirements for the OCR grant, and be it further 

Resolved, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the OCR grant agreement 
and all related documents associated with the OCR grant, including agreements with GLDC 
relating to the use and administration of the grant funds, subject to review and approval by the 
City Attorney. 
 
 

Seconded by Alderman Swanson Gellerson and adopted. Ayes 6. 
 
 
121323.9 
By Alderman Beakman:  
 

Resolved, that the Corporation Counsel is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a 
Local Law relative to amending Section C-45 of the City Charter regarding Residency Law, 
and be it further 
 Resolved, that a public hearing be held at the Common Council meeting of 
Wednesday, December 20, 2023 starting at 6:30 P.M. in the Common Council Chambers, 
Lockport Municipal Building, One Locks Plaza, Lockport, NY relative to said Local Law, and be 
it further 
 Resolved, that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to advertise notice of 
said public hearing. 
 
 

Seconded by Alderman Kantor and adopted.  Ayes 6. 
 

 
121323.10 – WITHDRAWN 
 
 
121323.11  
By Alderman Lupo: 
  

Whereas, the Locks Historic District Commission (LHDC) successfully applied for a 
grant from the State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Recreation to fund the design and 
construction of wayfinding signs throughout the city; and 

Whereas, the wayfinding signs have now been installed at numerous locations along 
the city rights of way to assist visitors to locate various landmarks and attractions and the 
LHDC wishes to convey by gift all the signs so constructed and installed; now be it 

Resolved, that the Common Council, on behalf of the City of Lockport, accepts the 
wayfinding signs and assumes all future responsibility to maintain the signs in the future. 
 
 

Seconded by Alderman Swanson-Gellerson and adopted. Ayes 6. 
 
121323.12 
By Alderman Swanson-Gellerson: 



 

 

 
Whereas, the pursuant to the City of Lockport Charter, Section C-32, the Mayor shall 

annually appoint 20 Commissioners of Deeds who shall hold their offices for two years; and 
Whereas, the New York State Executive Law § 139, enacted after the City of Lockport 

Charter, has a requirement that is inconsistent with the City Charter, that the Commissioner of 
Deeds are approved by the Common Council; and 

Whereas, the New York State Attorney General an opinion regarding the conflicting 
language between Executive Law § 139 and a City Charter in 1966 NY Ops Atty Gen April 18 
stating that “An irreconcilable conflict between the above statutes relating to the appointment 
and terms of office of commissioners of deeds must be resolved in favor of the special city 
charter; however, all other non-conflicting provisions of § 139 remain in full force and effect”; 
and 

Whereas, the Mayor continues to have the unilateral ability to appoint the 
Commissioner of Deeds pursuant to the City Charter; and 

Whereas, the Mayor has appointed twenty (20) Commissioner of Deeds attached 
hereto, pursuant to the Charter, for 2024-2025; and 

Now therefore be it resolved, that the Common Council agrees that the Mayor has 
said powers of appointment pursuant to the Charter and it ratifies said appointments insofar as 
they have any ability to approve of the same. 

 
Seconded by Alderman Beakman and adopted.  Ayes 6. 

 
 
By Alderman Fogle:  

Resolved, that the reading of the foregoing resolution be and the same is hereby 
waived.   

Seconded by Alderman Devine.  Ayes 6.  
 
121323.12A 
By Alderman              ___________       :  
 
           Whereas, there was a residential structure fire at 96 Locust Street, Lockport, NY that 
occurred on October 19, 2023; and 
           Whereas, pursuant to Chapter 72-6 of the Lockport City Charter, Determination of unsafe 
buildings; Notice to repair or demolish, the City of Lockport shall consider the report of the 
Building Inspector and, if in their opinion the report so warrants, shall determine that the building 
is unsafe and order its demolition or repair, if the same can be safely repaired, and further order 
that a notice shall be given to the owner; and 
           Whereas, the fire damage to the structure was deemed a total loss of the property by the 
Lockport Fire Department, and the Building Inspector has rendered an opinion in his report dated 
October 23, 2023, that the building is unsafe and should be demolished; and 

Whereas, that the City directs that the Building Inspector provide personal notice to the 
owner of the property located at 96 Locust Street regarding the demolition, pursuant to the Notice 
requirements of Chapters 72-6(b) and 72-7, including but not limited to notice of the demolition, 
right to a hearing and date of time of same, and a statement that if the owner refuses to follow 
the order to demolish the building, the City of Lockport is authorized to provide for its demolition, 
to assess all expenses thereof against the land on which it is located, and to institute a special 
proceeding to collect the costs of demolition, including legal expenses; and 

Whereas, that in the event of neglect or refusal of the persons so notified to comply with 
said order of the City of Lockport, the City of Lockport shall provide for the demolition and 



 

 

removal of such building either by City employees or by contract. Except in an emergency, any 
contract in excess of $20,000 shall be awarded by competitive bidding pursuant to section 72-9 
of the City Charter. 

Whereas, the City issued a Notice to Bid for interested contractors for the Demolish 96 
Locust Street project and subsequently received and publicly opened and read bids at the 
Municipal Building on October 27, 2023 at 2:00 pm as follows; 
 

CONTRACTOR NANE Bid Item No. 1 Bid Item No. 2 Total Bid 

Durable Demolition, LLC $1,000.00 $33,935.00 $34,935.00 

 
and 
           Whereas, the Chief Building Inspector has determined that Durable Demolition, LLC has 
submitted the lowest complete and responsible bid and recommends that the City award the 
contract to Durable Demolition, LLC, for a total amount of $34,935.00; now, therefore, be it 
           Resolved, that the Mayor is authorized to execute an Agreement with Durable 
Demolition, LLC, PO Box 71, Lockport, New York 14094, in the amount of $34,935.00, 
contingent upon legal review and availability of funding for the City project. 
 
           Seconded by Alderman Beakman and adopted. Ayes 6. 
 
 
121323.13 ADJOURNMENT 
 

At 6:49 P.M. Alderman Beakman moved the Common Council be adjourned until 6:30 
P.M., Wednesday, December 20th, 2023. 
  

Seconded by Alderman Kantor and adopted.  Ayes 6. 
 

SARAH K. LANZO 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 



6:00 P.M.

6:30 P.M.

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

COMMUNICATIONS

MOTTONS &
RESOLUTIONS

CITY OF LOCKPORT
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING
December 13th, 2023

6:30 P.M.

Committee of the Whole Meeting

Common Council Meeting

Beakman:
121323.1

Approve Common Council minutes of
November 15th,2023

Authorize Use of Funds from the Parks
Revitalization Fund

Authorize Contract for the Public Works AuditLupo:
121323.3

Beakman: Amend Fire Chief Contract
121323.4

Devine:
121323.5

xxxx:
121323.6

xxxx:
121323.7

xxxx:
121323.8

xxxx:
121323.2

Beakman:
121323.9

Amend Police Chief Contract

Authorize Purchases from H204
lnfrastructure Fund

Authorize Public Works Purchase

Big Ditch Brewing Company - Community
Development Block Grant

Call for Public Hearing re: residency waiver

xxxx:
121323.10

Lupo:
121323.11

Withdrawn

Wayfinding gift from LHDC

Swanson-Gellerson:
121323.12

Commissioner of Deeds



ADJOURNMENT Beakman: Adjourn meeting to December 20th,2023
121323.13



CITY OF LOCKPORT
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA ADDENDUM

MOTIONS &
RESOLUTIONS XXXX:

121323.12A

December 13th,2023

Award Contract for the Demolition of g6 Locust
st.



CITY OF LOCKPORT
CORPORATION PROCEEDINGS

Lockport Municipal Building

Regular Meeting
Official Record

MAYOR'S UPDATE

RECESS
Recess for public input.

121323.1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

On motion of Alderman Beakman, seconded byAlderman _ fuU

Mayor Michelle M. Roman called the meeting to order

ROLL CALL

The following Common Council members answered the roll call:
Aldermen Beakman, Devine, Fogle, Swanson-Gellerson, Kantor, and Lupo

rNVocAfloN --nhMe/+ .P qiflrE

December 13,2023
6:30 P.M.

the
minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 1Sth, 2023 are heredy approved as printed in the
Journal of Proceedings. Ayes b . Carried.

FROM THE MAYOR

Appointments:

1111712023 Flora Hawkins, 199 West Avenue, Lockport, NY has been re-appointed to the
Police Board. Said term expires December 31,2027.

1111712023 Laurie George, 38 Hi Point Drive, Lockport, NY has been appointed to the Youth
Board. Said term expires December 31,2026.

1111712023 Roxanne Devine, 114 Maple Street, Lockport, NY has resigned from the Zoning
Board of Appeals effective 1113012023. Said term expires November 15th, 2025.

1112712023 Victoria Pearson, 496 Davison Road, Lockport, NY, has been appointed to the
Human Relations Committee. Said term expires July 15,2024.

1112712023 Henry John Leible, 4321 Purdy Road, Lockport, NY has been appointed to public
Works Supervisor for the City of Lockport Public Works Department effective 11t24t2023. Said
appointment is provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules
and Regulations.



1112812023 DanielA. Mullane, 93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY, has been appointed to the
City of Lockport Planning Board. Said term expires October 14,2A26.

1112812023 Ashley Pietrzykowski, 323 East Avenue, Lockport, NY, has been appointed to the
City of Lockport Planning Board. Said term expires October 14,2026.

1112812023 Anita Mulllane, 93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY, has resigned from the Police
Board effective November 27,2023. Said term was set to expire December, 31 2026.

1112812023 Christina Quagliano has been appointed to the City of Lockport Police Board to
fill the unexpired term of Anita Mullane effective November 28, 2023. Said term expires
December 31,2026.

1112812023 Kevin J. McDonough, 70 Lakeview Parkway, Lockport, NY, has been appointed
to the City of Lockport Zoning Board if Appeals to fill the unexpired term of Roxanne ijevine
effective November 30,2023. Said term expires on November 15,2025.

1112812023 Andrew Rosenberg ,268 Genesee Street, Lockport, NY has been reappointed to
the Zoning Board of Appeals effective November 16,2023. Said term expires November 15,
2026.

1112912023 Sheila M. Tracy, 19 Grosvenor Street, Lockport, NY has been re-appointed to the
Zoning Board of Appeals effective November 16,2023. Said term expires November 15, 2026.

1112912023 Debra Allport's term on the Planning Board has been corrected to expire on
October 14,2024.

121612023 Robert E. Bates, 147 Outwater Drive, Lockport, NY has been reappointed as Fire
Commissioner on the Fire Board effective January 1,2024. Said term expires December 31,
2027.

1211112023 Mayor Michelle M. Roman- letter of notification for the appointments to the
Commissioner of Deeds: For the term of two years expiring on December 31 ,2025.

1. Paul M. Beakman, Jr., 104 Caledonia Street, Lockport, NY 14094
2. Benjamin Briskey, 120 Grant Street, Lockport, NY 14094
3. Marco Notaro, 5251 Bridgeman Road, Sanborn, NY 14132
4. Daryl Bodewes, 2462 Woodthrush Court, Niagara Falls, NY 14304
5. Colin Ligamarri, 4210 Washington Street, Niagara Falls, NY 14305
6. John Jacoby 4621 Lower River Road, Lewiston, NY 14092
7. Paul Drabinski, 1495 Abington Place, North Tonawanda, NY 14120
L Maggie Lupo, 17 Boblink Lane, Lockport, NY 14094
9. Doug Mooradian, 6964 Lakeside Drive, Niagara Falls, NY 14304
10.Anita Mullane, 93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY 14094
ll.Douglas C. Nicholson,22 Roosevelt Drive, Lockport, NY 14094
12.Jeanann Page, 532 lrving Drive, Lewiston, NY 14092
13. David Keegan, 3772 McKoon Avenue, Niagara Falls, NY 14305
14. Michelle M. Roman, 30 Cherry Street, Lockport, NY 14094
l5.William C. Rutland, 5798 Locust Street, Lockport, NY 14094
16. Carla L. Speranza, 6438 Lincoln Avenue, Lockport, NY 14094



17.Sarah Waechter,4T9l Oakridge Lane, Lewiston, NY 14092
18.Tom Reynolds,739 E. Robinson Street, North Tonawanda, NY 14120
19. Steve Allore, 154 Locust Street, Apt 2, Lockport, NY 14094
20.Adam Dickey, 324\Nard Road, North Tonawanda, NY 14120

FROM THE CITY CLERK

The Clerk submitted payrolls, bills for services and expenses, and reported that the
Department Heads submitted reports of labor performed in their departments.
Reviewed by the Finance Committee.

121112024 Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk - notification that the Lockport Municipal Offices will
be closed on Monday and Tuesday, December 25th and 26th for the Winter Holidays.

Communications (which have been referred to the appropriate City officials)
1111712023 Roxanne Devine, 114 Maple Street, Lockport submitted her resignation from the
Zoning Board of Appeals, effective November 30th 2023.

1112212023 Lockport Cares, 188 and 192 Genesee Street, Lockport, letter requesting
permission to hold annual "Coldest Night of the Yea/' event on February 24,2024.

Notice of Gomplaint
1111612023 Brian Frazer from 97 Continental Drive, Lockport - Driveway damage

Referred to the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution.

Notice of Glaim:

1111312023 DanielWarmus vs. City of Lockport, Lockport Police Department, Lockport
Lieutenant Steven Tarnowski, Lockport Police Officer John Does, City of Lockport employee
Carol Edwards, City of Lockport employee Sarah Lanzo, City of Lockport employee Jennifer
Wochna and City of Lockport employee Emily Stoddard.

1113012023 Brianna R. Brundidge vs. City of Lockport

1113012023 Gasey l. Dahlstrom vs. City of Lockport

Referred to the Corporation Counsel

MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS

121323.2 -- Wlfl+>AhNlnl
By Alderman

721.8 (FY 2021 Budget Supplement #1) established a Park
the Capital Budget with $275,000 in funding; and

Whe reas, Resohttio n-910
Revitalization Program 1D6q in



Whereas, the City wishes
therefore, be it

Resolved, that the City of

purchase ten bins for the parks; now,

Council hereby approves of the Mayor to
enter into a purchasing agreement with Machining and Fabrication for $12,073.50 and
utilize funds in the H206 capital

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

4(sl"tfid
12132s.3 $Yvlub
By Alderman Lupo: kA4(

atgv_ntry
Whereas, the City of Lockport has appropriated $75,000 in A.1900.54055 in th'e FY

2024 appropriation for a public works audit; and
Whereas, the City has published a request for proposals and has obtained three bids,

from Matrix Consulting Group, Baker Tilly, and Raftelis; and
Whereas, a committee has reviewed said bids and has recommended to proceed with

the most diligent and responsible bidder: Matrix Consulting Group for an estimated total of
$75,000 (including additional on-site days); and

Now, therefore be it resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby
approves of the Mayor to enter into a contract, with Matrix Consulting Group, contingent on
corporation cou nsel approval.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes b

12132s.4 Lm ^

By Alderman Beakman: ?VA'|W?
't{cffiilc(

Whereas, the Fire Chief of the City of Lockport is a position that is not represented by a
collective bargaining unit; and

Whereas, the City of Lockport and the Fire Chief desire to enter into an amended
written Employment Agreement thereby describing the salary, benefits and terms of
employment for the Fire Chief; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute the
attached Employment Agreement with Fire Chief Luca QuaOlianq)

Seconded by Alderman tr,t0o and adopted. Ayes b

tJ0
wv{w

4kne^t?r
Whereas, the Police Chief of the City of Lockport is a position that is not represented by

a collective bargaining unit; and
Whereas, the City of Lockport and the Police Chief desire to enter into an amended

written Employment Agreement thereby describing the salary, benefits and terms of
employment for the Police Chief; now, therefore, be it

121323.5
By Alderman Devine



Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute the
attached Employment Agreement with porice chief steven Abbog

Seconded by Alderm ^n @U- and adopted. Ayes t?

12132s.6 . $l ilt fiktiltw
ByAlderman: SN0rBon-Gllercm- 1rtI\AW -

Whereas, the Cily of Lockport's Water Filtration Chief Operator has reque "r"#Wimprovements to the turbidity system and heating system; and
Whereas, the department has compiled a quote for turbidity improvements from Hach

for a total of $59,714.87 under Ny state contract *pcazz+g; and
Whereas, the department has compiled a quote for heating system improvements from

Grainger for a total of $8,791.16 under Ny State Contract #pC6967d; and
Resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby approves of the City to

gnJer into agreement with Hach and Grainger,_utilizing funds in the-H2d4 capital pro;ect 1fXlnfrastructure lmprovements) and that the FY 2023 Water Fund Budget is amended as follows:

Expenditures

Decrease
FX.1900.54775 Contingency $21,822

lncrease
FX.9901.59000.H lnterfund to Capitat $21,822

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

Whereas, the City of Lockport has appropriated $t 19,423 in A.S110.52030 in the Fy
2024 

Tiil:H':J,"il l%?jlii l"?" k #tr"i#*n ^Stephenson Equipment, lnc. for a total of $119,423 under NyS OGS bid pC6gg40 with a lead
time of 35 to 37 weeks; and

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby
approves the City to enter into a purchasing agreement with Stephenson Equipment, lnc.

121323.7
By Alderman:

121323.8
By Alderman

ftk(
IWIII/
6{tahco

Seconded by Alderman o and adopted. Ayes b



Whereas, the New York State Community Development Block Grant Program provides
funding to communities under the Economic Development Program to undertake activities that
focus on economic development needs such as creating or expanding job opportunities, and

Whereas, Big Ditch Brewing Company LLC (hereinafter the "Company") is proposing to
construct leasehold improvements and acquire furnishings, fixtures and equipment in
connection with the establishment of a restauranUtaproom, event space, and small-batch
brewery in the former Post Office Building at 1 East Avenue in the City (the "Project"); and

Whereas, the Project will have an estimated cost of $1,875,000 and will create an
estimated 52 new full-time equivalent employment opportunities within the City of Lockport;
and

Whereas, the City of Lockport (the "City") has submitted an application to the New York
State Office of Community Renewal ("OCR") for $750,000 in grant fundin! to assist the
Project; and

Whereas, the City desires to partner with The Greater Lockport Development
Corporation ("GLDC") which would act as a subgrantee for the grant funding, which would be
used by GLDC to make a term loan and deferred loan to the Company to fund a portion of the
Project costs.

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the Mayor is hereby designated as the
Environmental Certifying Officer for the purposes of complying with the applicable federal
environmental review requirements for the OCR gra4t, and be it further

Resolved, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the OCR grant agreement
and all related documents associated with the OCR grant, including agreements with GLDC
relating to the use and administration of the grant funds, subject to review and approval by the
City Aftorney.

Seconded by Atderman 9mrnilf- dt*Un- and adopted. Ayes U

121323.9
By Alderman Beakman:

M. tEd-
cloff-

Resolved, that the Corporation Counsel is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a
Local Law relative to amending Section C45 of the City Charter regarding Residency Law,
and be it further

Resolved, that a public hearing be held at the Common Council meeting of
Wednesday, December 20, 2023 starting at 6:30 P.M. in the Common Council Chambers,
Lockport Municipal Building, One Locks Plaza, Lockport, NY relative to said Local Law, and be
it further

Resolved, that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to advertise notice of
said public hearing.

Seconded by Alderman

121323.10 - WTTHDRAWN

121323.11
By Alderman Lupo:

XnrtNt- and adopted. Ayes b



Whereas, the Locks Historic District Commission (LHDC) successfully applied for a
grant from the State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Recreation to fund the design and
construction of wayfinding signs throughout the city; and

Whereas, the wayfinding signs have now been installed at numerous locations atong
the city rights of way to assist visitors to locate various landmarks and attractions and the
LHDC wishes to convey by gift allthe signs so constructed and installed; now be it

Resolved, that the Common Council, on behalf of the City of Lockport, accepts the
wayfinding signs and assumes allfuture responsibility to maintain the signs in the future.

Seconded byAlderman.9(ltfut-&lW,- and adopted. Ayes b
121323.12 A ,, ilhtldBy Alderman Swanson-Gellerson: dl,WM/L

Whereas, the pursuant to the City of Lockport Charter, Section C-g2,the Maffiall
annually appoint 20 Commissioners of Deeds who shall hold their offices for two years; and

Whereas, the New York State Executive Law $ 139, enacted after the City of Lockport
Charter, has a requirement that is inconsistent with the City Charter, that the Commissioner of
Deeds are approved by the Common Council; and

Whereas, the New York State Attorney General an opinion regarding the conflicting
language between Executive Law $ 139 and a City Charter in 1966 NY Ops Atty Gen April 1A
stating that'An irreconcilable confllct between the above statutes relating to the appointment
and terms of office of cornmissioners of deeds rnust be resolved in favor of the special city
charter; however, all other non-conflicting provisions of g 139 remain in full force and effect";
and

Whereasn the Mayor continues to havq the unilateral ability to appoint the
Commissioner of Deeds pursuant to the City Charter; and

Whereas, the Mayor has appointed twenty (20) Commissioner of Deeds attached
hereto, pursuant to the Charter, for 2024-2025; and

Now therefore be it resolved, that the Common Council agrees that the Mayor has
said powers of appointment pursuant to the Charter and it ratifies said appointments insofar as
they have any ability to approve of the same.

Seconded byAlderm"" bAyyrnLn-- and adopted. Ayes U .

doAlc -Fogll

121323.12A

.,trd Dourna - ftt\ m6df" bry6.
hl)

By Ald

Whereas, there was a residential structure fire at 96 Locust Street,
occurred on October 19,2023; and

Lockpo NY that

Whereas, pursuant to ChapterT2-6 of the Lockport City Charter, Determination of unsafe
buildings; Notice to repair or demolish, the City of Lockport shatl consider the report of the
Building lnspector and, if in their opinion the report so warrants, shall determine that the building
is unsafe and order its demolition or repair, if the same can be safely repaired, and further ordei
that a notice shall be given to the owner; and



Whereas, the fire damage to the structure was deemed a total loss of the property by the
Lockport Fire Department, and the Building Inspector has rendered an opinion in his report dated
October 23,2023, that the building is unsafe and should be demolished; and

Whereasn that the City directs that the Building lnspector provide personal notice to the
owner of the property located at gO Locust Street regarding the demolition, pursuant to the Notice
requirements of Chapters 72-6(b) and 72-7, including but not limited to notice of the demolition,
right to a hearing and date of time of same, and a statement that if the owner refuses to follow
the order to demolish the building, the City of Lockport is authorized to provide for its demolition,
to assess all expenses thereof against the land on which it is located, and to institute a special
proceeding to collect the costs of demolition, including legal expenses; and

Whereas, that in the event of neglect or refusal of the persons so notified to comply with
said order of the City of Lockport, the City of Lockport shall provide for the demolition and
removal of such building either by City employees or by contract. Except in an emergency, any
contract in excess of $20,000 shall be awarded by competitive bidding pursuant to sectionT2-g
of the City Charter.

Whereas, the City issued a Notice to Bid for interested contractors for the Demolish gO

Locust Street project and subsequently received and publicly opened and read bids at the
Municipal Building on October27,2O23 at2:00 pm asfollows;

and
Whercas, the Chief Building lnspector has determined that Durable Demolition, LLC has

submltted the lowest complete and responsible bid and recommends that the City award the
contract to Durable Demolition, LLC, for a total amount of $34,935.00; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the Mayor is authorized to execute an Agreement with Durable
Demolition, LLC, PO Box 71, Lockport, New York 14094, in the amount of $34,g35.00,
contingent upon legal review and availability of funding for the City project.

Seconded by Alderm an fuIlM\A,tv and adopted. Ayes L

121323.13 ADJOURNMENT

At bffi P.M. Alderman Beakman moved the Common Council be adjourned until
6:30 P.M., Wednesday, December 20th, 2023.

Seconded by Alderman taltr{- and adopted. Ayes b

SARAH K. LANZO
City Clerk

Durable Demolition, LLC $1,000.00 $33,935.00 $34,935.00



Mayor Michelle M. Roman called the meeting to order.

ROLL CALL

The following Common Council members answered the roll call:
Aldermen Beakman, Devine, Fogle, Swanson-Gellerson, Kantor, and Lupo.

INVOCATION

MAYOR'S UPDATE

RECESS

CITY OF LOCKPORT
CORPORATION PROCEEDINGS

Lockport Municipal Building

Regular Meeting
Official Record

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

December 13,2023
6:30 P.M.

Recess for public input.

121323.1

On motion of Alderman Beakman, seconded by Alderman _, the
minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 1Sth, 2023 are hereby approved as printed in the
Journalof Proceedings. Ayes Carried.

FROM THE MAYOR

Appointments:

1111712023 Flora Hawkins, 199 West Avenue, Lockport, NY has been appointed to the Police
Board. Said term expires December 31,2027.

1111712023 Laurie George, 38 Hi Point Drive, Lockport, NY has been appointed to the Youth
Board. Said term expires December 31,202O.

1111712023 Roxanne Devine, 114 Maple Street, Lockport, NY has resigned from the Zoning
Board of Appeals effective 1113012023. Said term expires November 15th, 2025.

1112712023 Victoria Pearson, 496 Davison Road, Lockport, NY, has been appointed to the
Human Relations Committee. Said term expires July 15,2024.

1112712023 Henry John Leible,4321 Purdy Road, Lockport, NY has been appointed to Public
Works Supervisor for the City of Lockport Public Works Department effective 11124t2023. Said
appointment is provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules
and Regulations.



1112812023 DanielA. Mullane, 93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY, has been appointed to the
City of Lockport Planning Board. Said term expires October 14,2026.

1112812023 Ashley Pietrzykowski, 323 East Avenue, Lockport, NY, has been appointed to the
City of Lockport Planning Board. Said term expires October 14,2026.

1112812023 Anita Mulllane, 93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY, has resigned from the Police
Board effective November 27, 2023. Said term was set to expire December, 31 2026.

1112812023 Christina Quagliano has been appointed to the City of Lockport Police Board to
fill the unexpired term of Anita Mullane effective November 28,2023. Said term expires
December 31,2026.

1112812023 Kevin J. McDonough, T0 Lakeview Parkway, Lockport, NY, has been appointed
to the City of Lockport Zoning Board if Appeals to fill the unexpired term of Roxanne Devine
effective November 30,2023. Said term expires on November 15, 2025.

1112812023 Andrew Rosenberg, 268 Genesee Street, Lockport, NY has been reappointed to
the Zoning Board of Appeals effective November 16,2023. Said term expires November 15,
2026.

1112912023 Sheila M. Tracy, 19 Grosvenor Street, Lockport, NY has been appointed to the
Zoning Board of Appeals effective November 16,2023. Said term expires November 15,2026

1112912023 Debra Allport's term on the Planning Board has been corrected to expire on
October 14,2024.

121612023 Robert E. Bates, 147 Outvvater Drive, Lockport, NY has been reappointed as Fire
Commissioner on the Fire Board effective January 1, 2024. Said term expires December 31 ,

2027.

1211112023 Mayor Michelle M, Roman- letter of notification for the appointments to the
Commissioner of Deeds: For the term of two years expiring on December 31 ,2025.

1. Paul M. Beakman, Jr., 104 Caledonia Street, Lockport, NY 14094
2. Benjamin Briskey, 120 Grant Street, Lockport, NY 14094
3. Marco Notaro,5251 Bridgeman Road, Sanborn, NY 14132
4. Daryl Bodewes, 2462 Woodthrush Court, Niagara Falls, NY 14304
5. Colin Ligamarri,4210 Washington Street, Niagara Falls, NY 14305
6. John Jacoby 4621Lower River Road, Lewiston, NY 14092
7. Paul Drabinski, 1495Abington Place, North Tonawanda, NY 14120
8. Maggie Lupo, 17 Boblink Lane, Lockport, NY 14094
9. Doug Mooradian, 6964 Lakeside Drive, Niagara Falls, NY 14304
10.Anita Mullane, 93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY 14094
11. Douglas C. Nicholson,22 Roosevelt Drive, Lockport, NY 14094
l2.Jeanann Page, 532 lrving Drive, Lewiston, NY 14092
13. David Keegan, 3772 McKoon Avenue, Niagara Falls, NY 14305
14. Michelle M. Roman, 30 Cherry Street, Lockport, NY 14094
l5.William C. Rutland, 5798 Locust Street, Lockport, NY 14094
16.Carla L. Speranza, 6438 Lincoln Avenue, Lockport, NY 14094



17. Sarah Waechter, 4791 Oakridge Lane, Lewiston, NY 14092
18.Tom Reynolds, 739 E. Robinson Street, North Tonawanda, NY 14120
1 9. Steve Allore, 1 54 Locust Street, Apt 2, Lockport, NY 14094
20.Adam Dickey, 324Ward Road, North Tonawanda, NY 14i20

FROM THE CITY CLERK

The Clerk submitted payrolls, bills for services and expenses, and reported that the
Department Heads submitted reports of labor performed in their departments.
Reviewed by the Finance Committee.

121112024 Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk - notification that the Lockport Municipal Offices will
be closed on Monday and Tuesday, December 25th and 26th for the Winter Holidays.

Gommunications (which have been referred to the appropriate City officials)
1111712023 Roxanne Devine, 114 Maple Street, Lockport submitted her resignation from the
Zoning Board of Appeals, effective November 30th 2023.

1112212023 Lockport Cares, 188 and 192 Genesee Street, Lockport, letter requesting
permission to hold annual "Coldest Night of the Year" event on February 24,2024.

Notice of Complaint:
1111612023 Brian Frazer from g7 Continental Drive, Lockport - Driveway damage

Referred to the Director of Highways, Parks and water Distribution.

Notice of Glaim:

1111312023 DanielWarmus vs. City of Lockport, Lockport Police Department, Lockport
Lieutenant Steven Tarnowski, Lockport Police Officer John Does, City of Lockport employee
Carol Edwards, City of Lockport employee Sarah Lanzo, City of Lockport employee Jennifer
Wochna and City of Lockport employee Emily Stoddard.

1113012023 Brianna R. Brundidge vs. City of Lockport

1113012023 Casey l. Dahlstrom vs. City of Lockport

Referred to the Corporation Counsel.

MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS

121323.2
By Alderman

Whereas, Resolution 040721.8 (FY 2021 Budget Supplement #1) established a Park
Revitalization Program (H206) in the Capital Budget with $275,000 in funding; and



Whereas, the City wishes to purchase ten metal trash bins for the parks; now,
therefore, be it

Resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby approves of the Mayor to
enter into a purchasing agreement with lntegrity Machining and Fabrication for $12,073.50 and
utilize funds in the H206 capital project.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

121323.3
By Alderman Lupo

Whereas, the City of Lockport has appropriated $75,000 in A.1900.54055 in the FY
2024 appropriation for a public works audit; and

Whereas, the City has published a request for proposals and has obtained three bids,
from Matrix Consulting Group, Baker Tilly, and Raftelis; and

Whereas, a committee has reviewed said bids and has recommended to proceed with
the most diligent and responsible bidder: Matrix Consulting Group for an estimated total of
$75,000 (including additional on-site days); and

Now, therefore be it resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby
approves of the Mayor to enter into a contract, with Matrix Consulting Group, contingent on
corporation counsel approval.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

121323.4
By Alderman Beakman

Whereas, the Fire Chief of the City of Lockport is a position that is not represented by a
collective bargaining unit; and

Whereas, the City of Lockport and the Fire Chief desire to enter into an amended
written Employment Agreement thereby describing the salary, benefits and terms of
employment for the Fire Chief; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute the
attached Employment Agreement with Fire Chief Luca Quagliano;

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

121323.5
By Alderman Devine:

Whereas, the Police Chief of the City of Lockport is a position that is not represented by
a collective bargaining unit; and

Whereas, the City of Lockport and the Police Chief desire to enter into an amended
written Employment Agreement thereby describing the salary, benefits and terms of
employment for the Police Chief; now, therefore, be it



Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute the
attached Employment Agreement with Police Chief Steven Abbott;

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

121323.6
By Alderman

Whereas, the City of Lockport's Water Filtration Chief Operator has requested plant
improvements to the turbidity system and heating system; and

Whereas, the department has compiled a quote for turbidity improvements from Hach
for a total of $59,714.87 under NY State Contract #PC67243; and

Whereas, the department has compiled a quote for heating system improvements from
Grainger for a total of $8,791.16 under NY State Contract #PC6g87g; and

Resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby approves of the City to
enter into agreement with Hach and Grainger, utilizing funds in the H2O4 capital project (FX
lnfrastructure lmprovements) and that the FY 2023 Water Fund Budget is amended as follows:

Expenditures

Decrease
FX.1900.54775 Contingency $21,822

lncrease
FX.9901.59000.H lnterfund to Capital $21,822

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

121323.7
By Alderman

Whereas, tlte City of Lockport has approprlated $113,423 in A.5110.52030 in the FY
2024 appropriation for a trimmer attachment; and

Whereas, the Director of Streets, Parks, and Distribution has collected a bid from
Stephenson Equipment, lnc. for a total of $1 1 3,423 under NYS OGS bid PC6g840 with a lead
time of 35 to 37 weeks; and

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby
approves the City to enter into a purchasing agreement with Stephenson Equipment, lnc.

Seconded by Alderman

121323.8
By Alderman

and adopted. Ayes



Whereas, the New York State Community Development Block Grant Program provides
funding to communities under the Economic Development Program to undertake activities that
focus on economic development needs such as creating or expanding job opportunities, and

Whereas, Big Ditch Brewing Company LLC (hereinafter the "Company") is proposing to
construct leasehold improvements and acquire furnishings, fixtures and equipment in
connection with the establishment of a restauranUtaproom, event space, and small-batch
brewery in the former Post Office Building at 1 East Avenue in the City (the "Project"); and

Whereas, the Project will have an estimated cost of $1,875,000 and will create an
estimated 52 new fulllime equivalent employment opportunities within the City of Lockport;
and

Whereas, the City of Lockport (the "City") has submitted an application to the New York
State Office of Community Renewal ("OCR") for $750,000 in grant funding to assist the
Project; and

Whereas, the City desires to partner with The Greater Lockport Development
Corporation ("GLDC") which would act as a subgrantee for the grant funding, which would be
used by GLDC to make a term loan and deferred loan to the Company to fund a portion of the
Project costs.

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the Mayor is hereby designated as the
Environmental Certifying Officer for the purposes of complying with the applicable federal
environmental review requirements for the ocR grant, and be it further

Resolved, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the OCR grant agreement
and all related documents associated with the OCR grant, including agreements with GLDC
relating to the use and administration of the grant funds, subject to review and approval by the
City Attorney.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

121323.9
By Alderman Beakman

Resolved, that the Corporation Counsel is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a
Local Law relative to amending Section C-45 of the City Charter regarding Residency Law,
attd be it lulthel

Resolved, that a public hearing be held at the Common Council meeting of
Wednesday, December 20,2023 starting at 6:30 P.M. in the Common Council Chambers,
Lockport Municipal Building, One Locks Plaza, Lockport, NY relative to said Local Law, and be
it further

Resolved, that the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to advertise notice of
said public hearing.

Seconded by Alderman

121323.10 - WITHDRAWN

121323.11
By Alderman Lupo:

and adopted. Ayes



Whereas, the Locks Historic District Commission (LHDC) successfully applied for a
grant from the State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Recreation to fund the design and
construction of wayfinding signs throughout the city; and

Whereas, the wayfinding signs have now been installed at numerous locations along
the city rights of way to assist visitors to locate various landmarks and attractions and the
LHDC wishes to convey by gift allthe signs so constructed and installed; now be it

Resolved, that the Common Council, on behalf of the City of Lockport, accepts the
wayfinding signs and assumes allfuture responsibility to maintain the signs in the future.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

121323.12
By Alderman Swanson-Gellerson

Whereas, the pursuant to the City of Lockport Charter, Section C-32, the Mayor shall
annually appoint 20 Commissioners of Deeds who shall hold their offices for two years; and

Whereas, the New York State Executive Law $ 139, enacted after the City of Lockport
Charter, has a requirement that is inconsistent with the City Charter, that the Commissioner of
Deeds are approved by the Common Council; and

Whereas, the New York State Attorney General an opinion regarding the conflicting
language between Executive Law $ 139 and a City Charter in 1966 NY Ops Atty Gen nprit te
stating that "An irreconcilable conflict between the above statutes relating to the appointment
and terms of office of commissioners of deeds must be resolved in favor of the special city
charter; however, all other non-conflicting provisions of S 139 remain in full force and effett";
and

Whereas, the Mayor continues to have the unilateral ability to appoint the
Commissioner of Deeds pursuant to the City Charter; and

Whereas, the Mayor has appointed twenty (20) Commissioner of Deeds attached
hereto, pursuant to the Charter, for 2024-2025; and

Now therefore be it resolved, that the Common Council agrees that the Mayor has
said powers of appointment pursuant to the Charter and it ratifies said appointments insofar as
they have any ability to approve of the same.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

121323.'l2A
By Alderman-

Whereas, there was a residential structure fire at g6 Locust Street, Lockport, Ny that
occurred on October 19,2023; and

Whereas, pursuant to Chapter 72-6 of the Lockport City Charter, Determination of unsafe
buildings; Notice to repair or demolish, the City of Lockport shall consider the report of the
Building lnspector and, if in their opinion the report so warrants, shall determine that the building
is unsafe and order its demolition or repair, if the same can be safely repaired, and further order
that a notice shall be given to the owner; and



Whereas, the fire damage to the structure was deemed a total loss of the property by the
Lockport Fire Department, and the Building lnspector has rendered an opinion in his report O-ateO
october 23,2023, that the building is unsafe and should be demolished; and

Whereas, that the City directs that the Building lnspector provide personal notice to the
owner of the property located at g6 Locust Street regarding the demolition, pursuant to the Notice
requirements of Chapters 72-6(b) and 72-7 , including but not limited to notice of the demolition,
right to a hearing and date of time of same, and a statement that if the owner refuses to follow
the order to demolish the building, the City of Lockport is authorized to provide for its demolition,
to assess all expenses thereof against the land on which it is located, and to institute a special
proceeding to collect the costs of demolition, including legal expenses; and

Whereas, that in the event of neglect or refusal of the persons so notified to comply with
said order of the City of Lockport, the City of Lockport shall provide for the demolition and
removal of such building either by City employees or by contract. Except in an emergency, any
contract in excess of $20,000 shall be awarded by competitive bidding pursuant to section 72-9
of the City Charter.

Whereas, the City issued a Notice to Bid for interested contractors for the Demolish 96
Locust Street project and subsequently received and publicly opened and read bids at the
Municipal Building on October 27 , 2023 al2.00 pm as follows;

]ONTRACTOR NANE Bid ltem No. 1 Bid ltem No.2
Durable Demolition, LLC $1,000.00 $33,935.00 $34,935.00

and
Whereas, the Chief Building lnspector has determined that Durable Demolition, LLC has

submitted the lowest complete and responsible bid and recommends that the City award the
contract to Durable Demolition, LLC, for a total amount of $34,g35.00; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the Mayor is authorized to execute an Agreement with Durable
Demolition, LLC, PO Box 71, Lockport, New York 14094, in the amount of 934,935.00,
contingent upon legal review and availability of funding for the City project.

Seconded by Alderman _and adopted. Ayes

121323.13 ADJOURNMENT

At 

- 

P.M. Alderman Beakman moved the Common Council be adjourned until
6:30 P.M., Wednesday, December 20th, 2023.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

SARAH K. LANZO
City Clerk



-ryL

LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

AfrEfee af thffi:i,'ff iilil**
Phone (716) 439-6665

Fax (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR MaJrar

November 17,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby reappoint Flora Hawkins, 199 West
Avenue, Lockport, NY 14094 to the Police Board.

Said term expires December 31,2027.

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 17th day of November, 2023.

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: F. Hawkins



LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

QE @f,t&,fri,'ffini1**
Phone (716) 439-6665

Fax (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR -nValgar

November 17,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby appoint Laurie George, 38 Hi Point
Drive, Lockport, New York, 14094 to the Youth Board

Said term expires on December 31,2026

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 17h day of November 2023.

Sincerely,

M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: L. George



LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

@f tftftWi'Sil1i1**
Phone (716) 439-6665

Fax (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR -nWa;rar

November 17,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby accept resignation from Roxanne
Devine 114 Maple Street, Lockport, NY 14094 from the Zoning Board of Appeals effective
November 30,2023.

Said term expires November 15,2025.

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 17th day of November 2023.

Sincerely,

Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: R. Devine
J. Dool



AftEiee aftlzeLOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING
One Locks Plozo

Lockport, New York 14094
Phone (7161 439-6665

Fox (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR "nWaSrar

November 27,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby appoint Victoria Pearson, 496 Davison
Road, Lockport, New York,14094 to the Human Relations Commission.

Said term expires on July 15,2024.

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this2Tthday of November,2)23

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: V. Pearson



LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

Of'fiee of the One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Phone (716) 439-6665
Fax (71 6) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR

M.ayat
November 27,2023

TO: Common Council

Urrder and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby appoint Henry John teible )qz^ purdy
Road, Lockport NY 14094 to Public Works Supervisor forine bity of rockport public Works
Department effective November 24, 2023.

Said appointment is Provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules
and Regulations.

Witness by hand and the Seal of the City of Lockport this2Tth day of November, 2023.

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

cc: II. Leible
C. Dimmick
Civil Service



AfrEfee af, &ne Lo.r.po,t.o^[i,l?:f if';
LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

Phone (716) 439-6665
Fox (71 6) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR

-nVaSrar

November 28,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York,I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby appoint Daniel A. Mullane, 93
Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, New York, 14094 to the Planning Board.

Said term expires on October 14,2026

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 28th day of November, 2023.

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: D. Mullane



AftEiee aftlzeLOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING
One Locks Plozo

Lockport, New York 14094
Phone (716) 439-6665

Fox (71 6) 439-6668

Michelle M. Romon
MAYOR

Ma5rar

November 28,2023

To Common Council

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby appoint Ashtey E. Pietrzykowski, 323
East Avenue, Lockport, New York, 14094 to the Planning Board.

Said term expires on October 14,2026

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 28th day of November,2}23

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: A. Pietrzykowski



AfrEiee afttrze
LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

One Locks Plozo
Lockport, New York 14094

Phone (716) 439-6665
Fox (Zl 6) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR

-nVa;rar
November 28,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby accept resignation from Anita Mullane
93 Lindhurst Drive, Lockport, NY 14094 from the Police Board effective November 27,2023.

Said term expires December 31,2026.

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 28th day of November 2023

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: A. Mullane
S. Abbott

(



Molly Lawson

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

amullane5B@gmail.com
Monday, November 27,2023 6:48 PM

mroman@lockportny gov

IEXTERNALI Police Board Resignation

Novemb er 27,2023

Dear Mayor Roman,
Due to my recent election as Alderwoman of the 2nd Ward, please accept my

resignation from the City of Lockport Police Board, effective immediately.
I would like to thank you for giving me the opportunity to serve our community. I

enjoyed my time as a Commissioner and working with Police Chief Abbott and the rest
of the Board.
Warmest Regards,

Anita Mullane

1



Af,frFee af tl7e Lockporr

LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING
One Locks Plozo
, New York 14094

Phone (716) 439-6665
Fox (71 6) 439-6668

Michelle M. Romon
MAYOR

-nVa;rar
November 28,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby appoint Christina J. Quagliano, 700
Niagara Street Lockport, NY 14094 to the City of Lockport Police Board to fill the unexpired term
of Anita Mullane effective November 28,2023.

Said term expires on December 31, 2026.

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 28th day of November 2023.

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

C. Quagliano
S. Abbott

Cc



QfrEFee aftheLOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING
One Locks Plozo

Lockport, New York 14094
Phone (716) 439-6665

Fox (71 6) 439-6568

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR

-nVa;rar
November 29,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby appoint Kevin J. McDonough, 70
Lakeview Parkway, Lockport, NY 14094 to the City of Lockport Zoning Board of Appeals to fill the
unexpired term of Roxanne Devine effective November 30,2023.

Said term expires on November 15,2025

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 29th day of November 2023.

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

K. McDonough
J. Dool
K. Foltz

Cc



LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

ee @f tlnwi,'sii1i1**
Phone (716) 439-6665

Fax (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR -nWaSrar

November 29,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby reappoint Andrew Rosenberg,268
Genesee Street Lockport, NY 14094 to the ZoningBoard of Appeals effective November 16,2023

Said term expires November 15,2026

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 29th day of November,2}23

Sincerely,

(

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: A. Rosenberg
J. Dool
K. Foltz



LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

Qftfrfee af tfinffi:i,Xfi i$i',oo*
Phone (71 6) 439-6665

Fax (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR Ma5rar

November 29,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby reappoint Sheila M. Tracy, 19
Grosvenor Street Lockport, NY 14094 to the ZoningBoard of Appeals effective November 16,
2023.

Said term expires November 15,2026

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 29th day of November, 2023.

Sincerely,

c

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: S. Tracy
J. Dool
K. Foltz



Offiee of the
LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

One Locks Plaza

Lockport, New York 14094

Phone (716) 439-6665
Fax (716) 439-6668

MICHELLE M. ROMAN
MAYOR

lMayor
November 29,2023

To: Common Council

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby correct Debra Allport's term to the
Planning Board to October 14,2024.

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 29th day of November 2023

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc:p. Allport
J. Dool
J. Tracy



1

LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

QftEiee aftlze One Locks Plozo
Lockport, New York 14094

Phone (716l, 439-6665
Fox (716) 439-6658

Michelle M. Roman
MAYOR

-nVa5rar

December 6,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M. Roman, Mayor of said City, do hereby reappoint Robert E. Bates, 147
Outwater Drive, Lockport, NY 14094 as Fire Commissioner on the Fire Board effective January l,
2024.

Said term expires December 3I,2027.

Witness my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New York this 6th day of December,2}23

Sincerely,

Michelle M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: R. Bates
P. Beakman



Aefffifree o,f 6he
LOcxponr MUNIcIPAL BUILDING
One Locks Plaza

lllichelle M, Romsn
fuAYOR

December ll,2}23

To: The Common Council

Magror

under and by virtue. ojthe authority conferred on me-by the charter o{the city of Lockporr, New
I;hkH;::it$,Hf;;M;6;saia citv, ;;hJ'.bv make the rouowing appoinrments to the

l.Annie Coburn-trkne, 99 Lake Street, Wilson, Ny 14172
2.James P. Majka,.+,Zll Wrsrungron irrrut, Niagaru futio NV 14305
1'lg* saccon 6944 creekvir*briue, Lockport, N" t+on+ 

r rrr'vt'

4'Nicole cafarelra" g26 James nnrn*, Niagara Fallso Ny 14305S'christopher Robins, 53a colege Avenue, Niagara Falls, Ny 143056'Jason J. cafarella' g26 James.iurnuu, Niagara Fa[s, Ny 14305T.Michael E. Benedic! 33 Woodburybriur, Lockport, Ny 14094S.Andrew G. Rosenberg ,ZqZ Oiii* St rur, fortpon, NV 14094 ,,

?fyt- Dunford, ercz-'iu*niJe; i;"0, Lockport, *" ,oorl""' ,

1O.Lisa Swanson Gellerson, rc {oUvirrret, Lockport, Ny 14094I l.Michelle M. Ro31,30 Cherry Snrrt, Lockport, Ny 14094l2.Thomas Lupo, l7 Bobolink i*u, iorf.port, Ny 14094
llJj*m Dean, 43s Tgth Sfieet, Ni.# Fails, Ny 14304
lf.P:ltr Ailport, l6l Lincot; A;.;"ckport, Ny 140e4l5.l\4olly A. Lawson,24 Grosveno,3t ert, Lockport, Ny 14094l6'victoria Pearson-Bre au,496puuiron Road, Lockport, Ny 14094lTStasia Lynn Donohug gb95 g*i"gr-RoaA, Lockport, Ny 14094lS.Alix Hutchison, 6M0 BartzR;;*kport, Ny 14094l9'Doreen M' cafarelrq r44r rott--i*nue, Niagara Falls, Ny 1430320.Amber Hill,ZZ47 pierce.q,"*"r, 

Niagara Falls, Ny 14301
Said term expires on December 31, 2025.

,#*uss 
my hand and the seal of the City of Lockport, New york this 1lth day of DecembEr



Sincerely,

M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc:A.Kane
J. Majka
J. Sacco
N.Cafarella
C. Robins
J. Cafarella
M. Benedict
A. Rosenbutg
S, Dunford
L. Swanson Gellerson
M. Roman
T. Lupo
J. Dean
D. Allporr
M. Lawson
V. Pearson-Breau
S. Donohue
A. Hutchison
D. Cafarella
A. HiII

Sarah K. Lanzo
City Clerk



City of Lockpoft I HEREBY CERTIFY thatthe persons named
in this payroll are employed solely in and have
actually perbrmed the duties of positions and

Pay Day Register
Pay Date Range ttl10l23 - 1L123123

PaY Batch ILl30l23

Total
Employees in Pay

Female Employees in Pay Batctt 53

Hours Description
207A Disability - 207A Disability

BERV - Bereavement

BRIEF - Briefi ng/Debriefi ng

CMPE 1.0 - Comp Eamed @ 1.0
CMPE 1.5 - Gomp Earned @ 1.5

CMPU - Comp Time Used

EDAY - Frtra Day
FHDB - Floating Holiday Buy Out
FHDE - Floating Holiday Earned

FHDU - Floating Holiday Used

FLSA- FLSA

FMLN - FMIA Leave without Pay

FMLS - FMI-A Sick Used

HOL - Holiday
HOUDAYPT - Holiday - Part llrne
HOLW - Holiday Worked
LONG - Longevity Payment

MILI - Milibryrime
OOT - Out of Title
OOT OT 1.5 - Out of TiUe OT at
OT 1.0 - 0vertime at Straight 1.0

OT 1.5 - Overtime @ 1.5

oT 1.5 SHIFT 10% - OT @ 1.5

OT 1.5 SHIFT 15o/o - OT @ 1.5

PRSU - Personal Used

REG - Regular

REG PT - Regular Part Time
REG SHIFT 10olo - Regular Shift
REG SHIFT 15olo - Regular Shift
RETRO - Retroactive Pay

RGS-Regular-Salary
SAL - Salary
SAL PT - Salary Part Time
SCKD - Sick Bank Donated
SCKE - Sick Earned

SCKR - Sick Bank Received

SCKU - Sick Used

STIP - Sbpend
VAC PT - Vacation Part Time

the

Wthholdings and Deductions Gross Base

Gross

Benefits

Employer Taxes

673,75t.38 trCA
704W.6 Medicare

705,307.77
Workers Comp

Wo*ers Compensation - General

Workers Compensation - Sewer

Workers Compensation - Water
Workers Compensation 50o/o

Direct

Forcg
Bancorp Bank
Bank ofAkron
Bank of Amer'tca

BANK OF AMERICA (2)

BANK OF AMERICA (4)

BANK OF AMERICA (6)
Bank on Buffialo

Chase

Chase Bank

Chime

Gtizens Bank
Comerstone Cpmm FC1J

Evans Bank

Financial Trust FCU

Frve Star Bank

Key Bank
KEY BANK (2)
Key Bank (Formerly FNB)

Lewiston Porter FCU

Locleort Sdrool's FC-u

M&T Bank
Navy FCU

Niagara Regional FtU
Niagnn's Choice FCU

Northwest Bank

Ontario Shores FCU

160.0000
16.0000

.0000
282.1250

13.5000
353.7500

176.0000
40.0000
24.0000

s92.0fi)0
.0000

24.0000
80.0000

1,460.0000
14.0000

176.0000
,0000

16.0000
604.0000

33.0000
28.0000

1,492.5000
48.0000

56.0000
172.0000

L0,220.7500
217.0000
144.0000
160.0000

.moo
70.0000

.0000

.0000
16.0000
16.0000

16.0000
s60.5000

.0000
7.0m0

1,790.00
u4.90

140,859.39
.00
.00

11,666.56
6,389.40
1,633.58

.00
18,188.03

328.50
.00

3,792.00
36 886.20

301.16
9,430.63
1,500.00

539.06
24,379.53

L,369.97

649.77

69,455.04
1,921.16

2,240.35
5,093.22

300,980.17
9,674.90
3,773.3L
4,272.59

713.93

.00
3,806.51
1,865.37

.00

.00

341.40
17,185.32

192.31
L57.02

@Fits$4!;.
@e5'.16
Wd99r
dss0ft49;,

9,160.47
10,960.38

233.75
415.06
735.28
583.38
737.00
202.00

55.40
qffiei€e,
4f$dt86t

24.68

309.30
1,781.55

19.28

60.00

560.84
r,970.92

181.62
829.67

86.31
648.45

2,44L.68
1,890.01

2,8/.5.26
9+.82

952.08
98.50

430.13
85.64

187.23
74.85
47.54

685,186.92
109,141.33

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00
L,474.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

.00

9,753.69
62,363.68

6,053.36
23,7U.32

2,466.18

14,410.18
69,763.2L
32,869.53
63,228.34

1,648.92

31,736.80
2,8t4,4L
7,'180.59
1,489.33
4160.68
1,663.45
r,584.92

43,729.06
10,226.99

q0m$0
dffir8fr
€tf,eo*,
.ffi80,

oib \l

Gross Base

Gross Base

705,307.77
705,307.77

Gross Base

429,689.64
45,?57.26
46,fi6.95

7,929.42

Amount

Hours Gross

Imputed Income
Federal
FICA

Medicare
New York State

457 o/o Dedudion
457 F|c,t Dollar Deduction

AFIAC POSTTA(
AFI.AC PRETM
ALLSTATE POSTTM
ALI-STATE PRETA(

Child Support
Child Support - Maine
COLONIAL UFE POSTTA(
FSA PRETA(

Heallfi Ins 298 Class 3 Family

L&M UFE
NEW YORK UFE
RET ERS LOANS

RET ERS POST-TAX SCP

RFT PF LOANS

Retire ERS Tier g <= 9100,000
Retire ERS ngt 6 <=945,000
Retire ERS 

.tisr 
6 <=945,000 OT

Retire ERS Tier 6 <=955,000
Retire ERS Tier $ <=$55,000 OT
Retire ERS Tier g <=975,000
Retire pFRS <= 955,000
Retire PFRS Tiel $ <= $100,000
Retire pFRS Trel 6 a= 975,000
Retire PFRS Tier 6 <=
Retire pFRS Tiey g <=945,000
Retire PFRS Tiel $ <=$55,000
Retire PFRS Tier 6 > $100,000
Retire PFRS Tier 6 >$1d),000
Retire PFRS'Iie1 $< =$75,000OT
Retire Tier g <=$75,000 OT
Retirem pFRS Tier g <=945,fi)0

3\
1,594.89
1,106.r18

5,636J2
9,518.37
3,533.19
L,240.04

1,152.06
4,778.L!
2,255.60

3,018.73
2s0.00

15,994.66
153,248.88

3,191.38
100.00
789.74

46,7t2.87
4,518.62

75,785.72
800.00

415.00

76,356.4L
6,422.87
2,027.33

52,013.22
42,056.4I

5,531.83

Run by Ashley Bre$erton on 1U2812023 9:30:14 AM Page 169 of 170



Deputy City Clerk

From: Kristin Schubring < kschubring@lockportny.gov>
Tuesday, December 12,2023 3:06 PM

deputyclerk@ lockportny.gov
cityclerk@ lockpoft ny.gov
AP Fund Totals 12/6/23 spc run, 12/13/23

To:
Cc:

Sent:

Subject:

HiEmily,

lnvoices to be approved at the meeting on 12/13/23 are as follows:

Fund A General - $SZq,AZO.I t
Fund CL Refuse & Recycling - 525,887.13
Fund CD Community Development - S14,900.00
Fund FX Water - 529,971,.55
Fund G Sewer- Sgt,Sgg.s+
Fund MS Health lnsurance - 534.50
Fund H Capital Projects -$zZ,Atg.gt
Total - 5759,566.34

Kristin Bernardi Schubring
Principal Account Clerk
Finance Department
City of Lockport, NY

71,6.439.662A

1



Roxanne Devine
114 Maple St
Lockport, NY 14094

November 14,2024

Mayor Michelle Roman
1 Lock Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

Dear Mayor Roman,

Please accept this letter as a formal notice of my resignation as a board member of the Zoning
Board Of Appeals, effective November 30,2023.

It has been a pleasure serving on the board. I would like to take this opportunity to thank you
and the entire board for the experience and support provided during my time as a member.

Sincerely,

tr1,ov,o-t4L tQ-r*-l-
Roxanne Devine



Lockport C.A.R.E.S., lncorporated
188 and 192 Genesee Street

PO Box 586, Lockport, NY 14095
Phone: 716438-2273

Shelter: 716-28A4444
info@lockportca res. org

November 22,2023

Lockport City Council
Lockport City Hall
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

Dear Council Members,

Lockport CARES is once again holding a fundraiser event on February 24,2024 calted "Coldest
Night of the Year." This event will consist of either a 2.5km or 5km walk over a designated route
through the City of Lockport between 4:00 pm and 7:00 pm that day.

We are requesting a permit and have provided a map of our proposed route for your review and
approval. The 5krn walk would be the same route, with the walkers covering the distance twice.

We're thankfulfor the support that the City of Lockport gives to our mission to provide shelter to
the city's homeless population. We're grateful for your help in making the "Coldest Night of the
Year" event a success!

With our gratitude,

;k*?' {"*-r.-l
Ruth P. Verratti
Board Director / Event Chair
716-864-9634

Rev. Benjamin Stuckey
Executive Director
716-438-2273

Lockport community Acfion Respon se Emeryency $hetter t www.tockportcares.org B



DATE (tTM'DD'YVYY)

IMPORTANT: It tho cedtlcate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITTONAL INSURED
to the tems and conditions of the may requlre an endorsemenL A statsment oncertain

in

provlsions or be ondorsod.It SUBROGANON ts WAIVED,
cerliRcatethls

18058

716-632-6118 6-631,5045
Agency, lnc.
South

qlsqgsa:f h_i-bdg!p.hiehde_U!!y_!l-s,co___
lnc

NY 14228
BryantWoods

INSURER O :

l[suEEES.r

-- rNsutFEtgtlEEo&DlNc_c!v€8!c-E_

NUMAER

x

.$___

x

x Y 08/0612023

APPLIES PER:

[_].oc

COUTERCIAL GENERAL LIASLITY

ctA[rr$irADE 0ccuR 08/06t2024

x x

ANYAT'TO
OWNEO
AUTOSONTY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEOIJLEO
AUTOS

xBf*tNrg

AUTOTOBILE UABIUTY

0810612023 0a/06t20u $----._

x x OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

x

UUERELI.A LIAB

EICESS IIAE 08t06t20u

Y'Nl
n dffiibe

t{,

DEEcruPfloN oF opEnAroNs, LocArloltg, vEHtcLEs (AcoRD tot, Addntonrt Rsnartrr scbodut., nry bo .lt chcrt It mo}! sp.co lt nqulrrd)
Cltv of Lockoort ls

the bxtent of lhe written
tonot

-
.ACORD'

\--/
LOCKP.6

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILTTY INSURANCE

@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORAT|ON. All rights reserved.
TheACORD nameand logo are reglstercd marke of ACORD

SHOULD ANY OF I}IE ABOVE DESCRTBED POLICIES 8E CANCETLED BEFORE
llE EIPIRAT|ON DATE THEREOF, NOnCE VUILI BE DEUVERED tN
ACGORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Lockport
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

CITYLOC

€A,tr A, /il.;n
AUTHORIzED REPREgENTATTVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)



rhpYb

fif.t
l,lnltec
Chutcl

t.6't

*
G

s

Nhs{rs CogttY
Dcpoflmrrii of tidtor::.

oc{dd$*$'

{$il$g'
ESrSr$GTd ${fit$?{iI

E !fo**Pt

r.l
LJ

i

scott

Evmt

,.' I

tbAdt

to
ao*ni"e.

sidis

"' -'tr.r*ir;;t l$id.Sqsr*;rftb ftsr'o**



Building Inspectian Dep*rtment
Jrxon bool
Chief Building lnspector

Lockporl Municipal Building
Onc Locks Plaza

Lockpori, lfY 14094

Phane {71(r} 439'(t759
Fax (716,) 43Y'6505

December 5,2023

Mayor Miehelle Roman and
Members of ths Commo* Council
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Ladies and Centlemen:

At the regular meeting of the Lockport Flanning Board held Monday,
December 4,2A23 a request for a recommendation from the Plannirg Board
relative to the propasbd Comprehensive PIan and revised ZoningCode as well as
a review of the Waterfront Consistency Review checklist was reviewed and
discussed

Ater a lengthy discussion it was determined that the action is consistent
with the Local Waterfront Revitalization Program policies of the City of Lockport
outlined in $ l8?-5.

The Planning Baard recommends the adoption of the Comprehensive PIan
as presented.

l. Home Oceupations continue to be granted by special permit.
2, lnt coverage maximums be increased in Low Density Residential

distriets franr,saYa1,o 4ao/o and in Medium Density Residential districts
from 50% ta 6A%.

Respectfu lly submittedo

Tracy
Lockpoft Planning



To the City of Lockport Clerks Office,

RECEIVED

ilov 1 620n

cny cLEF,il( q,j.j;fr

My name is Brian Frazer. I reside at g7 Continental Drive, Lockport, Ny 14094. cDnA4D'f Arxd

On the morning of November 13, 2023, between 9:50 am and LL:00 am, the driveway of the
above residence was damaged by the City Leaf Removal crew.

My neighbor witnessed the frontend loader hitting the driveway and breaking off a large chunk
of concrete. The concrete was shoved onto the lawn and left there by the crew.

Please find the photographs taken of the damage below. The photos were taken at 11:30am on
t!/13/23.

Once I saw the damage, I immediately called the City Engineering Department at 716.439.6750
and left a message. I then called the City Clerk at 7L6.439.6776 who said I need to submit a
complaint in writing and mail it to L Lock Plaza.

I am submitting this complaint as per the above. I am asking for reparations to repair or have

the city repair the driveway if able.

I can be contacted by mail at the address above, or by phone or e-mail at:
Home:(716) 434-0906

Cell: (716)860-9293

E-mail : bryrfrazer@buffalo.edu

I am asking that you please acknowledge the complaint was received. Please let me know how
the city will repair the damage.

Thank you for your time,

Signed: Frazer On: IUt3/23

tt \ 73



! 
iii:::ii;/:i 1;::iii'':,! -n; ,1.,i;i ;ii,';.;iril 1' ,i. ;!-,'i ']lirii' ! ii.:..,

Locl,port Munictpal Building
Lockport, Neu' Yonft 14094

ffi

Inthe Matter ofthe Claimof

DA}IIEL WARMUS,

Claimanl

vs.

CITYOFTOCKPORT
'Orle:Lool(sPlaza

NOTICE OTCLAIM

CITY OF IoCKPORT FOLICE DEPART,MENT
Ore LocksPlaza
Loctport Municipal Building
Loe$or[, New,Yorft 14094

CITY OF LOCKPORT LIEUTENANT
STEI/ENTARNOIVSKI
One Loa,ks Plaza
Lockport Muniaipal B uilding
Lochort, Nsw York 14094

CI Y OF L@KPORT POLICE OFFICER
JOHNDOE(S)
One Loaks Flaza
Loct<port Mrmicipal Building
Lockport, Now Yort< 14094

CITY OF I,OCKPORT EMPLOYEE
CAROLE BDWARDS
orreLocbPlaza
toobort Mtmtcipal,Building
LocJqort, New Yor* 14094

CITY OF LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE
SARAHI,ANZO
QnLootsPlazrt
,Loc$bfi Munieipal tsuilding
Lockpo4 NewYotk 14094

ClTv: 0r LogKlonr EMPLoIIEE
JENNIFER WOCHNA
Onb Locks Plaza
Lockport Mutrtcipal Building
Loolry-orl: New York I 4094

crrY 9F LOCKFORT EMPLOYIE
BMILY STODDAR.D
One Looks Plaza



Lockport Municipal Building
Loclporl New York 14094

crTy oF LocKPoRT EMPLOYEE(S)
JOHNDOE(S)
One Locks Plaza
Loclport Municipal Building
Lockport New York 14094

Respondents.

TO: CITY OF LOCKPORT,
CITY OF LOCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT
CITY OF LOCKPORT LIEUTENANT STEVEN TARNOWSKI
POLTCE OFFTCER(S) JoHN DOE(S)
CITY OF LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE CAROLE EDWARDS
CITY OF LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE SARAH LA}IZO
CITY OF LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE JENMFER WOCHNA
CITY OT'LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE EMILY STODDARD
And CITY oF LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE(S) JOHN DOE(S).

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that DANIEL WARMUS has and hereby makes claim against

CITY OF LOCKPORT, CITY OF LOCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT, CITY OF

LOCKPORT LIEUTENANT STEVEN TARNOWSK POLTCE OFFICER(S) JOHN DOE(S),

CITY OF LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE CAROLE EDWARDS, CITY OF LOCKPORT

EMPLOYEE SARAH LAI.IZO, CITY OF LOCKPORT JENNIFER WOCHNA, CITY OF

LOCKPORT Eh,IPLOYEE EMILY STODDARD, and CITY OF LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE(S)

JOHN DOE(S) and in support of said claim state the following:

1. The post offioe address of the claimant is 11649 Genesee Street, Aparftnent 4, Alden, New

York14225.

2. The attomeys for &e Claimant are PENBERTHY LAW GROUP LLP, and their post office

address is 227Niagara Steet, Buffalo, New York 14201.

3. Thc claim of DANIEL WARMUS is for deprivation of constihrtionally guaranteed rights

and privileges, emotional distress, and for consequential dameges generally.



j

I
t

i
I

i

4. Upon information and belief, the claim arose from a series of events within publio buildings

in the City of Lockport, County ofNiagara and State ofNew York.

5. The claim arose in substance as follows: On or about September 6,2023, claimant

DANIEL WARMUS, was served aNotice to Appear and notified ofpending harassment charges

against HIM.

6. The harassment charge arose from the following: On or about August 18, 2023, claimant

DANIEL WARMUS presented lawfully to the City of Lockport Municipal office, located at I

Locks Plaa,Lockport, New York, l4904,and was video recording the service of process of a city

employee of his own civil claim. In the recording of lawful process, Respondents aoouse claimant

DAIIIEL WARMUS of committing the chmge of harassment.

7. All such previously described acts, together with those not yet discovered or herein

described were done without probable cause or proper authority to do so.

8. Thereafter, claimant was unongfully charged and arraigned for violations of Penal Law

Section 240.26 (03) a Violation.

9. Upon inforrnation and belief, the harassment chmge herein described and the resultant

damages sustained were calsed as a result of the negligence, carelessness, reckless disregard

and/or unlavfirl conduc! false arresf malicious prosecution, and abuse of process on the part of

the agents, sewants and/or employees of the CITY OF LOCKPORT, CITY OF LOCKPORT

POLICB DEPARTMENT, CITY OF LOCKPORT LIEUTENANT STEVEN TARNOWSKI,

CITY OF LOCKPORT POLICE OFFICER(S) JOHN DOE(S), CIry OF LOCKPORT

EMPLOYEE CAROLE EDWARD$, LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE SARAH LANZO, LOCKPORT

EMPLOYEE JENNIFER WOCHNA, LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE EMILY STODDARD, and

LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE(S) JOHN DOE(S).



':.r#'+t'i'r'!ilia :

' ? .9:

D,ATEDI

10. Upon information md beliet as a result of the aforesaid c@tge, DA!.IIEL

WARMUS, sus-t4ned dapqges for the deprivation of his constitutionally guarasteed. rights and

privilogoc, emotional dtsress and consequontial damages.
'

nff Clqiryt rcqucrb that CITY OF LOCKIORT, CITY OF LOCKIOET

POLIEE DEP CEY OF IOCKPORT LIETITEX\I4I{T.STEVEN TARI.{OWSKI,

CITY OF LOCKPORT POLICE OFFICER(S) JOHN DOF,(S), CITY OF LOCKPORT

Ellryl.oV.U,gCenole Bpr[ARDs, 
:O.CKPORT 

EMPLOreE'SARAXI tA]lIZo; LOCKPORT

ntvtp.tox-t; mrlqmrn wocHNd LocKPoRT nrnriir,ovrn EbfltY ToDDAR9, and

LOCKPORT EMPLOYEE(S) JOHN DOE(S), honor md pys the olains ofDA].IIEL WARMUS.

B O-,NentY.ork
Nsv,qrber13,m23

i:



.VPTFICATT('IY

STAIEOF.IIBWYORK

@I.'NTTOFEruE

DAI{IF]L wrnMU0' being duly strua, &poscs and cayr trd b is tle'ollindt &ovc
'

n&od; and qkc$tbis olaim on bohrlfofsc$ ha hasrcad&o ftrqpiry clain and b.1.,tb c@
lharof;'tto nrc i,s trr o tc mrd4gc orthc claimam apwt frr fu 

'msrs 
ksitr{itt&d won

inftmatim mdbcti4,d as b rboscn#tcr+ he bcliewsrhb bcrrE.

Slffio:tobcftsiutt[ii

tLW*IdA".t"--r,2s23.



nArV detivere4_

RECEIVED €-S

iloy 3 0 209
SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
COUltlTY gP NIAGAM

BRIANI{A R. BRUNDIDGE

Plainffi/Petitioner
- against

CITY OF LOCKPORT

L
OF

(^: f-,'rzrz*L j \J\

-l-\/
il t-

I
f\I-uc

lndex No.El 8 1 1 121 12023

Defendant/Responde nt.

NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING
(Consensual Case!

(Uniform Rule g 202.5-bl

You have received ttris Notice because:

1) The Plaintiff/Petitioner, whose name is listed above, hasfiled this case using the
New York Strate Courb E-filing system ("NYSCEF'), ?fld

2) You are a DefendanURespondent (a party) in this case.

o U.voq are represented by,an attomev:
Give this Notice to yourattomey. (Attomg: see'lnformatbn forAttomeyso pg.2)

a:
You will be served with all OocumCnts in paper and you must serve and lile your
documents in paper, unless you choose to iardcipaie in e-ffling.

lf you chooee to participate in efiling, you must have access to a computer and a
sGanner or otlrcr device to convert documente into elect'onic fiormat, a connection
to the lnternet and an e-mail addrccs to rccelve servlce of documents.

The beneftts of participating in e-filing include:

r serving and filing your documents electronically

o free aooess to view and print your e-filed documents

r limiting your number of trips to the courthouse

r paying any court fees on-line (credit card needed)

To rcgister fior efiling or for morie informafion about how e-ffling works:

e visit hfip:4tanmr.nvcourts.gov/efile-unrepresented or
' contact the Clerk's Office or Help Center at the court where the case was filed. Court

cpntact information can be found at www.nvcourts.gov

Page 1 of 2 EF-3



To find legal information to help you represent yourself visit www.nvcourthelp.qoy

lnformation for Attorneys

{n Sttomey representing a parly who is served with this notice must either consent or
decline onsent to electronic filing and service through NYSCEF for this case.

Attomeys registered wittr NYSCEF may record their consent elecfironically in the manner
provided at ihe NYSCEF site. AttomiY" lgt regfstered with NYSCEF liut intending to
participate in e-filing must first create a NYSCEF account and obtain a user lD ind
password priorto recording their consent by going to www.nvcourts.gov/eflle

4ttqf"y: declining to consent must fite wittr the court and serve on all parties of record a
declination of consent.

For additional information about electronic filing and lo create a NYSCEF account visit the
NYSCEF website at www or contact the NYSCEF Resource Center
(phone: 64G'386-3033; e-m ail : nyscef@ nycourts.gov)

Dated: November29.2023

David M. Goodman, Esq
Name

The Coppola Flrm, PLLC

Firm Name

To:

4033 Maple Road, Suite 100

Address

Bufialo, New York 14226

(716) 839-9700

Phone

dgoodman@coppolalegat.com
E-Mall

6/6t18

lndex # Page2 ot 2 EF-3



rNDEX NO. E181L2L/2023

RECEMD NYSCEF: L'J-/29 /2023NYSCEF DOC. NO. 14

SUPREME COURT:: S'I''ATE OF NEWYORK
COUNTI' OF NTACARA

BRIANNA R. BRUNDIDCE
2418 Grand Avenue
Niagara Falls, New York 14301

Claimant.
NOTICEOFCTAIM

E181n1n023
lndex No.:

v.

CITY OF LOCKPORT
tockport Municipal Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Respondent.

PLEASE TAKE NOTtCg that the claimant, BRIANNA R. BRUNDIDGE, (hereinafter

"Claimant"), submlts this Claim against the CITy OF t$CKpOR[, (hereinafter,,Respondenf),

and in support of sald clalm states the following:

1. The address of Claimantis 2418 Grand Avenue, Niagara Falls,.Newyork 14301.

2. The Attornqrc for Claimant are The Coppola Firm, pLLG David M. Goodman

Esq. Of Counsel,4033 Mapte Road, Suite 100, Buffalo, New york L4ZZ6,

3. Thls claim arose on lune1,2,Z\Z\,atS GoodingSt., LockpoG New york 14094.

claimant atlended a guided bur of the Erie canal and the Lockport Locks.

5. The gulded tour was performed by Hydraulic Race company, lnc, d/bfa

Lockport Cave & Underground Boat Ride.

6, The tour began at the Hcket office ofLockport Cave & Underground Boat Rlde,

which is located at5 GoodingSt, Lockport, Newyork 14094.

4.

I

1of4



rNDEX NO. E181127/2023

RSCEIVED NYSCEF: LI/29/2023NYSCEF DOC. NO. 14

7. As part of the toul guests attended a "Boat Ride" in furtherance of the

historical tour:

8. It was Claimant's understanding that the boat ride would venture into the cave,

and once atthe en4 would reverse and return back to the starting point

9. On fune L2,2023, during the boatlng portion of the touq at approxlmately

11:30 a.m., the boat became unbalanced and capsize{ sending the Claimant and Claimant's

fellow passenger into the freezingwaterbelow.

10. Upon information and beltefi the incident hereln desgibed, and the resultant

damages sustained werc caused as a result ofthe negligence, carelessness, recklessness, and

deliberate lndifference on the part of the agents, seruants, andr/or employees of the City of

lockporL These acts include, butare not llmtted to, the foflowing:

a. Negligentsuperuislon;

b. Negligentfailure to recognize a known dangeg

c. Negligent fallure to talc proper measunes to correct the danger;

d. Negligent failure to inspect the tour boag

e. Negligent failure to license the tour boat;

f, Negligently hlltng to prevent iniuries;

g. The Respondentswere otherwise negllgent.

12, Upon information and belief, the Ctty of Loclqort Pollce confirmed a simllar

incident to Lockport Cave & Boat Ride. Upon information and belief, an incident reportwirs

filed in the department

2

2ot4



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 14

rNDEX NO. 818112\/2023
RECEIVED NYSCEF: IL/29 /2023

15. Upon information and belief, Respondent had the duty to inspect, and issue

permlts to Lockport Cave & Underground Boat Ride but falled to do so which resulted ln

serious bodily injuries and severe emotional dlstress.

L6. That as a result of the capsize of the boat and being thrown into the freezing

water along with my fellow passengers, Claimant has suffered both physical and

psychological injuries for which claimant continues to seek treatment

77. Upon information and belief, the incident herein describe4 and the resultant

damages sustained wene caused as a result of the negligencg carelessness, recklessness, and

deliberate indifference on the partof the agents, senrants, and/or employees of Respondents,

both jointly and sevenally, without any compamtive fuult attributable to Claimant.

WHEREFORE, Claimant requests compensation from Respondents along wlth such

other and further rclief as may be awarded by the Court, including but not limlted to costs

and attorneys' fees incurred herein, and for such other and further retief as to the Court may

seem just and proper.

DATED: Buffalo, Newyork
September L4,20Zs

Davld M. Goodman, Esq.
Attorney for Claimant
The Coppola Flrm, PLLC
4033 Maple Roa4 Suire 100
Buffalq NewYork L4ZL6
(7t61839-9700
dgood nr4n @coppola legal.conr

3

3of4



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 14

INDEX NO. 818112L/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF: L!/29/2023

VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEWYORK

COUNTYOF ERIE

BRIANNA R BRUNDIDGE, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he is the Ctalmant

in the above matte[ that he has read the foregoing and knows the contents thercof and that

the same is true to his own knowledge, except as to those matters therein stated to be alleged

upon information and belief, and as to those matters, he believes them to be true.

Sworn to before me this
20t day of Septembe4 2023.

Public

l
l
)

ss.:

DAVID M. OOODllAttt
Nohry PrJUlc, Stde ol f$wttbfi
Regbfrrilon l{o. (pGOtS041

Chnlilbdln EriaOourtrr _,
lrycommtslion e**mM

4

4of4



rv{v dettvef<d

RECH!\,/ED C5

l,lol/ $ '/tJ'13

CITY CLEii,i,, .,,:i: iJE

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
coul,tw oF NIAGARA

CASEY I. DAHLSTROM

Plaintiff/Petitioner
- against -

CITY OF LOCKPORT
lndex No.El8108712023

DefendanURespondent.

NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING
(Gonsensual Case|

(Uniform Rute g 202.+bl

You have received this Notice because:

1) The PlaintffilPetitioner, whose name is listed above, has filed this case using the
NewYork State Courts E-filing system fNYSCEF,,), and

2) You are a DefendanuRespondent (a party) in fris case.

r lf,vou, ?q represented bv an :
Give this Notice to yourattomey. @gyg: see "rnformation forAttomeys" pg.2).

o 
tf vou il? not reprcsented bv a :
You will be served with all -ocuments in paper and you must serye and file your
documents in paper, unless you choose tb iarticipaie in e-filing.

lf you choose to particlpate in e.fillng, you must have accass to a computerand ascanner or other device to conveft documents lnto electronic format, a connecgon
to the interne( and an e*nail address to recelye seruice of documenc.

The benefits of participating ln esling include:

r serving and filing yourdocuments electronically

r free access to view and print your e-fired documents

r limiting your number of trips to the courthouse

r paying any court fees on_line (credit card needed)

To register for e-filing or for more information about how e.fiffng works:

o visif http//www.nycourb.gov/efile-unrepresented ore contact the Clerk's office or Help center afthe court where the case was filed. courtontact information can be found at www.nvcourts.oov

Page 1 of 2 EF-3



To find legal information to help you represent yourself visit wwwovcourthelp.qov

ln$onnation for Attorneys

An attomey representing a party who is served with this notice must eiher consent or
decline consent to electronicfiling and service through NYSCEF forthis cas".

Attomeys reg-istered with NYSCEF may reoord their consent eledronically in the mannerprovided at the NYSCEF site. Attomdys pl registered with NYSCSF 6ut intending roparticipate in e-filing must first create a NYSCEF account and obtrain a us€r lD andpassword prior to recording their consent by going to www.nvcourts.gov/efile

{fro.tn"vf decllning to consent must ftle with the court and serve on all parties of record a
declination of consent

For additional lnformation about electronic ffling and to cteate a NySCEF account, visit the
NYSCEF website a! uarvrry.nvqourts.qov/efile 6r mntract it" trtvscEF Resource Center
(phone : G4o-386.30s g ; *'@).

Dated: l,lovember28,2023

David M. Goodman, Esq.
Name

The Coppola Firm, pLLC

Firm Name

To:

4033 Maple Road, Suite 100
Address

Buffalo, New York 14226

(716) 83$9700
Phone

com

6/6/18

lndex # Page 2 ot2 EF.3



NYSCEF'DOC. NO. 13

INDEX NO. 818L087/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF: Ll/25/2023

SUPREME COURT:: STATE 0F NEWYORK

CASEYI. DAHLSTROM
4850 East Rlver Road
Grand Islan4 NewYork 14072

Claimant.

v.

NOTICEOFCLAIM
E181087t2023

lndex No.:-

CITY OF LOCKPORT
Lockport Municipal Building
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Respondent.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that the claimant, CASEY I. DAHISTROM, (hereinafter

"Claimanf), submlrs this Claim against the CITy OF LOCKPORT (hereinafter "Respondent,,),

and in supportof said claim states the foltowing:

1. The address of claimant is 4gs0 East River Road, Grand lslan4 New york

t+o72.

2. The Attorneys for Claimant are The Coppola Firm, PLIC David M. Goodman,

Esq, Of Counsel, 4033 Maple Road, Suite 100, Bufhlo, Newyork Lq2Z6,

3. This claim arose onfune tz,z\zg,ats GoodingSt., Lockport, Newyork 14094.

claimant attended a guided tour of dre Erie canal and the lockport Locks.

The guided tour was performed by Hydraulic Race company, lnc,, d/bla

n

5.

Loclqort Cave & Underground Boat Ride.

1

1of4



rNDEX NO. 8181081/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF: IL/28/2023NYSCEF,DOC. NO. 13

6. The tour began at the ticket office ofLockport Cave & Underground Boat Ride,

which is located at5 GoodingSt., Lockport, Newyork 14094.

7. As part of the tou4 guests attended a "Boat Ride,, in furtherance of the

historical tour.

& Itwas Claimant's understandlngthatthe boat ridewould venture into the cave,

and once at the end, would reverse and return back to the startlng potnt.

9. On fune lZ, 2023, during the boating porlion of the tou6 at approximately

11:30 a.m., the boat became unbalanced and capsized, sending the Claimant and Claimant s

fellow passengers tnto the freezing water betow

10. Upon lnformation and belief, the incident hereln described, and the resultant

damages sustalned were caused as a resutt of the negligence, carelessness, rec*lessness, and

deliberate indifference on the part of the agents, sennnts, and/or employees of the City of

Lockport. These acts include, but are not limited to, the foilowlng:

a. Negligentsupervision;

b. Negligent failurr to rccognize a known danger;

c. Negllgent faiture to take proper measunes to correct the dangen

d. Negltgent hilure to lnspect the tour boag

e. Negllgent failure to license the tour boat;

f. Negligently failing to prevent injuries;

g. The Respondents were otherwise negligent.

12. Upon informafion and beltef, thc City of Lockport Pollce conflrmed a slmilar

incident to Lockport Cave & Boat Ride. Upon information and belief, an incident report was

filed in the department

2

2ot 4



NyscEr.' Doc. No. 13

15. upon information and belief, Respondent had the duty to inspecg and lssue

permits to locl(Port Cave & Undergrcund Boat Ride but failed to do so which resulted in

serious bodily inJuries and severe emotional dlsffess.

16. That as a rcsult of the capsize of the boat and being thrown into the freezing

water along with my fellow passengers, Ctaimant has suffered both physical and

psychological injuries for which claimant continues to seek treagnent.

17, Upon informadon and belief, the incident herein described, and the resultant

damages sustained were caused as a result ofthe negligence, carelessness, recklessness, and

deliberate indifference on the partoftheagents, servanband/oremployees of Respondents,

both jointly and severally, without any comparative fault attributable to ClaimanL

WHEREF|0RE, Clalmant requests compensation from Respondenk along with such

other and further relief as may be awarded by the court, including but not limited to costs

and attorneys' fees lncurred hereln, and for such other and further relief as to the Court may

seem Just and proper.

DATED: Buffalo, Newyork
September LB,202g

rNDEX NO. E181087/2023

RECEIVED NySCEF: LL/28/2023

da"r+
David M. Goodman, Esq.
Attorney for Clatmant
The Coppola Firm, pLLC

4033 Maple Road, Suite 100
Bufhlo, NewYork Le2l6
(7L6) 839-e700
cl good rrrir n @,c._oir po la lega l co nr

3

3of4



INDEX NO. E181081/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF: IL/28 /2023NYSCER DOC. NO. 13

Sworn to before me this
18ot day of Septembenl[23.

Public

vERrFrcATrOU

STATE OF NEWYORK

COUNTY OF ERIE

CASEY I. DAHISTROM, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he is the Claimant in

the above matte[ that he has read the foregoing and knows the contents thereof and that the

same is true to his own knowledge, except as to those matterc therein stated to be alteged

upon information and beliel, and as to those matters, he believes them to be true.

ss.:
)
l
)

C*^/

DAVTDM.GO@llAlt
tlmry ptdilc, Sbb d thtbfi
noUamm noroacocihnii-

w#!ffiH[dg_

CASEY I. DAHLSTROM

4

4of4



3

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form
For Finance De rtment

For Finqnce Diredor to Fill Out:

Dote of Approvol: rrl22/2023 Resolution:

Authorize Public Works Audit ContractAgenda Description:

FY 2024 BudgetProposed By: Date Submitted: 71/22/2023

PIease provide to Finonce Dlrector ot leost two weeks prior to Council meeting,

Summary: fhe FY 2024 budget authorized funding to be used for an audit of the public works division in the City
AnRFPwaspublishedorigniallyonMayll,2023,andthreebidswerecollectedlaterinAugust. Acommittee
consisting of various city officials (including Mayor, Finance Director, Director of Streets, Parks and Distribution,
City Engineer, Treasurer, and Council Member) met to review said bids and reached out to references listed for
each bidder. After reviewing all information, the committee has recommended to proceed with the vendor
Matrix.

Financial lmpact (for current and following year): Funds have been allocated for FY 2024 and is when services
would be rendered.

Explanation of attachments: (1) RFP, (2) Matrix bid, (3) Transaction report.

For Requests lnvolving Budget Amendments:

lncrease Line ltem Decrease Line ltem:

NA NA



Crry on Locrconr
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094
(7t6) 439-6631
E-mail: trusso@lockportny.gov

TIM RUSSO
Director of Finance

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS

The City of Lockport is requesting sealed proposals for

Lockport Public Works Division - Operations and Management Audit

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals for the services above will be received and considered by the
City of Lockport on an on-going basis up to 2 pm on September L4th at the office of the City Clerlg municipal
building, One Locks Plaza Lockport NY, 14094.

Proposers will provide one written quote that contains the totalcost of the scope of work.

Please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at7L6-439-6776 or citv.clerk@lockportnv.eov with any questions.

The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any or all proposal, to consider the reputation and
experience of the Proposal in making its selection; to waive any informalities or minor deviations from the
proposalform, and to award to other than the lowest quote, if good and sufficient reasons, it is considered
in the best interest of the City of Lockport to do so. The City will not reimburse any costs associated with the
preparation of RFP(s).

Originally Published on: May tL,2023
Edited on June I,2023 to extend due date due to no bids being received.
Edited on July L1.,2023 to extend due date due to no bids being received.



Request for Proposal (RFP) for an Operations and Management Audit for Public Works of the City of
Lockport, NY

lntroduction:

The City of Lockport is seeking proposals from qualified firms to perform an Operations and Management
Audit for Public Works Division. The objective of this audit is to identify opportunities for improvement in
the City's public works operations and management, and to recommend actionable solutions that will
enable the City to better serue its citizens.

Scope of Work:

The selected firm will be expected to perform an in-depth audit of the Public Works Department's
operations and management, including but not limited to the following areas:

o Asset Management
r Fleet Management
o MaintenanceManagement
r Personnel Management and Organization
r Emergency Response

r EnvironmentalCompliance
r Customer Service
o Performance Metrics

The audit should identifu areas where the City's operations and management can be improved, and provide
recommendations for specific actions that can be taken to achieve these improvements.

Deliverables:

The selected firm will be expected to provide a written report detailing their findings and
recommendations. The report should be comprehensive and include the following sections:

o Executive Summary
r Methodology
r Findings

o Recommendations
. lmplementation Plan

ln addition to the written report, the firm should also provide a presentation to the City Council and Public
Works Department staff to review the audit findings and recommendations.

2



Proposal Submission:

Proposal Requirements:

Proposals should include the following:

o Firm's qualifications and experience in conducting similar audits.
o Proposed methodology for conducting the audit, including a timeline
r Estimated cost for completing the audit.
. A sample audit report.

Proposals should be submitted on an on-going basis however no later than 2 pm on September 14th at the
office of the City Clerk, municipal building, One Locks Plaza Lockport NY, 14094 to the attention of: "Bid -
operations and Management Audit for Public works." Please also send a digital copy to
trusso@ lockport nv.gov.

Other Details:

The FY 2023 Budeet can be found online for public access. ln context of the City, Public Works consist of the
following departments: Public Works Administration, Maintenance Garage, Street Maintenance, Street
Lighting, Parks, Forestry Wastewater Systems, Water Filtration and Water Distribution.

Evaluation Criteria:

Proposals will be evaluated based on the following criteria

o Qualifications and experience of the firm.
o Proposed methodology for conducting the audit
o Cost of the audit.
r Sample audit report.
r References.

The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive any informalities or irregularities in any
proposal, and to accept any proposal deemed to be in the best interest of the City.

A committee will be appointed by the Mayor that will evaluated the submissions. Please note that this RFP

does not obligate the City to select a bidder or accept a bid at this time or any time in the future. The City
can at its sole discretion revise the requirement, scope, and selections process for this RFP at any time.

Thank you for your interest in this project. lf you have any questions or require additional information,
please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at 716439-6776 or citv.clerk@lockportnv.sov.

aJ



4



Proposal to Conduct an Operations and Management
Audit of the Public Works Division

LOCKPORT, NEW YORK

September 1 4,2023

matrixffi
consulting group



Table of Contents

Letter of Transmittal

1 Qualifications and Experience

Methodology and Timeline

Project Cost

Sample Audit Report

2

3

4

1

12

19

2A



matrixffi
consulting group

September 14,2023
Sarah Lanzo, City Clerk

City of Lockport
One Locks Plaza
Lockport NY,14094

Dear Ms. Lanzo:

The Matrix Consulting Group is pleased to submit our proposalto conduct an operations and
management audit of the City of Lockport's Public Works Division. Our qualifications stand
apart from other consulting firms for the following reasons:

Expansive Experience. Over the last 20+ years, our firm has conducted management
and operational studies of more than 200 public works departments throughout the
United States. We also have significant experience evaluating public works operations
as part of over 100 organization-wide studies the firm has conducted.

Client focus: The Matrix Consulting Group prides itself on a project approach that
develops recommendations to meet the unique circumstances of each client. We

employ best practices assessments to identify improvement opportunities, and tailor
recommendations to ensure they fit the needs and expectations for each community.
This approach has resulted in high levels of implementation of our recommendations
and marked improvements in service delivery for our clients.

Project team qualifications: We are proposing a highly qualified consulting team that
has worked together on similar projects. Our proposed Project Manager, Jen Winter,
leads our Public Works Practice and has 25 years of experience including prior
experience as a Public Works Director.

As the firm's President, I am authorized to negotiate on the firm's behalf and bind it
contractually. I can be reached at the address and phone nurnber listed below, or via email at

rhra-dy(Qm-a1rix.-c-g.net.

Richard Brady, President
Matrix Consulting Group, Ltd.

1650 S. Amphlett Blvd., Suite 2'13': San Mateo, CA 94402 e 650.858.0507
SF BayArea (Headquarters), Charlotte, Dallas, Fort Myers, lrvine, Portland, St. Louis



lr
Proposalfor a Publrc Works Division Operations and Management Audit Lockporl, NY

Qualifications and Experience

This section of our proposal provides an overview of our qualifications and experience,
including information regarding three completed projects of similar size and scope.

lntroduction to the Matrix Consulting Group

The Matrix Consulting Group is a management consulting firm dedicated to providing
quality analytical assistance to local governments. Our company was formed in 2002 to
focus solely on providing high-quality management consulting services to the public
sector. Key information about our firm is provided in the following points:

' We were incorporated in California on January 1, 2003, and have been in business
for over 20 years.

We are comprised of 25 full time and five part-time staff.

We have a dedicated Public Works practice area that includes former public works
executives and career consultants.

Our most significant area of expertise is the provision of organizational and
management assessments.

The Matrix Consulting Group is well-versed in the various aspects of public works
operations and processes, as well as the staffing and technology needs which
accompany them. We take a holistic approach to evaluating operations, processes,
policies, organizational structure, and resource needs both to meet the current and
projected workload. Our approach provides our clients with a comprehensive assessment
of their organizations and implementable recommendations that are tailored to meet
their unique needs.

Experience

Our firm has conducted management, staffing, and operations studies of more than 200
public works departments throughout the United States. Each of these studies were
comprehensive assessments of public works operations and collectively cover virtually
every facet of public works operations.

1Matrix Consulting Group



Proposal for a Public \A/orks Division Operations and Marnagernent Audit

Our experience has included the following clients:

t-ockpo11, NY

ln addition to our dedicated public works studies, we have conducted over 100
organizational-wide studies that included as part of the scope of work the assessment of
staffing and service impact analysis for Public Works and Road Operations. Recent
clients include the following:

Andover, MA
Amherst, NH

Anderson County, SC

Beverly Hills, CA
Boulder, CO

Brockton, MA
Brookline, MA
Cedar Hill, TX
Cedar Rapids,lA
Falmouth, MA
DeKalb County, GA

Dublin, CA

Everett, WA

Gilroy, CA

Gloucester, MA

Albuquerque, NM
Avon, CT

Barstow, CA

Brattleboro, VT
CarrollCounty, NH

Coventry, Rl

DeKalb County, GA

Franklin Township, NJ
Grand County, UT

Greenbelt, MD

Groton, MA

Haverhill, MA
Joliet, lL
Lake County, lL
Littleton, CO

Los Angeles County, CA

Los Angeles, CA

Menlo Park, CA

Milpitas, CA

Milwaukee, Wl

Niles, lL
Northampton, MA
Ogden City, UT

0klahoma City,0K
Palo Alto, CA

Pittsburgh, PA

San Mateo, CA

San Mateo County, CA
Santa Maria, CA

Scarsdale, NY

Snohomish County, WA

Springfield, MA
Spokane, WA

Tiburon, CA

Torrington, CT

Vacaville, CA

Vancouver, WA

Washington County, NY

West Sacramento, CA

White Plains, NY

Windsor, CT

Portage, Ml
Rancho Mirage, CA

Rancho Palos Verdes, CA

Roseville, CA

Salt Lake County, UT

Scherlz, TX
St. Cloud, FL

Takoma Park, MD

Tigard, OR

Tinley Park, lL

WA Dept. Fish & Wildlife

Gulf Shores, AL
Half Moon Bay, CA

Johnson County, KS

Monroe County, Ml
Monrovia, CA

Montpelier, VT
Orland Park, lL
Orleans, MA
Orting, WA
Palos Verdes Estates, CA

Peoria County, lL

References

The following provides project abstracts and references for four similar public works
organizational and operational assessments completed by the proposed project team.
One of the projects (Gilroy, California) is our provided work sample.

2Matrix Consulting Group



Propostrl for a Public Works Dirrision Operations and Managernent Audit

Gilroy, CA Organizational and Operational Review of Public Works

tockport, NY

Project Contact: Jimmy Forbis, City Administrator

Phone Number 408-846-0202

Email Jlm my.fu r b i s@t*ojlYafg1lrcY. sr"g

Address 7351 Rosanna Street, Gilroy CA 95020

Project Dates 2022

Contract Amount 565,000

Project Summary: ln this study, the project team conducted an analysis of the Public Works
Department which included Engineering, Transporlation, Environmental Compliance, Park
Maintenance, Street Maintenance, Urban Forestry, and Water and Wastewater Maintenance
and Operation. The study aimed to promote an environment of continuous improvement and
efficient and effective use of staff.

Recommendations were given in operations, work practices, staffing and workload. Key
recommendations included several organizational changes such as the creation of a sewer
maintenance team separate from street maintenance and the relocation of park reservations
out of maintenance operations. Recommendations also included development of an asset
management program with enhanced utilization of the software solution in place,
implementation of technology to for development review and permitting, and development of
work calendars and work schedules utilizing the software solution already in place.

Fayetteville, NC Organizational and Operational Review of Public Services

Project Contact Sheila Thomas-Ambat, Public Services Director

Phone Number: 910-433-1329

Email Sheil aThomasAmbat@fayettevil lenc. gov

Project Sumrnary: Matrix Consulting was retained by the City of Fayetteville to conduct a

comprehensive assessment of the Public Services Department including Engineering, Traffic
Services, Storm Water Services, Streets, and Solid Waste. The goals of the study included an
organizational efficiency and staffing analysis to help deploy strategies to utilize staff
resources in the most effective mannel determine appropriate staffing levels for the
Department, and recommend organizational structure changes to enhance service levels.

Recommendations included a reorganization of multiple divisions including Engineering,
Traffic Services, and Streets to better align teams and delivery of services. Matrix also
recommended implementation of an asset management program and the use of technology
for field staff to be able to assign and record work order information from the field.

JMatrix Consulting Group



Proposal for a Public Works Division Operations and Managernent Audit

Vacaville, CA Organizational and Operational Review of Public Works

L.ockporl, NY

Project Contact: Brian Mclean, Public Works Director

Phone Number: 707-449-5175

Email Bri a n. M cLean@cityofvacavi lle. corn

Project Dates 2021-2022

Contract Amount 566,500

Project Summary: ln this study, the project team conducted an analysis of the Public Works
Department which included Engineering, Construction, Facilities, Fleet, Parks, Streets, Transit,
and Utilities divisions. The analysis included an organizational and operational assessment
with pafticular focus on organizational structure and staffing.

Recommendations included a reorganization of the deparlmental leadership team as well as
additional organizational structure changes to some of the divisions. The study also addressed
use of technology, administrative systems and procedures, and asset management. The study
also recommended consolidating and documenting the policies and operating procedures of
the Department into an electronic manual accessible online by all staff.

Haverhill, MA Organizational and Management Assessment of Facilities Services

Project Contact: Mayor James Fiorentini

Phone Number: 978-374-2300

Email M ayo r@cityof h averh i I I " co rn

Prcject Summary: The Matrix Consulting Group completed a study of the City's Highway
Division and also of the facilities maintenance services provided by the City and its School
system.

The City's Highway Division had faced several management issues in recent years, and it
engaged our firm to conduct a thorough assessment of the degree to which further changes
were required in personnel management, customer service, communications, planning and
managing work, and productivity. The project team recommended replacing the Public Works
Department's management information system, enhancing the information captured on work
orders, ensuring that employee performance appraisals occur regularly, and timely
replacement of the fleet in addition to many other recommendations.

For the facilities maintenance study the project team recommended a phased approach to full
consolidation that involved, first, addressing customer service issues and developing and
implementing a more robust preventive maintenance program. Later phases addressed the
need for a consolidated work order system, performance management, and standardized
approaches to contracting and internal staffing.

4Matrix Consulting Group



Proposal for a Public Works Division Operations and Management Audit Lockporl, NY

Project Team

We have proposed a very qualified and experienced project team for this engagement
including our most senior consultants and individuals with significant experience
conducting similar engagements. The team will be managed by Alan Pennington, who
leads our General Consulting Practice, and team members have significant public sector
and consulting experience in Public Works.

All team members are employees of Matrix Consulting Group apart from Elia Twigg, a

consultant from Lantic Solutions. Elia is currently paftnered with the Matrix Consulting
Group on multiple similar studies.

Resumes of our senior team members are included on the following pages

5Matrix Consulting Group



Proposalfor a Public Works Division Operations and Managernent Audit

ALAN PENNINGTON
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, MATRIX CONSULTING GROUP

Lockporl, NY

Alan Pennington leads our General Consulting Practice which
includes Public Works and Engineering studies. Alan has extensive
experience conducting organizational, operational, and staffing
assessments for public works operations including evaluation of
the sufficiency of contracted services. He has been employed by
the firm since 2005. Prior to that time, he served for over 13 years
in local government positions. ln his time with the firm, he has
conducted over 300 studies including over 75 with a public works
or engineering focus.

Experience Highlights

Downey, CA: Alan was the Project Manager and Lead Analyst on
this assessment of the engineering operations within the Public
Works Department. This study focused on the organizational
structure, staffing requirements, and evaluation of contracted
services to ensure appropriate resources were allocated based on
workload.

Menlo Park, CA: Alan was the Project Manager on this engagement
evaluating both the Community Development and Public Work
Departments. Key recommendations included:

. Transfer of the land development function from Public Works
to Community Development to improve communication and
coordination of development review activities.

. ldentified improvements in operational practices to enhance
capital project management.

Everett, WA:Alan was the Project Manager on this comprehensive
study of the City's Public Works Department which included
utilities, engineering, refuse and recycling operations, streets,
stormwater, public information, grants, and building
permitting/inspection operations. Key recommendations:

. Provided staffing analysis and identified the need for additional
Engineers and Engineering Technician positions.

. Greater focus on GIS utilization and implementation of a

comprehensive asset management program.

Project Role: Alan will serve as the Principal-in-Charge.

Matrix Consulting Group

Relevant Clients:

AZ Buckeye
CA Downey
CA Gilroy
CA Menlo Park
CA Palos Verdes Estates
CA Rancho Mirage
CA Santa Maria
CA South Coast Water
MA Orleans
MO Dept. of Conservation
MO Raymore
NC Fayetteville
NY Washington County
NY White Plains
SC Charleston County
TN Franklin
TN Nashville
VA Alexandria
WA Everett
WA Orting
Wl Milwaukee

Years of Experience:28

Education:

BA, University of Maine,
Public Management.

MPA, University of Maine,

Professional Association:

Association of Local
Government Auditors
(ALGA)

Government Finance
Office's Association
(cFoA)

I nternational City-County
Management Association
(rcMA)

6



Proposal for a Public Works Division Operations and Managernent Audit

JEN WINTER, P.E.

SENIOR MANAGER, MATRIX CONSULTING GROUP

Lockporl, NY

Jen Winter leads our Public Works and lnfrastructure practice
area. She leads all public works studies including asset
management, engineering, streets, traffic and transpoftation,
public utilities, and related services. Prior to joining Matrix Jen
served within local government as the Public Works Director for
the City of Cedar Rapids, lowa. She has also previously served as
the Regional Director for an engineering consulting firm. Her local
government experience includes:

. Strategic planning, organizational and staffing assessments,
data and workload analysis, needs assessments, public
engagement, and best management practices evaluation and
implementation.

. Process studies within public works and development
activities, organizational review, and process evaluation and
reengineering.

. Asset management strategies critical to the planning and
measurement of infrastructure.

. Extensive training in and experience implementing
organizational health initiatives.

Experience Highlights

Santa Maria, CA: Jen was the project manager and lead analyst on
the Operational and Organizational Review of the Public Works
Department. Key recommendations included:

. lmplementation of operational best practices including
developing an asset management program.

. Organizational and staffing improvements including the
reorganization of the Public Works Department to better align
staff and services.

Vacaville, CA: Jen was the Project Manager on the City's
comprehensive review of the Public Works Department including
Engineering, Facilities, Streets, and Utilities. Key recommendations
included:

. lmplementation of operational best practices including
developing an asset management program.

. Organizational and staffing improvements including the
reorganization of the Engineering Division.

Project Role:Jen will serve as Project Manager.

Relevant Clients:

CA Dublin

CA Gilroy
CA Marin County
CA SDCWA

CA Santa Barbara

CA San Bernardino Co
CA SDCWA

CA Santa Maria
CA Vacaville
CA West Sacramento
FL Dunedin

FL Naples Airport
NC Fayetteville
NE Sarpy County
PA SARAA

TN Knoxville
WA Snohomish County

Years of Hxperience: 25

Education:

BS, lowa State University,
Civil Engineering

Professional Association

American Public Works
Association (APWA)

APWA Genter for
Sustainability (Past
Chair)

APWA lowa Chapter
Board Member

7Matrix Consulting Group



Proposal for a Public Works Division Operations and Management Audit

CHAS JORDAN, M.p.A., p.w.E,, F.M.p., s.c., LEED G.A., ENV sp

MANAGER, MATRIX CONSULTING GROUP

Lockporl, NY

Chas Jordan recently joined our firm to lead projects in the firm's
General Consulting Practice. He serves as a project manager and
a project consultant on projects dealing with public works,
facilities, fleet management, utilities, parks and recreation and
administrative functions.

Prior to joining Matrix, Chas served as an Assistant Public Works
Director and Facilities Manager as well as a Public Works
Administrative Manager in Florida. ln this capacity, he became an
experienced construction project manager, as well as a thorough
knowledge of Public Works best practices and accreditation
requirements. He has also previously served as Project Manager
for a solid waste management consulting firm. His local
government and consulting experience includes:
. Strategic planning, organizational and staffing assessments,

needs assessments, and best management practices
evaluation and implementation.. Process studies within public activities, organizational review,
and process evaluation and reengineering.. Crisis management and disaster and emergency response
from non-public safety departments.. Technology implementation to improve workflow and
management, integration strategies and employee training.. Management and soft skills development and training.. Financial analysis, rate setting, and long-term capital planning.. Fleet asset management and equipment replacement.. Facilities capital project management and long-term planning.

Experience Highlights

Addison, TX: Chas served as the lead analyst for Matrix on a
project reviewing the organization and operations of the Town of
Addison's General Services Department which includes facilities,
fleet, and general operations functions for the entire Town. This
project included a staffing review, a work load analysis and
maintenance management procedures, and guidance on
implementing more robust asset management practices for both
buildings and vehicles for the future.

San )iego County Water Authority, CA: Chas served as an analyst
on this project reviewing the capital improvement and project
management processes of the Authority and to recommend
improvements for a more streamlined and efficient process forthe
future.
Role on this engagement: Chas will serve as the lead analyst.

Relevant Clients

CA OCTA
CA SDCWA
CA San Bernardino
FL MiamiBeach
FL Toho Water Auth
TN Knoxville
TX Addison

Years of Experience: 1 B

Education:

MPAu University of Norlh
Florida - Public
Administration

BA, University of North
Florida - Political Science
and Public Administration

Professional Associations:

American Public Works
Association (APWA)

Past Chairman -
Leadership and
Management
Committee

Florida Chapter
Past President

Solid Waste Association of
North America (SWANA)

lnstitute for Asset
Management (lAM)

IMatrix Consulting Group



Proposal for a Public Works Division Operations and Managernent Audit

DAVID BRANCH
MANAGER, MATRIX CONSULTING GROUP

Lockport, NY

David Branch has served as an analyst and project lead on a wide
range of government studies covering a variety of county and
municipal functions such as building, planning, housing, code
enforcement, human resources, finance and purchasing, public
works and utilities. David has extensive experience conducting
organizational, operational, and staffing assessments during his
10 years with our firm. Relevant experience highlights include:

. Completed over 120 studies for local government entities,
including numerous department and agency-wide
assessments.

. Analysis focuses on workload and staffing, organizational
structure, asset management, and process improvement using
recognized best practices and quantitative metrics and
modeling and developing implementation solutions to guide
clients.

Experience Highlights

El Segundo, CA: David was the lead analyst for this study of the
City's Community Development Department. The study analyzed
staffing needs and organizational structure, workload and
performance metrics, operational issues, and opportunities to
deploy technology. Key recommendations included:

. Development of plan review processing performance
benchmarks and the use of a performance measurement
dashboard for internal use and the public.

. Process flow adjustments to consolidate the plan review
process, involve Planning more consistently, and centralize the
applicant point of contact.

. lmplementation of permitting and land management software
along with a digital applicant portal and cashiering integration.

. ldentification of staffing resources needed to meet desired
processing times.

Project Role: David will serve as an analyst

Matrix Consulting Group

Relevant Clients:

AZ Buckeye
CA El Segundo
CA Fresno
CA Milpitas
CA Redlands
CA Riverside
CO Aurora
CO Westminster
FL Coral Gables
FL Fort Myers
FL Kissimmee
GA DeKalb County
lL Tinley Park
lL Chatham
NC Rowan County
NY Albany
OR Tigard
TX Dallas
TX Flower Mound

Years of Experience: 10

Education:

BS, University of Southern
California; Policy,
Management, and
Planning.

M.Ed., University of
Missouri- St. Louis,
Secondary Education

Professional Association

American Public Works
Association (APWA)

9



Proposal for a Public Works Division Operations and Management Audit

JOE MCDONALD

CONSULTANT, MATRIX CONSULTING GROUP

Lockport, NY

Joe McDonald has served as an analyst on a wide variety of
engagements, ranging from community development
departments to municipal airports. Joe assists in developing
client surveys, documenting current and future workflows, and
assists senior staff in conducting interviews, performing data
analysis, and preparing client deliverables.

Experience Highlights

Thurston County (WA): The firm was engaged by the Thurston
County Public Works Department to perform an operational
assessment of its Road Operations Division. On this project
Joe:

. Facilitated interviews with Road Operations leadership to
develop an understanding of current operations, staffing,
workload, and use of technology. This information was used
to create a profile of the organization.

. Performed data analysis in support of the project team. A
key task involved analyzing time code data to optimize
staffing allocations based on the type of work being
performed (surfacing, drainage, etc.).

. Administered a survey of all current Road Operations
employees. Analyzed survey data based to develop an

analytical report summarizing some key themes and
sentiments from the survey.

SDCWA (CA): As part of the assessment of San Diego County
Water Authority's (SDCWA) CIP program, Joe:

. Facilitated a process diagramming workshop to document
the current workflow associated with the CIP process.
Worked with other project team members to develop and
document a future CIP workflow.

. Provided analytical support to the rest of the project team.
This inchrded developing a current state assessment of the
CIP program, analyzing workload data, and participating in
staff interviews.

Project Role: Joe will support both teams with data analyst,
interviews, and stakeholder facilitation.

Matrix Consulting Group 10

Relevant Clients:

CA Rocklin
CA San Bernardino Co
CA San Dimas
CA SDCWA
CO Greeley
FL Clearwater
FL Dunedin
FL Naples
lA Cedar Rapids
NV Henderson
TN Knoxville
WA Thurston Co.
WV WVU

Years of Experience: 2

Education:

BA - Professional and
Technical
Communications,
University of South
Florida

Prcfessional
Association:

Florida City County
Managers Association
(FccMA)

Engaging Local
Government Leaders
(ELGL)

Society for Technical
Communications (STC)



Proposal for a Publrc Works Division Operations and Management Audit

ELIA TWIGG, PE

PRINCIPAL OWNER, LANTIC SOLUTIONS

Lockporl, NY

Elia Twigg is an accomplished licensed engineer, author and
speaker with 20 years of experience in engineering, construction,
and management. She has 10 years of operations and
management experience in the public sector including 3 7z years
as a Public Works Director for the City of Palm Bay, Florida.

Experience Highlights

Partnered with Matrix Consulting Group:

West Sacramento, CA: Elia was an analyst on the City's
comprehensive review of the Capital Projects Department. The
study evaluated the operations and staffing of Engineering,
Construction Management and Facilities. Key recommendations
included:
. lmplementation of best practices including utilization of

technology and development of specific policies and
procedures.

. Organizational and staffing improvements including enhanced
workload tracking and key performance measures.

Lantic Solutions:
Principal Engineer/Owner - Design septic systems (conventional,
drip irrigation, etc.), drainage plans for single family and
commercial properties, and small site plans and work with
contractors to have more efficiencies in their offices.

Consor Engineers, LLC:
. Sr. Project Engineer - directed complex construction

engineering administration and inspection projects and
developed policies, methods, practices, and procedures.

. Local Agency Manager - managed and expanded relations with
local governmental agencies.

. Other - developed in-house training for project managers and
for emergency response duties.

City of Palm Bay:
. Project Manager - Managed the City's major Public Works

capital projects and managed consultants.
. Division Manager over Operations - Managed the operations for

the division to include traffic operations, procurement, cost
estimating, maintenance, construction, scheduling, budgeting.

. Right-of-Way Services Manager

Project Role: Elia will serve as an analyst.

Relevant Clients:

CA San Bernardino Co
CA West Sacramento

Years of Experience: 20

Education:

University of Florida

Master of Engineering in

Civil Engineering

University of Florida
Bachelor of Science in Civil

Engineering

Licenses and
Certificaticns:

Florida Professional
Engineering License

Advanced MOT

Stormwater Erosion and

Sedimentation Control
lnspector

Publications:

Co-Author of Executive
Soft Skills Pocket Guide

sold in the APWA

bookstore.

Author of several APWA
Reporter Magazine articles
with subjects pertaining to
leadership and
management topics

Matrix Consulting Group 11



Prcposalto Conduct a PW Division Operations and Managemerrt Audit Lockporl, NY

2 Methodology and Timeline

This section of our proposal includes an overview of our project management approach,
followed by a detailed task plan.

Philosophy and Approach

The Matrix Consulting Group takes a clearly defined, client-centered project approach to
each study we conduct. Key elements of our philosophy and approach to providing
consulting services include the following:

' A principal of the firm is involved in every project, providing oversight, quality
control and management assistance for all our studies.

We are objective and data driven. We do not base our recommendations on
opinions or simple comparative measures. We ensure that our analysis is based
on a comprehensive understanding of our client's unique service level goals,
workloads, risks, regulations, and operating environment.

Our projects are approached with a firm grounding in analytical methodology. Our
clients receive detailed analysis of their specific issues. All impacts are identified
and analyzed in detail to ensure that recommendations can be implemented, and
our clients can understand the reason for change.

Our projects are characterized by extensive interaction between consultants and
clients, including both executive management and policy makers, as well as
supervisory and line-level staff. We will specifically speak to those individuals who
are involved in the respective operations and processes to learn more about their
roles and to obtain feedback regarding our analysis, findings, and potential
solutions.

We prioritize formal project management techniques to ensure clear
communication, timely task completion, and a thorough analysis of issues. We
take pride in delivering our work on time, on budget, and at a level of quality which
exceeds expectations.

These five pillars guide our work and result in successful projects and satisfied clients.

Project Task Plan

The City of Lockport is seeking an audit of the Public Works Division that will identify
opportunities for improvement in the City's public works operations and management.

Matrix Consulting Group 12



Proposalto Conduct a PW Division Operations and Management Audit Lockporl, NY

These oppoftunities need to include actionable solutions to enable the Cityto better serve
its citizens.

The following task plan outlines our proposed project task plan to conduct this
comprehensive assessment of Public Works.

Taskl I ProjectKickoff

ln this tasK the project team will work with leadership to identify a project steering
committee to work with our project team throughout the duration of the assessment.
Once identified, the project team will hold a virtual project initiation and kickoff meeting
with the City's project steering committee and appropriate City and Division leadership.
During this kickofl the City will share the study goals and desired scope of service
objectives. The project team will review the proposed task plan and schedule. As a result
of this project initiation, the project team will finalize the project schedule, data collection
instrument, and updated project task plan (if necessary). Then we will begin scheduling
initial interviews with leadership, staff, and steering committee members.

Task Deliverable - The project team will develop a kickoff meeting agenda and
provide a project schedule, data collection list, and updated work plan to the City's
project coordinator and schedule initial interviews with staff.

Task 2 | Develop an Existing Condition Assessment

To evaluate the Division's operations, processes, and work practices, we need to develop
an in-depth understanding of the key issues impacting and shaping service requirements
both internally and externally. To develop this perspective, we will conduct interviews with
staff, management and internal stakeholders who are involved in the various public works
activities. These interviews willfocus on understanding and documenting the following:

. Adequacy of service levels and gaps in existing levels of service.

' Goals and objectives for the delivery of services for each division.

Document technical skill set, training, and certifications of staff.

Adequacy of management systems and technology and the extent to which
managers utilize this information to make meaningful service decisions.

Outsourcing philosophy of the City/Division, the services that are currently
outsourced/contracted and additional candidates for alternative service delivery
to meet peak workload demands.

ldentification of relevant workload for staff in each functional area.

Matrix Consulting Group 13



Prcposal to Conduct a PW Division Operations and Management Audit Lockporl, NY

. Understand the current technology systems and utilization.

Next, we will develop a detailed description of the services provided by Public Works. Our
focus will be on how services are delivered, staffed, and managed, as well as the costs
associated with the delivery of those services. The development of this detailed
description will be based on interviews as well as on the collection of operating
information and data, including the following:

The current organization of the Division.

Documentation of all key operations

Service scope and content.
How staff are scheduled and deployed.
Workload data and base service levels.
The extent of any contracted services by type, size, and cost.

Documentation of management systems to support divisional operations

Organizational business processes and procedures; and

Performance monitoring systems.

Document current performance targets related to major services areas.

Document the current coordination mechanisms and procedures in place to
coordinate service delivery among different and divisions and teams.

Document how operations, processes, and workload has changed recently.

Once initial data collection activities have been completed, the project team will prepare
a document that presents our understanding of the current organization, staffing, and
operations.

Task Deliverable A current state assessment summarizing the current
organization staffing levels, roles, supervisor ratios, workload, procedures, and
technology used by the Division.

Task 3 | Conduct an OperationalAssessment

ln this task, our project team will utilize a best management practices assessment to
evaluate processes, policies, use of technology, management planning, and the general

operations of the Division. These include but are not limited to:

Matrix Consulting Group 14



Proposal to Conduct a PV\i Division Operations and Managernent Audit

Asset Management
Fleet Management
Maintenance Management
Personnel Management and Organization

Emergency Response
Environmental Compliance
Customer Service
Performance Metrics

Lockporl, NY

We will address these issues by employing several different approaches, such as those
outlined below:

Best Practice Assessment: The best practice assessment will include the
identification of areas where the Division currently meets the best practice and
more importantly, the analysis will identify areas where current gaps and
shortcomings exist and therefore present opportunities for improvement of
existing operations. The best practice assessment will begin to clearly identify
major operational issues and will include preliminary analysis of workload and
process data.

Evaluate the adequacy of major work practices. This analysis will include the
review of divisional workload. Additional analysis will focus on the identification
of opportunities to streamline internal processes and assignments as well as work
practices to increase productivity and/or enhance their effectiveness. Also, we will
identify the degree to which key projects or work tasks are not being accomplished
(due to lack of prioritization, staff, etc.) and assess the extent to which tasks could
be absorbed through streamlining of work process, if at all. Analysis will also focus
on defining specific roles of various staff within each division and updating
corresponding job duties if needed. Process diagrams will be revised if significant
process reengineering is recommended.

Evaluate performance management and metrics. This effort will analyze the
effectiveness of managing performance in the Division. Public Works operations
require effective management to ensure that staff are appropriately scheduled,
deployed, utilized and held accountable for performance. The project team will
evaluate this in terms of the following:

Does the department make use of effective performance metrics?
How are goals, objectives and service leveltargets developed?
Are established metrics tracked and reported out routinely?
Are established metrics communicated to staff at all levels?
Do managers have accurate and timely measures of performance?

Evaluate customer service including internal and externalcustomers. The project
team will analyze the level of service provided to both internal and external

Matrix Consulting Group 15



Proposal to Conduct a PW Division Operations and Management Audit Lockporl, NY

customers. The project team will address coordination between divisions for the
various business processes and approach used for public outreach and education.

Evaluate current technology systems. This task will focus on understanding and
assessing current technology systems utilized by the Division. The project team
will evaluate the current software suites to evaluate how effectively all
functionalities of the software have been implemented, degree to which GIS and
CMMS systems are implemented and utilized, how mobile and handheld devices
are used in the field, and the degree to which current systems result in efficient
information-sharing and elimination of duplicative input. We will also evaluate how
proposed changes to the use of technology may impact efficiencies and
operations and identify any current issues related to accessibility and training
related to the use of technology.

ln conjunction with earlier interviews and data collection, the project team will, at this
juncture, be able to evaluate the efficiency of performance of current tasks and identify
changes needed to increase consistency or increase the efficiency and effectiveness of
the services provided.

Task Deliverable - A summary of the analysis and key findings in work practices,
policies and procedures, service levels, customer service, operations, and use of
technology in the Public Works Division.

Task 4 | Conduct a Staffing and OrganizationatAssessment

This task involves an evaluation of workload, staffing levels, management practices and
the organizational structure. We will evaluate these areas by employing several different
approaches, such as those outlined below:

Evaluate staff resource$. ln this analysis, we will evaluate the existing and
projected workload to identify the staffing resources needed to complete these
work tasks in respect to desired service levels. This will include a review of both
internal and contracted staffing resources.

Assess how the Division is organized. The project team will evaluate the plan of
organization for the Division and each primary work group. We will utilize several
principles in the evaluation of organizational structure including:

Does the approach to organizing development foster accountability and are
supervisor spans of control appropriate and consistent?

Does the current organizational structure provide adequate communication
and coordination and enhance shared knowledge?

Matrix Consulting Group 16



Proposalto Conduct a PW Division Operations and Management Audit Lockporl, NY

Do the plans of organization enable staff to provide better public service?

ls there consistency among organizational structure, employee
classification, and roles and responsibilities between divisions and teams?

The result of this analysis will be a proposed organizational structure highlighting
any changes (if necessary) for the Public Works Division.

' Evaluate management practices. The project team will evaluate how best
practices are implemented and monitored, the extent to which managers are
implementing effective asset management techniques, effective operational
practices, identifying needed training for employees, and implementing, tracking,
and reporting on performance measures.

At the conclusion of this task the project team will have evaluated the staffing, structure,
and management of the Division.

Task Deliverable - A summary of the analysis and key findings in organizational
structure, staffing allocation and resources, and management practices.

Task 5 | Prepare a Draft and Final Report

Once the work tasks noted above have been completed, our analysis, findings, and
conclusions will be documented and reviewed with the project steering committee. The
draft and final reports will contain the following elements:

' An executive summary that includes the recommendations with implementation
plans for each showing the priority, lead entity for recommendation
implementation, timeframe, and any costs/savings.

' Detailed analysis of the staffing and operations of the Public Works Division along
with recommendations to improve the current approaches. ldentification of
improvement opportunities relating to philosophies and commitments of the
Division, staffing required given these commitments, and managerial and
operational practices for improved service delivery.

Once staff and the internal steering committee have reviewed the draft final report and
implementation timeframe and provided input, we would develop the final report. We will
be available to make a presentation of our findings and recommendations to the City
Manager and/or City Council.

i Task Deliverable - The product of this task would be the draft and final reports
! including an implementation plan.

Matrix Consulting Group 17



Proposalto Conduct a PW Division 0perations and Management Audit Lockport, NY

Timeline

We have proposed a work plan that would complete the assessment over a six month
time period. The following graphic outlines the proposed project schedule.

Month
Task123456
1. Project Kickoff
2. Existing Condition Assessment

3. Operational Assessment
4. Staffin g/Org Assessment
5. Draft and Final Report

Deliverables associated with each task will be provided at the conclusion of the task.

Matrix Consulting Group 18



Proposalto Conduct a PW Division 0perations and Management Audit Lockport, NY

3 Cost Proposal

We propose to conduct the operations and management audit of Lockport's Public Works
Division for $65,600. This includes up to $4,800 for travel expenses for one site visit for
up to three staff. Additional site visits can be negotiated based on the needs of the client.
The breakdown of the cost proposal is shown in the table below.

Task
Project

Principal Manager

Lead
Analyst /

Subs.
Total

Hours Total FeeAnalyst
1. Project Kickoff
2. Existing Condition Assessment

3. Operational Assessment

4. Staffing/0rg Assessment
5. Draft and Final Report

2

2

2

2

4

4

32

32

16

16

4

32

40

24

24

4

32

40

24

24

14 $z,ooo
98 $t 0,000

114 $r S,OOO

66 $r r,ooo
68 $t't,600

TotalHours 12 100 124 124 360

Hourly Rate

Total Professional Fees

s30o

$g,ooo

Szoo

$zo,ooo
s1 7s

$zt,zoo
$1 25

$t s,soo $oo,goo
Travel Expenses $4,Boo

Total Project Cost $os,ooo

Matrix Consulting Group 19



Proposalto Conduct a PW Division Operations and Management Audit Lockporl, NY

4 Sample Audit Report

The following link contains the sample audit report for the audit of the Gilroy, California
Public Works Department.

https:1/drive.google.com/file/d1l m-Lj2etXgvlzxTu6CGog4uln DOhZplm/view?usp=share link

Matrix Consulting Group 20



City of Lockpoft Budget Worksheet Report
Budget Year 2024

2020 Actual 2021 Actual 2022 Actual 2023 Amended 2024 Department 2024qayor

Fund A-GeneralFund
E(PENSE

54050

54055

54070

54078

54100

Department 19OO - Special Items
Contradua/

Equip. Maintenance/Repair

Professional Services

Budget Transactions

Let/el

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Insumnce

Budget Transactions

Level

Adopted

Adopied

54440 Fees & Permib

Budget Transactions

Level

Adopted

54510 Program Expenses

Budget Transactions

Leve/

Adopted

4L4.75

Transactlbn

Chrrter Update

Crrprehensive Zoning Project

Public Works Audit

242,5U.38

700,776.96

22,807.68

hansaction

Special city, school and county cosls,

313.80

.00.00.UU.00.00.00

.00 31,200.00

260,4s9.74

146,153.13

22,432.97

307.36

43,7s0.00

305,896.49

261,998.30

21,884.93

279.t8

45,000.00

312,620.00

284,000.00

27,s00.00

500.00

45,000.00

Number of UniG

1.0000

1.0000

1.0000

354,000.00

Number af Unib
1.0000

Number of Unib
1.0000

28,000.00

Number of Units

1.0000

500.00

Number of Unib
1.0000

4,620.00

Number of Unib
1.0000

220,000.00

fust Per Unit
100,000.00

45,000.00

75,000.00

Cost Per Unit

380,000.00

Adopted Tofals

Cost Per Unit

240,000.00

Adopted Totals

28,000.00

Cost Fer Unlt

28,000.00

Adopted Totals

500.00

bst Per Unit

500.00

Adopted Totals

33,620.00

Cost Per Unit

9,000.00

220,000.00

Total Amount

100,000.00

45,000.00

7s,000.00

Total An ount

380,000.00

240,000.00

Tota/ Anount
240,000.00

28,000.00

Tota/ Amount

28,000.00

500.00

Total Amount

500.00

33,620.00

Tobl Anount
9,000.00

380,000.00 380,000.00

Transadion

Evans Agency Insurance

Gasoline, Oil, Diesel Fuel

Budget Transactions

Leve/

Adopted

Transadion

Wo( Monthly Fuel Purchases

Real Property Taxes - Town, Counb-r/, Special Assess
not Exempt

Budget Transactions

Level

240,000.00 240,000.00

Trensachan

llYS Permit and annual fees for plates

Transactton

Ctizen Texting Notifications

Run byTim Russo on IU09/2023 L4:05:47 PM

72,726.05 2,153.56 798.56 6,120.00

Page 31 of 100



q

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form
For Finance De rtment

For Finance Diredor to Fill Out:

Dote of Approval: tu22/2023 Resolution:

Agenda Description: Amend Fire Chief Contract

MayorProposed By: Date Submitted 7/t/2023

Pleose provide to Findnce Director ot ledst two weeks prior to Council meeting.

mary: This resolution would authorize the City to enter into an amended agreement with the
current Chief. This contract has the following changes (1) a newly established COLA from FY 2024 to FY

2026 (varying amounts from 1.75 to 2%), (2) defined comp time establishment.

Financial lmpact (for current and following year): The proposed COLA for FY 2024 has already been
budgeted in the FY 2024 budget and as such, no budgetary action is required.

Explanation of attachments: (1") financial opinion memo.

For Requests lnvolving Budget Amendments:

lncrease Line ltem: Decrease Line ltem:

NA NA



RESOLUTION #3 AMEND FIRE CHIEF CONTRACT

Whereas, the Fire Chief of the City of Lockport is a position that is not represented by a
collective bargaining unit; and

Whereas, the City of Lockport and the Fire Chief desire to enter into an amended written
Employment Agreement thereby describing the salary, benefits and terms of employment for the Fire
Chief; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby authorizes the Mayorto execute the attached
Employment Agreement with Fire Chief Luca Quagliano;



Crry on Locrconr
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094
(716) 439-6631
E-mail: trusso@lockportny.gov

TIM RUSSO
Director of Finance

- FINANCAL OPINION MEMO -

Proposed July 24,2023, Submitted for Council November 22,2023

To: Mayor Roman, Corporation Counsel, Council Members
tr'rom: Director of Finance

Regarding: Amendments to Police and Fire Chief Contracts
Opinion Requested By: Mayor Roman
Data Used in Determination (Attached): New Contract, Current Contract
Other Parties Consulted / Referenced / Involved in Determination: N/A

This proposal would amend (1) the Police Chief s contract by adding in 5 additionalvacation
days starting in2024, and (2) the Fire Chief s contract by including an annual cost of living adjustment
on January I ofeach year that is identical to that ofthe proposed unrepresented contract (average of
CSEA and Department Head contracts). Estimated costs are shown below:

Fire Chief Current 2024 2025 2026
COLA NA 2.OO% 1.7s% 2.OO%

Salary S ros,ooo S tos,ooo S 106,899 S 109,037

Retirement S zo,ooo S zt,otz s 21,380 5 2I,807
FICA S z,aeo S a,ogz S 8,178 S s,gqr
Total $ 131,480 $ 134,109 S rgs,+se s 139,185

Cost of COLA S 2,630 S 4,976 S 7,706

Funding for the Fire Chief s COLA are already included in the FY 2024 appropriation and
as such, no budgetary action is required. There is no funding increase associated to the Police Chief
contract.

Thank you,

---t2?2"",.fu-
Tim Russo
Finance Director



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
FIRE CHIEF

DATE:

PARTIES: CITY OF LOCKPORT, with an address at Municipal Building, One Locks Plaza,
lockport, New York 14094 (hereinafter the "City"],

and

LUCA QUAGLIANO, residing at 700 Niagara Street, Lockport, New York 1,4094
(hereinafter the "Chief").

1. EMPTOYMENT STATUS

The Chief shall serve in the capacity of Chief of the Fire Department for the City and as such
shall be considered an "at will" employee and shall not be a part of any collective bargaining
unit or entitled to any benefits or protections therefrom.

2. TERM

The Chief shall serve at the pleasure of the Mayor and the Fire Board and is terminable at will.
Likewise, the Chief may terminate this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the
Mayor.

3. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

As compensation for services to the City during the term of this Agreement, in whatever
capacity rendered, the Chief shall be paid a total salary of 5103,000 annually based upon a 40
hour work wee( payable in equal installment, not less than bi-week . Such com n shall
include all lo educati com and briefin

The additional
benefits afforded to the Chief by this Agreement shall be as stated in Appendix 1 to this
Agreement.

4. POSITION AND DUTIES

The City shall employ the Chief as its Chief of Fire. The Chief's powers and duties shall be those
contained in the City Charter and as directed by the Fire Board and the Mayor from time-to-
time. The Chief shall report to the Mayor. The Chief shall devote his best efforts and full
business time and energy to the business of the City.



5. RESIDENCY

Section 45(1) of the Charter of the City of Lockport states that emergency situations arise that
require employees of the City of Lockport to be near their place of employment, to assume the
continuation of public services to protect the health, safety and general welfare of the people
and that those who are residents of the City of Lockport take a greater interest in promoting
the public safety and health in the future of this community than do nonresidents who reside in
areas unaffected by City of Lockport services. Therefore, the Chief must be a resident of the
City of Lockport.

6. VEHICTES AND EQUIPMENT USE

Any vehicle required for business use by the Chief shall be from the existing vehicle fleet of the
City. ln the event of any personal use of such vehicle, the Chief shall appropriately document
such use and submit periodic reports of such use to the City. Any personal use shall be
considered income to the Chief and reported as such to the Chief and the appropriate
government entities and LR.S. reimbursement rate and the Chief shall be solely responsible for
and subject to any taxes due as a result thereof.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Chief acknowledges that this position is entrusted with confidential information about
certain companies and individuals and as such, the Chief agrees that he shall not, during and
after the term of his employment, disclose all or any part of the confidential information of the
City to any person, firm, corporation, association, or other entity for any reason or purpose
(confidential information means any information not generally known to the public, or which if
known became known as a result of a breach of duty or wrongful act, which information
pertains to the business operations of the City and which became or becomes known to the
Chief or was or is generated by the Chief in the course of his employment with the City.
Confidential information includes, but is not limited to, costs, estimates, programs, forecasts,
negotiating positions, and strategic plans.) The Chief hereby stipulates and agrees that a breach
of this paragraph will result in irreparable damage and injury to the City, for which no monetary
damages could adequately compensate. Thus, if the Chief breaches this paragraph, in addition
to all other remedies to which the City may be entitled, the Chief agrees that the City shall be
entitled to an injunction to enforce the provisions of this Agreement, to be issued by any court
of ctlmpetent jurlsdlctlon, to enjoin and restrain the Chief and each and every person, tirm or
corporation, concerned or acting in concert with the Chief, from the continuation of such
breach. The Chief waives any claim or defense that an adequate remedy at law exists for any
such breach. The obligations of the Chief pursuant to this paragraph shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

8. CONFLTCTS



The Chief represents that he is not under any legal or contractualobligation that would conflict
in any manner with his duties and obligations that the execution and performance of this
Agreement by the Chief shall not breach any agreement to which he is a party or by which he is
bound.

9. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

The City shall provide for the defense and indemnification of the Chief for actions or omissions
made in the ordinary course of this employment. Employee shall request assistance under this
section by forwarding any and all suits or subpoenas or by making a written request to the
Corporation Counsel and Mayor within three (3) business days of their receipt of any summons,
complaints, process, notice, demand, or pleading that my require defense and indemnification
coverage.

10. NON-WAIVER

The waiver or failure to take action with regard to any breach of any term or condition of this
Agreement shall not be deemed to constitute a continuing waiver or waiver of any other breach
of the same or any other term or condition hereof.

11. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement shall be binding on the City, its successors and assigns. This Agreement is for
the unique personalservices of the Cityand is not assignable, ordelegable, in whole or in part,
by the Chief.

12. MODIFICATION

No modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed and
dated by each of the parties thereto to be bound.

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The terms and provisions of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the
parties and supersede any previous oral or written communications, representations, or
agreements with respect to the subject matter thereof.

14. MISCELLANEOUS

lf any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is

held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provisions to other
persons and circumstances shall not be affected thereby. Paragraph headings contained in this
Agreement are for convenience of reference purposes only and shall not effect in any way the



meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced
in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

This entire agreement is subject to Common Council approval.

lN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written
below.

CITY OF LOCKPORT:

Dated:

CHIEF:

Dated

BY

BY:



APPENDIX 1

1. A Salarv in the amount of 5103,000 annually based upon a 40 hour work
week. The salary listed above will include all Longevity, Education,

Compensatory Time and Briefing Pay. The following longevity pay increases

shall be applicable:

a. 20 year anniversary = $1,250.00
b. 25 year anniversary = $1,500.00
c. 30 year anniversary = $2,000.00

2. Sick Leave will be accrued at the rate of 1.25 day per month and may be

carried over year to year. The sick leave may be utilized in hourly
increments between one (1) hour and eight (8) hours per day.

3. All accrued time earned by the Fire Chief throughout his career shall be
paid to the Fire Chief upon retirement. The Fire Chief shall have the right to
elect to receive the buyout payment in one installment paid within ninety
days of his retirement, or in three (3) equal annual installments paid after
his retirement. The Fire Chief's buyout shall be paid in accordance with
Employment Policy Manual for Unrepresented Department Heads.

4. Personal Leave-Three (3) days peryear. These days must be used in the
calendar year they are awarded.

5. Vacation Leave - Annual leave will be earned and credited monthly. The

Chief will accrue 2.084 days per month, which can be used when earned in
a minimum of half day increments. The Chief can carry a maximum balance

of twenty-five (25) days of accumulated annual leave credit on their
anniversary date, but can continue to accrue over the twenty-five (25) days

during any one year.

6. Paid Holidays shall match the City Hall holidays (currently 14 days). tf
worked, the holiday shall be "floating" and may be used later in the



calendar year with the provision that any unused holidays cannot be

carried over into the next calendar year.

7. The Fire Chief will not earn overtime compensation. The Fire Chief may
earn "Flex" time to account for hours worked outside normal business
hours attending meetings, events, and emergency incidents. tiid "Flex"
time, if not used during the pay period earned, shall be considered
"Compensatory Time." All Compensatory Time shall be utilized within the
calendar year that it was earned. No Compensatory time may be carried
over at the end of any calendar year. There shall be no "buy out" of
Compensatory time.

8. The Fire Chief shall be entitled to utilize bereavement leave, at his

discretion, as follows:

a. Four (4) days for immediate family members (parents, siblings,

spouse, children).

b. Three (3) days for father-in-law, mother-in-law, and siblings-in-law

9. Health lnsurance as provided to all other city employees at no cost to the
employee during their employment and through retirement pursuant to
the Employment Policy Manual for Unrepresented Department Heads.

10.The City shall provide the Fire Chief with an HRA card and deposit
S1,OOO.OO annually to said account. The funds may accrue from year to
year, and the unused balance shall be the sole property of the Fire Chief
upon his retirement. No additional HRA funds shall be added to the account
upon or during the Fire Chief's retirement. Nothing in this section shall
require to Fire Chief or the City to maintain or operate the HRA in a manner
contrary to Federal Law or Regulations.

11.Should the Fire Chief have another source of health insurance, such as a

spouse providing health insurance coverage, the Fire Chief will be

reimbursed S1,500 for opting out of City health insurance.



12. Upon retirement, 50% of the value of unused sick leave accrued will be paid
in a lump sum at the time of retirement. Any unused sick time not paid out
shall be applied to retirement service credit under Section 4t) of the New
York Social Security and Retirement Law. Any vacation, personal leave days,
earned during the year will be paid in full.

13.Continued participation in the New York State Police and Fire Retirement
System.

L4.Future raises shall be recommended to the City Council by the Mayor based
upon an annual performance appraisal conducted by the Mayor in

conjunction with the Fire Board.

15.The Fire Chief shall be entitled to an annual uniform allowance in the
amount of 5950.00. Said uniform allowance shall be paid during the month
ofJanuary each year.

16.4llterms, benefits and rules included in the Employment Policy Manual for
Unrepresented Department Heads dated October 24,2018, or as thereafter
modified, shall apply to the Fire Chief.



5

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form
For Finance artment

For Findnce Director to Fill Out:

Date of Approval: r7/22/2023 Resolution:

Agenda Description Amend Police Chief Contract

MayorProposed By: Date Submitted 7/1./2023

Please provide to Finonce Diredor dt leost two weeks prior to Council meeting.

Summary: This resolution would authorize the City to enter into an amended agreement with the
current Chief. This contract has the following changes (1) increased notice for employee resignation,, (2)

increased vacation accruals, and (3) defined comp time establishment.

Financial lmpact (for current and following year): There are no amendments that would produce a

budgetary impact.

Explanation of attachments: (1) financial opinion memo.

For Requests Involving Eudget Amendments:

lncrease Line ltem: Decrease Line ltem:

NA NA



RESOLUTION #4 AMEND POLICE CHIEF CONTRACT

Whereas, the Police Chief of the City of Lockport is a position that is not represented by a

collective bargaining uni! and

Whereas, the City of Lockport and the Police Chief desire to enter into an arnended written
Employment Agreement thereby describing the salary, benefits and terms of employment for the Police

Chief; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the City of Lockport hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute the attached
Employment Agreement with Police Chief Steven Abbot!



Crry on LocrcoRr
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094
(716) 439-6631
E-mail: trusso@lockportny.gov

TIM RUSSO
Director of Finance

* FINANCUL OPINION MEMO -

Proposed July 24,2023, Submitted for Council November 22,2023

To: Mayor Roman, Corporation Counsel, Council Members
From: Director of Finance

Regarding: Amendments to Police and Fire Chief Contracts
Opinion Requested By: Mayor Roman
Data Used in Determination (Attached): New Contract, Current Contract
Other Parties Consulted / Referenced / Involved in Determination: N/A

This proposal would amend (1) the Police Chief s contract by adding in 5 additional vacation
days starting in2024,and(2) the Fire Chief s contractby including an annual cost of living adjustment
on January I ofeach yearthat is identical to that ofthe proposed unrepresented contract (average of
CSEA and Department Head contracts). Estimated costs are shown below:

Fire Chief Current 2024 2025 2026

COLA NA 2.00% 1.75% 2.00%

Salary S rog,ooo S ros,ooo S i.o6,899 $ 109,037

Retirement S zo,ooo S zt,otz $ 21,380 5 2t,8O7

FICA S z,ggo S a,orz S g,tzg S ag+r
Total S 131,480 S 194,109 S rge,ase $ 139,18s

Cost of COLA S 2,630 5 4,976 5 7,706

Funding for the Fire Chief s COLA are already included in the FY 2024 appropriation and
as such, no budgetary action is required. There is no funding increase associated to the Police Chief
contract.

Thank you,

---2-32,2,"../z/A_
Tim Russo
Finance Director



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
CHIEF OF POLICE

DATE: Effective January 1,2024

PARTIES: CITY OF LOCKPORT, with an address at Municipal Building, One Locks Plaza,
Lockport, New York 14094 (hereinafter called the "City) and

STEVEN ABBOTT, residing at 192 Grand Street, Lockport, New York. 14094
(hereinafter called the "Employee" or "Chief).

I. EMPLOYMENT STATUS

The Employee shall serve in the capacity of CHIEF OF POLICE for the City and as such shall
be considered an "at will" employee and will not be part of any collective bargaining unit or
entitled to any benefits thereof.

2. TERM

The Chief shall sen e at the pleasure of the Mayor and is terminable at will. Likewise,
Enrployee may terminate this agreerrrent upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Mayor..

3. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

As compensation for services to the City during the tenn of this Agreement, in whatever
capacity rendered, the Employee shall be paid a total salary of $103,000 annually based
upon a 40- hour work week, payable in equal convenient installments, not less than
biweekly. Such cornpensation shall include all longevity, education and briefing pay. The
Common Council may authorize future raises, based upon performance appraisals
conducted by the Mayor in conjunction with the Police Board. The benefits afforded to
Employee by this Agreement shall be as stated in Appendix I to this Agreement

4. POSITION AND DUTIES

The City shall ernploy Employee as its Chief of Police. The Employee's powers and duties
shall be those contained in the job description annexed hereto and made part hereof as

Appendix 2. and as Ernployee may be directed from time-to-time by the Mayor. The Employee
shall report to the Mayor. The Employee shall devote his best efforts and full business time and
energy to the business of the City.

5. RESIDENCY

Scution 45(l) uf the Charter of the City of Lockpor"t states that emergency situations arise

which require employees of the City of Lockport to be near their place of employment, to
assume the continuation of public services to protect the health, safety, and general

welfare of the people and that those who are residents of the City of Lockport take a grearer
interest in promoting the public safety and health in the future of this community than do



nonresidents who reside in areas unaffected by City of Lockport services. Therefore,
employees hired nrust be residents of the City of Lockport.

6. VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT USE

Any vehicle required for business use by the Employee shall be from the existing vehicle fleet
of the City. In the event of any personaluse of such vehicle, the Employee shall appropriately
document such use and submit periodic reports of such use to the City. Any personal use shall
be considered income to the Employee and reported as such to the Employee and the
appropriate govemment entities and I.R.S. reimbursement rate and the Employee shall be
solely responsible for and subject to any taxes due as a result thereof.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Employee acknowledges that this position is entrusted with confidential information
about certain companies and individuals and as such the Employee agrees that he shall not,
during and after the term of his employment, disclose all or any part of the confidential
information of the City to any person, firm, corporation, association , or other entity for any
reason or purpose (Confidential infomation means any information not generally known to
the public, or which if known became known as a result of a breach of duty or wrongful act,
which infonnation pertains to the business operations of the City and which became or
becomes known to Employee or was or is generated by Employee in the course of his
employment with the Employer. Confidential information includes, but is not limited to,
costs, estimates, programs, forecasts, negotiating positions, and strategic plans.) The
Employee hereby stipulates and agrees that a breach of this paragraph will result in
irreparable damage and injury to the City, for which no money damages could adequately
compensate. Thus, if the Employee breaches this paragraph. in addition to all other remedies
to which the City may be entitled, the Employee agrees that the City shall be entitled to an
injunction to enforce the provisions of the Agreement, to be issued by any court of competent
jurisdiction, to enjoin and restrain the Employee and each and every person, firm or
corporation, concerned or" acting in conceft with the Employee, from the continuance of such
breach. The Employee waives any claim or defense that an adequate remedy at law exists fbr
any such breach. The obligations of the Employee pursuant to this paragraph shall survive the
termination of this agreement.

8. CONFLICTS
The Employee represents that he is not under any legal or contractual obligation that would
conflict in any manner with his duties and obligations that the execution and performance of
this Agreement by the Employee shall not breach any agreement to which he is a party or by
which he is bound.



9. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

The City shall provide for the defense and indemnification of Ernployee for actions or
omissions made in the ordinary course of this employment. Employee shall request assistance
under this section by forwarding any and all suits or subpoena or by making a written request
to the CityAttorney and Mayor within three (3) business days of their receipt or any
summons, complaint, process, notice, denland, or pleading that rnay require defense and
indemnifi cation coverage.

IO. NON-WAIVER

The waiver or frilure to take action with regard to any breach of any term or condition of
this Agreement shall not be deemed to constitute a continuing waiver or waiver of any other
breach of the same or any other term or condition hereof.

I I. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement shall be binding on the City, its successors and assigns. This Agreement is for
the unique personal services of the Employee and is not assignable, or delegable, in whole or
in part, by the Employee.

12. MODIFICATION

No modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed and
dated by each ofthe parties thereto to be bound.

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The terms and provisions of the Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the
parties and supersede any previous oral or written communications, representations, or
agreements with respect to the subject matter thereof.

I4. MISCELLANEOUS

If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is
held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provisions to other
persons and circumstances shall not be affected thereby. Paragraph headings. contained in this
Agreement are for convenience of reference purposes only and shall not effect in any way the
meaning or intetpretation of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first
above written.



This entire agreement is subject to Common Council approval

IN WITNESS THEREO$ the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year rvritten belor.v.

CITY OF LOCKPORT:

BY Dated:

CHIEF

BY Dated



APPENDIX 1

POLICE CHIEF COMPENSAIION PACKAGE

l. Sick Leave will be accrued at the rate of 1 day per month and may be carried over year to year.

2. Personal Leave- Three (3) days per year. These days must be used in the calendar year they are awarded.

3. Vacation Leave - Annual leave will be earned and credited monthly. Employee will accrue M
days/month, which can be used when earned in a minimum ofhalf day increments. Employee can carry
a maximum balance of 25 days of accumulated annual leave credit on their anniversary date, but can
continue to accrue over the 25 days during any one year.

5. Paid Holidays - 10 days. If worked, the holiday may be used later in the year with the plovision that
any unused holidays cannot be carried over into the next calendar year.

6. Upon retirement, 50% of the value of unused sick leave accrued will be paid in a lump sum at the time
of retirement. Any vacation, personal leave days, earned during the year will be paid in full.

7. Uniform purchases, replacement, and/or reimbursements will be submitted to the Mayor for review
and approval.



b

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form
For Finance De rtment

For Finance Director to Fill Out:

Date of Approval: 1"t/22/2023 Resolution

Authorize Purchases from H204 lnfrastructure FundAgenda Description:

Proposed By:
Chief Treatment Plant

Operator
Date Submitted: trl6/2023

PIeose provide to Finonce Directot ot leost two weeks ptior to Councll meeting.

mary: This resolution would authorize the City to proceed with two improvements with water
filtration - (1) a major turbidity system upgrade to monitor the filters, and (2) filter plant heating system
upgrades.

Financial lmpact (for current and following year): The total cost for the turbidity improvement is

559,715 and is via NY State Contract #PC67243. The total cost of the heating improvement is 58,792 and
is NY State Contract #PC69879. The total cost of both projects is 568,507 which would be expensed from
the H204 FX infrastructure improvement fund. There is 546,685 in this fund, and 521,822 would be
moved into the fund from the FX contingency account, which has 5L07,979 of the original S108,779
budget remaining in FY 2023.

attachments: (1) resolution, (2) two quotes, (3) email explanation, (4) H204 budgetExplanation of
report, (5) water contingency report.

For Requests lnvolving Budget Amendments:

lncrease Line ltem: Decrease Line ltem:

FX.9901.592000.H lnterfund to Capital 52L,822 A.7900.547 7 5 Co nti nge ncy 521,822



RESOLUTION #5 AUTHORIZE PURCHASES FROM H2O4INFRASTRUCURE FUND

Whereas, the City of Lockport's Water Filtration Chief Operator has requested plant
improvements to the turbidity system and heating system; and

Whereas, the department has compiled a quote for turbidity improvements from Hach for a

total of 559,71,4.87 under NY State Contract#PC67243; and

Whereas, the department has compiled a quote for heating system improvements from
Grainger for a total of S8,791.16 under NY State Contract #PC69879; and

Resolved, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby approves of the City to enter into
agreement with Hach and Grainger, utilizing funds in the H204 capital project (FX lnfrastructure
lmprovements) and that the FY 2023 Water Fund Budget is amended as follows:

Expenditures

Decrease

FX.1900.54775 Contingency $2!,822

lncrease

FX.9901.59000.H lnterfund to Capital 52L,822



GRAITVGER. QuotationII
100 Gralnger Pkwy
Lake Forest lL 60045.5201
www.grainger.com
$00l,472-4643

CITY OF LOCKPORT WATER

220 SUMMIT ST

LOCKPORTNY 14094-4860

CITY OF LOCKPORT WATER

1 LOCKS PLZ

LOCKPORTNY 14094-3640

CIry OF LOCKPORT WATER

220 SUMMIT ST

LOCKPORTNY 140944860

Grainger Quote Number

Quote Start Date

Quote Expiration Date

Creation Date

Grainger EIN Number

PO#
PO Create Date

PO Release #
Customer Number

Department Number

ProjecVJob Number

Requisitioner Name

Attention

Caller

Telephone Number

Page

2055992258

1110112023

1210112023

11t0'U2023

36-1 150280

80123551 6

PC69879

MARK SMITH

7168076822

't 12

We will deliver according to the following terms and conditions:
lncoterms@ 2020: FOB DESTINATION

Freight Terms: Prepaid

Carrier: * See line item detail

PaymentTerms: Net 30 days after invoice date

sp9clal lnstructlon6:

Exhaust Fan,36ln Bl,Alum,208-230/460V

Manufacturer: DAYTON

Part Number: 10D994

Customer Part No.: NYS#PC69879

10D994

Carrier:

Origin: CN

2.00

2,424,72

2,596.24

2.00

10 10D994 EA 1,298.12

20 5PV29 EA 1,2't2,36Hydronic Unit Heater,Hrzntl,260Ocfm

Manufacturer: DAYTON

xcxs376



GRAITYGER-
IIT'

100 Grainger Pkwy
Lake Forest lL 60045-5201
www.grainger.com
(8001472-4643

Quotation

Grainger Quote Number

Creation Date

Customer Number

Page

2055992258

11t0'.U2023

801235516

2t2

Part Number: 5PV29

Customer Part No.: NYS#PC69879

5PV29

Carrier:

Origin: US

30 5PV54 Hydronic Unit Heater,Vrtcl, 1490cfm

Manufacturer: DAYTON

Part Number: 5PV54

Customer Part No.: NYS#PC69879

5PV54

Carrier:

Origin: US

4.00 EA 942.55 3,770.20

Sub Total 8,791.16

Total USD $ 8,791.16
Thank you for the opportunity to provide this quotation.

Please reference our Grainger quote number when you are ready to place your order.

Any changes to the products and/or quantities identified in the quotation may result in different pricing.

Quoted shipping charges and delivery date are subject to change. Upon acceptance of the quotation by customer, Grainger will
provide actual shipping charges for the order, if applicable.

This transaction is subject to the cunent contract between customer and Grainger; or if no contract exists, the Terms of Sale
located at hft ps://www. grainger.com/contenVmc/policies/terms-of-sale.

xcxs376



Be Right*

Quotation

Quote Number: 100972060v1
Use quote number at time of order to ensure
that you receive prices quoted

Quote Date: tO/20/2023 Quote Expiratio n: 72h9 / 2023

CITY OF LOCKPORT

WATER DEPT

1 LOCKS PLZ

LOCKPORT, NY 14094-3640

Name: DENNIS MCNAMARA

Phone: (716) 439-6726
Email: dmcnamara@lockportny.gov

Customer Account Number : 162953
Customer Quote Reference: NY State Contract #PC67243

Sales Contact: Dominic Attardi Email: dattardi@hach.com Phone:800-227-4224

Hach

PO Box 608
Loveland, CO 80539-0608
Phone: (800)227-4224
Email: quotes@hach.com
Website: www.hach.com

PRICING QUOTATION

7
lTUs Serieso TU5300sc Low Range Laser Turbidimeter with Flow Sensor,

lAutomatic Clcaning, RFID, and Systern Clreck, ISO Velsion. Starrdard lead

Itime 25 days.

LXV445.95.53122 L2 3,7t1.22 44,534,64

2 ISC2OO Universal Controller: 100-240 V AC with two digitalsensor inputs,

Iwodbus R5232/RS485 and two 4-20 mA outputs. Standard lead time 15 days.
1XV404.99.01552 2 3,570.51 7,r41.r4

3 ISC1OOO 
Probe Module, 4 Sensors with Conduits, Modbus RS485, 110-24OVAC

lwith Conduits. Standard lead time 25 days.
1XV400.99.14072 t 1,978.8C 1,978.8C

4 ldb ee SC1OOO Multi-parameter Universa

lcsv/cpns). Standard lead time 5 days.

I Controller Display Module (without
1XV402,99.00002 t 4,240.84 4,240.84

5 lReplacement Vial for TU5300sc and TU5400sc Online Laser Turbidimeter
lstandard lead time 3 days.

LZY834 5 47.67 238.35

6 InS+SS to USB Converter Kit. Standard lead time 15 days.5920400 t 1,581.1C 1,581.10

DescriptionLine Part Number Qty Net Unit Price Extended Price

59,714.87Grand Total S



TERMS OF SALE

Freight: Prepaid By Shipper - Agreement FCA: Hach's facility

ALL LEADTIMES ARE ESTIMATED AND NOT GUARANTEED,

All purchasss of Hach Company products and/or servicss are expressly and wlthout limltation subject to Hach Gompany's Terms & Conditions of Sale ("Hach TCS"), lncorporated

Hach TCS: (l) Buyer's issuance of a purchase order document against Hach's ofer; (ii) acknowledgement of Buyer's order by Hach; or (iii) commencement of any performancs by Hach
pursuant to Buysr's order' Provisions contalned in Buyer's purchase documents (including electronic commercs lnterfaces) that materially alter, add to or subtract

from the provislons of the Hach TCS ars not part of ths Contract.

weapons' missils technology); and 3). Certification that the goods will not be dlverted contrary to U,S. and/or applicable laws in force ln Buyer's jurisdiction.

ORDERTERMS:
Terms are Subject to Credit Review
ln order for Hach to process lhe order as quickly as possible, please provide the following information.
. Complele Billing address.
. Complete Shipping address.
. Part numbers and quantilies of items being ordered,
. Please reference the quotation number on your purchase order

lf the order ls over $25,000 Hach will also requhe the following addilional information.
. Pricing

' Purchase Order Number
. Freight terms and INCO term FOB Origin or FCA Shipping Point
. Required delivery date
. Vendor name should speciry "Hach Company' with the Loveland address:

o Hach, PO Box 389, Loveland, CO 80539
. Credit terms of payment. Default payment terms are Net 30.
. lndicate if order needs to ship complete or if it mn ship parlial.
. Tax status
. Special invoicing instruc{ions

Sales tax is not included on quote. Applicable sales lax will be added to the invoice based on lhe U.S. destination, if applicable provide a resale/exemption certilicate.
Shipments will be prepaid and added to invoices unless otheMiss specllied.
Equipment quoted operates with slandard U.S. supply voltage.
Hach standard terms and conditions apply to all sales.
Additional terms and conditions apply to orders for service partnerships.
Prices do not include delivery of product. Reference attached Freight Charge Scheduls and Collect Handling Fees.
This Quote is good for a one time purchase
Virlual and/or on-site training must be scheduled/completed wiihin 30 days of order, or lhe price will be subject to change.

Sales Contact:

Name:

Title:

Phone:

Email:

Dominic Attardi

Regional Sales Manager

800-227-4224

dattardi@hach.com



,{AC}T
Be Right'"

HACH COMPANY
Headquarters
P.O. Box 389
5600 Lindbergh Drive

Loveland, CO 80539-0389

Purchase Orders
PO Box 608
Loveland, CO 80539-0608

U.S,A,

Phone: 800-2274224
Fax: 970-669-2932
E-Mail: orders@hach.com

quotes@hach.com
techhelp@hach.com

Export
Phone: 970-66$3050
Fax: 970461-3939
Email: intl@hach.com

Remiltance
2207 Collections Center Drive
Chicago, lL 60693

Wre Transfers
Bank of America
231 S. LaSalle St.
Chicago, lL 60604
Account: 87656023B5
Routing (ABA): 07 1 000039

@

Quotation Addendum Website: www.hach.com

ADVANTAGES OF WORKING WITH HACH

ADVANTAGES OF SIMPLIFIED SHIPPING AND HANDLING

STANDARD SIMPLIFIED SHIPPING AND HANDLING CHARGES 1, a 3' 4 Pricing Effective 6/3/2023

TotalPrice of
Merchandise Ordered

Standard
Surface

(Mainland USA)

Second Day
Delivery

(Mainland USA)

Next Day
Delivery

(Mainland USA)

Second Day
Delivery

(Alaska & Hawaii)

Next Day
Delivery

(Alaska & Hawaii)

$0.00 -$49.99 $10.00 $25.01 $46.64 $40.14 $76.30
$50.00 -$149.99 $12.00 $3s.37 $66.74 $50.72 $96.42

$150.00 -$349.99 $14.00 $37.35 $76.08 $51.51 $98.85

$350.00 -$649.99 $16.00 $41.84 $83.20 $52.30 $101.27
$6s0.00 -$949.99 $16.00 $50.69 $104.55 $61.58 $119.19

$950.00 -$1,999.99 $28.00 $59.54 $125.90 $70.86 $1 37.1 0

$2,000.00 -$3,999.99 $28.00 $73.62 $153.60 $84.76 $164.64
$4,000.00 -$5,999.99 $50.00 $87.69 $181 .30 $98.66 $1 92.1 8

$6,000.00 - $7,999.99 $6o.oo $101 .39 $209.64 $110.51 $213.06

$8,000.00 -$9,999.99 $e0.00 $151.46 $295.96 $162.06 : $3o7.ss

Over$10,000
1.0% of Net
OrderValue

1 .8% of Net
OrderValue

2.8% of Net
OrderValue

1.8olo of Net
OrderValue

2.8% of Net
OrderValue

Collect a

Handling Fee
Effective
6n/2423

$8.00

$8.00

$8.00

$8.00

$8.00

$8.00

$8.00

$8.00

$8.00

$8.00

$8.00

1 Shipping & Handling charges shoiln are mly applicaue to orders billing and shipping lo U.S. detimtims. Shipping & Handling chargs will be prepaid and added to invoice.
Shipping & Handling ftr the Pick&Ship Program is charged on each shipment rd€se and is based on lhe total price of each shipment relese. Shipping & Handling charges
are su['ect to change wilhoJt mtice.

Shipping & Handling charges, and are comidered heavy products. Dissdved Oxygen Sensos can be damaged ifo(posed to temps bdffi freezing, causing sensor failure. Must
be shipped over night a 2nd day air during the cold weather months.

3 Ordas shipping to Alaska tr Hilaii: Additional Shipping & Handling charges may be applied at time of order processing. Ssond Day and Next Day delivery is rct available to all
desti nati ons.

4 Hach Company will asses a collect handling fe m ordss withcollect shippirg tsms. This handling fee covers lhe addilimal cGls hat Hach Company incurs frm processing
and managing collect shiprnents.

packaged together in a sirEle carton at time of fnal packagins and shipping.

SALES TAX
Sales Tax is not included in the attacled quotdion. Applicade sales and usagetaxes will be added to you invoice, at the time of order, based on U.S. destiration of
goods, unless a valid resale/exemption certificate fd destination shte is provided to the above address or fax number, attentbn of the Tax Dept

w HachSeruk:e

Protect yourinvestment & peace of mind
r' A global partnerwho understands your

needs
r' Delivers timely, high-qualityservice you

can trust
/ Providesteamof unique expertsto help

you maximize instrument uptime
r' Ensure data integrity
r' Maintain operationalstability
r' Reduce compliance risk

www.h ach.co m/service-co ntracts

Pick&Shiptm

Pick&Ship* Ptognm offers a betterway to
keep yoursupplies in stock
r' Convenience of one purchase orderforthe

entire year
/ Flexibilityto change, cancelorcreate new

orders
r' Savings from locking in prices & thus

avoiding price surges and rush chargesr' Peace of mind with automatic, reliable
shipmentsjust as you need them

www. Hach.co m/p ickandship

Technical Support

P/ovldesposf-sale in stru me ntation a nd
application suppott
r' Hach's highly skilled Technical

Support staff is dedicated to
you resolve technical issues
during and afterthe sale.

helping
before.

r' Available via phone, e-mail, orlive
online chat at Hach.com!

r' Fastaccesstoanswersat
httos:/isu pport. h ach. com

r' Toll-free phone: 800-227 4224
/ E-mail: techhelp@hach.com

www.Hach.com

Safe & FastDeliverv

/ Receive tracking numbers on yourorder
acknowledgement

r' Hach will assist with claims if an orderis
lost or damaged in shipment

Saye lime- Less Hassle

/ No need to setup deliveriesfororders orto
schedule pickup

r' Hach shipsorderas product isavailable, at
no additional charge, when simplified
shipping and handling is used.

Save Monev

r' No additionalinvoice to process*
save on time and administrative costs

r' only pay shipping once, even if
multiple shipments are required



HACHC$tttPAftlY l56C0Lindherqhtlrive iFO8ox.989 ll.ovelarrd,CcloracoB053g iP9?{l 669..j050:F970.669.?932 {h*c.h.conr

TERMS & CONDITIONS OF SALE FOR HACH COMPANY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

This document seh forth lhe Terms & Conditions ol Sole for goods
monufoclured ond/or supplied, ond services provided, by Hoch Compony of
Lovelond. Colorodo ("Hoch") ond sold to lhe originol purchoser thereof
("Buye/'). Unless oiherwise specificolly stoled herein, lhe lerm "Hoch"
includes only Hoch Compony ond none of its offiliotes. Unless otherwise
specificolly stoled in o previously-execuled wrilten purchose ogreemenl
signed by oulhorized represeniolives of Hoch ond Buyer, these Terms &
Condilions of Sole esloblish lhe righls, obligolions ond remedies of Hoch ond
Buyer which opply io this offer ond ony resulling order or conirocl for lhe sole
of Hoch's goods ond/or services ("Products").

L APPLICABLE TERMS & CONDITIONS: These Terms & Conditions of Sole
ore conioined dhecily ond/or by reference in Hoch's offer, order
ocknowledgmenl, ond invoice documenls. The lini of lhe following ocls
consliiules on occeplonce of Hoch's offer ond nol o counleroffer ond creoles o
conlroct of sole ("Controct") in occordonce with lhese Terms & Condilions: (i)

Buyer's issuonce of o purchose order documeni ogoinsl Hoch's offer; (ii)

ocknowledgemenl of Buyer's order by Hoch; or (iii) commencemeni of ony
performonce by Hoch pursuoni 1o Buyer's order, Provisions contoined in
Buyer's purchose documenis (including eleclronic commerce inierfoces) thol
moieriolly olier, odd lo or sublroct from lhe provisions of lhese Terrns &
Condilions of Sole ore nol o port of ihe Conlroci.

2. CANCELLATION: Buyer moy concel goods orden subjecl to foir chorges
for Hoch's expenses including hondling, inspeclion, reslocking, lreighl ond
invoicing chorges os opplicoble, provided lhol Buyer relurns such goods lo
Hoch ot Buyer's expense wilhin thirty B0) doys of delivery ond in lhe some
condilion os received. Buyer moy concel service orders on ninely {90) doy's
prior wrillen nolice ond refunds will be proroled bosed on lhe durolion of ihe
service plon. lnspeclions ond re-insiotemenl fees moy opply upon concellolion
or expirolion of service progroms, Seller moy concel oll or port of ony order
prior lo delivery without liobility if the order includes ony Products thol Seller
deiermines moy nol comply wilh export, sofely. locol certificolion, or olher
opplicoble complionce requirements.

3. DELIVERY: Delivery will be occomplished FCA Hoch's focilily locoted in
Ames, lowo or Lovelond, Colorodo, United Stoles {lncolerms 20i0). Legol litle
ond risk of loss or domoge poss lo Bu'y,er upon lronsfer 1o lhe first corrier, Hoch
will use commerciolly reosonoble efforis 1o deliver lhe Producis ordered herein
wilhin the time specified on ihe foce of this Conlroct or, if no lime is specified,
within Hoch's normol leodJime necessory for Hoch lo deliver lhe Producis sold
hereunder. Upon prior ogreemenl wilh Buyer ond for on oddiiionol chorge,
Hoch will deliver the Producls on on expediled bosis. Siondord service delivery
hours ore 8 om - 5 pm Mondoy ihrough Fridoy, excluding holidoys.

4. INSPECTION: Buyer will promptly inspecl ond occept ony Producls
delivered pursuoni lo lhis Conlrocl ofter receipl of such Producls. ln ihe event
lhe Products do noi conform to ony opplicoble specificotions, Buyer will
promptly noiify Hoch of such nonconformonce in wiling. Hoch will hove o
reosonoble opporlunity lo repoir or reploce lhe nonconforming product ol its
oplion. Buyer will be deemed to hove occepled ony Producls delivered
hereunder ond io hove woived ony such nonconformonce in lhe evenl such o
wrillen nolificotion is not received by Hoch within lhirty (30) dop of delivery.

5. PRICES & ORDER SIZES: All prices ore in U.S. dollors ond ore bosed on
delivery os sloled obove. Prices do not include ony chorges for services such os
insuronce; brokeroge fees; soles, use, invenlory or excise ioxes; import or
export duties; speciol finoncing fees; VAT, income or royolly toxes imposed
ouiside ihe U.S.; consulor fees; speciol permils or licenses; or olher chorges
imposed upon lhe production, sole, dislribulion, or delivery of Producls. Buyer
will eilher poy ony ond oll such chorges or provide Hoch wilh occeploble
exeilrplioil cerlilicoles, wf liutl obllgollon sutvlves performdnce under lhls
Conirocf. Hoch reserves the right 10 esloblish minimum order sizes ond will
odvise Buyer occordingly.

6. PAYMENTS: All poymenls musl be mode in U.S. dollors. For lniernet
orders, the purchose price is due ot lhe lime ond monner sel forth ot
www.hoch.com. lnvoices for oll other orders ore due ond poyoble NET 30
DAYS from dole of lhe invoice withoul regord lo deloys for inspeciion or
lronsportolion, with poymenls 1o be mode by check lo Hoch ol the qbove
oddress or by wire lronsfer lo lhe occount sioled on lhe fronl of Hoch's invoice,
or for cuslomers wilh no esioblished credit, Hoch moy require cosh or credil

cord poymenl in odvonce of delivery. ln lhe evenl poymenls ore not mode or
not mode in o limely monner, Hoch moy, in oddilion 10 oll other remedies
provided of low, either: (o) declore Buyer's performonce in breoch ond
lerminole lhis Conlrocl for defouli; (b) wilhhold fulure shipmenls unlil
delinquenl poyments ore mode; (c) deliver fulure shipmenls on o cosh-wilh-
order or cosh-in-odvonce bosis even ofler lhe delinquency is cured; (d) chorge
inleresl on lhe delinquency ol o role of 1-112% (one ond one holf percenl) per
monlh or lhe moximum rote permilted by low, if lower, for eoch monlh or port
lhereof of delinquency in poymenl plus opplicoble sloroge chorges ond/or
invenlory conying chorges; (e) repossess the Products for which poyment hos
not been mode; (f) recover oll cosis of colleclion including reosonoble
oitorney's fees; or (g) combine ony of lhe obove righls ond remedies os is

proclicoble ond permilled by low. Buyer is prohibiled ftom selling off ony ond
oll monies owed under this from ony oiher sums, whelherliquidoted or nol, thof
ore or moy be due Buyer, vvhich orise oul of o differenl lronsoclion wilh Hoch
or ony of iis offilioies. Should Buyer's finonciol responsibilily become
unsotisfoclory lo Hoch in its reosonoble discrelion, Hoch moy require cosh
poymeni or oiher securily. lf Buyer foils lo meet these requiremenls, Hoch
moy lreol such foilure os reosonoble grounds for repudiolion of lhis Conlrocl,
in which cose reosonoble concellolion chorges sholl be due Hoch. Buyer
gronh Hoch o securily inierest in ihe Producls lo secure poymenl in full,
which poymenl releoses lhe securily interesl bui only if such poymenis could
nol be considered on ovoidoble ironsfer under lhe U.S. Bonkruplcy Code or
other opplicoble lows. Buyer's insolvency. bonkruplcy, ossignment for lhe
benefil of credilors, or dissolulion or lerminolion of the exislence of Buyer,
conslilules o defoult under lhis Conlroct ond offords Hoch oll the remedies of
o secured porly under lhe U.C.C., os well os lhe remedies sloted obove for
lole poyment or non-poymenl. See fl20 for further wire lronsfer requiremenls.

7. LIMITED WARRANTY: Hoch worronls lhol Products sold hereunderwill be
free from defecls in moteriol ond workmonship ond will, when used in
occordonce wilh lhe monufoclurer's operoiing ond moinlenonce instruclions,
conform lo ony express wrilien wononly perioining to the specific goods
purchosed, which for mosl Hoch insirumenis is for o period of lwelve (12)
months from delivery. Hoch wononls lhol services furnished hereunder will be
free lrom defecls in workmonship for o period of ninely (90) doys from lhe
complelion of lhe services. Porls provided by Hoch in ihe performonce of
services moy be new or refurbished ports funclioning equivolenl lo new ports.
Any non-funclioning ports thol ore repoired by Hoch sholl become lhe property
of Hoch. No worronties ore exiended lo consumoble ilems such os, withoul
limitotion, reogents, botleries, mercury cells, ond lighl bulbs. All olher
guoronlees. wononlles, condlllons ond represenlollons, ellher express or
implled, whelher orlslng under ony slolule, low, commerclol usqge or
olherwlse, includlng lmplled wononlles ot merchdnlobilily ond lllness for o
porllculor purpose, ore hereby excluded. The sole remedy for Producls not
meeling lhis Limited Wononly is replocemenl, credii or refund of lhe purchose
price. This remedy will noi be deemed to hove foiled of iis essenliol purpose so
long os Hoch is willing lo provide such replocemenl, credil or ref und.

8. INDEMNIFICATION: lndemnificotion opplies lo o porty ond lo such
pody's successors-in-inleresi, ossignees, offilioles, direclors, officers, ond
employees ("lndemnified Porties"). Hoch is responsible for ond Wll defend,
indemnify ond hold hormless lhe Buyer lndemnified Porlies ogoinsi oll
losses, cloims. expenses or domoges which moy resull from occidenl, injury,
domoge, or deolh due lo Hoch's breoch of the Limited Wononly. Buyer is

responsible for ond will defend, indemnify ond hold hormless the Hoch
lndemnified Porties ogoinsl oll losses, cloims, expenses or domoges which
moy result from occidenl, injury, domoge, or deolh due to negligence, misuse
ormisopplicoiionof onygoodsor services,viololionsof low,orlhebreochof ony
provision of ihis Conkocl by the Buyer, ih offiliotes, or lhose employed by,
conlrolledbyorinprivilywilhthem. Buyer'sworkers'compensolionimmunily,
lf dny, does not preclude or limit ils indemnificolion obligolions.

9. PATENT PROTECTION: Subiecl to oll limitolions ol liobilily provided
herein, Hoch will, with respecl lo ony Producls of Hoch's design or monufoclure,
indemnify Buyer from ony ond oll domoges ond cosls os finolly delermined by
o court of competenl jurisdiclion in ony suil for infringemenl of ony U.S. polent
{or Europeon polenl for Producls thot Hoch sells lo Buyer for end use in o
member slole of the E.U.) lhol hos issued os of the delivery dole, solely by
reoson of lhe sole or normol use of ony Producls sold to Buyer hereunder ond
from reosonoble expenses incuned by Buyer in defense of such suil if Hoch
does nol undertoke lhe defense lhereof, provided lhol Buyer promplly nolifies



Hoch of such suil ond offers Hoch either (i) full ond exclusive conlrol of lhe
defense of such suil when Producls of Hoch only ore involved, or (ii) lhe right
lo porticipole in lhe defense of such suil when producls olher lhqn those of
Hoch qre olso involved. Hoch's worronly os lo use polenis only opplies io
infringemeni orising solely out of lhe inherent operolion ol lhe Producls
occording lo their opplicolions os envisioned by Hoch's specificolions. ln cose
lhe Products ore in such suil held lo conslilule infringemeni ond the use of lhe
Producls is enjoined, Hoch will, ot ils own expense ond ol its opiion. eilher
procure for Buyer the righl lo conlinue using such Producls or reploce lhem
wilh non-infringing produc'ls. or modify them so they become non-infringing,
or remove lhe Producls ond refund lhe purchose price lproroled for
deprecioiion) ond the lronsportolion costs lhereof. The foregoing slotes lhe
enlire liobilily of Hoch for polenl infringemenl by lhe Produc'ls. Furiher, lo lhe
some extenl os sel forlh in Hoch's obove obligolion to Buyer, Buyer ogrees to
defend, indemnify ond hold hormless Hoch for potent infringemenl reloted lo
{x) ony goods monufoclured io lhe Buyer's design, (y) services provided in
occordonce with lhe Buyer's instruclions, or {z) Hoch's Products when used in
combinolion wilh ony other devices, ports or soflwore nol provided by Hoch
hereunder.

10. TRADEMARKS AND OTHER LABELS: Buyer ogrees nol 10 remove or oller
ony indicio of monufocluring origin or polent numbers contoined on orwilhin
the Producls, including Wlhoul limitolion lhe seriol numbers or lrodemorks
on nomeploles orcosl, molded or mochined componenls.

ll. SOFTWARE AND DATA. All licenses lo Hoch's seporolely-provided
soflwore produch ore subjecl lo the seporole soflwore license ogreemenl(s)
occomponying lhe soflwore medio ond/or included os on Appendix 1o lhese
Terms & Condilions of Sole. Excepl to the exlenl such express licenses conflicl
Wlh the remoinder of lhis porogroph, the following olso opplies relolive io
Hoch's soflwore: Hoch gronts Buyer only o personol, non-exclusive license lo
occess ond use lhe softwore provided by Hoch wilh Producls purchosed
hereunder solely os necessory for Buyer 1o enjoy lhe benefil of lhe Producls. A
poriion of the softwore moy conloin or consisl of open source soflwore, which
Buyer moy use under lhe lerms ond condilions of lhe specific license under
which the open source soflwore is dislribuied. Buyer ogrees lhol il will be bound
by oll such license ogreemenls. lille lo soflwore remoins Wlh lhe opplicoble
licensor{s).ln conneclion wiih Buyer's use of Producls, Hoch moy obloin,
receive. or collect dolo or informotion, including dolo produced by the Producls.
ln such coses, Buyer gronts Hoch o non-exclusive, worldwide. royolly-free,
perpeluol, non-revocoble license to use, compile, dislribule, disploy. slore,
process, reproduce. or creole derivolive works of such dolo. or lo oggregole
such dolo for use in on ononyrnous monner, solely lo focilitole morkeiing, soles
ond R&D oclivities of Hoch ond iis offilioies.

12. PROPRIETARY INFORMATION; PRIVACY: "Proprietory tnformotion"
meons ony informotion, technicol dolo or know-how in wholever form,
whelher documenled, conloined in mochine reodoble or physicol componenls,
mosk works or ortwork, or oiherwise, which Hoch considers proprielory,
including bui nol limiled lo service ond mointenonce monuols. Buyer ond ils
cuslomers, employees ond ogents will keep confideniiol oll such Proprielory
lnformolion obloined direclly or indireclly from Hoch ond will nol tronsfer or
disclose ii withoul Hoch's prior wrillen consenl. or use il for lhe monufoclure,
procurement, servicing or colibroiion of Producls or ony similor producls, or
couse such producls 1o be monufociured, serviced or colibroled by or procured
from ony olher source, or reproduce or olherwise oppropriole ii. All such
Proprietory lnformolion remoins Hoch's properly. No righl or license is gronled
lo Buyer or ils cuslomers. employees or ogenls, expressly or by implicotion,
with respeci to lhe Proprielory lnformolion or ony polenl righl or olher
proprielory right of Hoch, except for lhe limiled use licenses implied by low.
Hoch will monoge Cuslomer's informolion ond personol dolo in occordonce
wilh its Privocy Policy. locoied ot htlo://www.hoch,com/orivocvpolicv.

13. CHANGES AND ADDITIONAL CHARGES: Hoch reserves lhe right to moke
design chongec or improvomonll lo ony producls of lhc romc gcncrol closs os
Producls being delivered hereunder wilhoul liobilily or obligolion to
incorporole such chonges or improvemenls lo Products ordered by Buyer
unless ogreed upon in wriling before lhe Producls' delivery doie. Services
which musl be performed os o resull of ony of lhe following conditions ore
subjecl lo oddilionol chorges for lobor, lrovel ond ports: {o) equipmeni
ollerolions nol oulhorized in wriling by Hoch; (b) domoge resuliing from
improper use or hondling, occidenl, neglecl, power surge, or operotion in on
environmenl or monner in which lhe instrumenl is noi designed lo operote or
is nol in occordonce Wlh Hoch's operoling monuols; (c) ihe use of porls or
occessories nol provided by Hoch; (d) domoge resuliing from ocls of wor,
ierrorism or nolure; {e) services oulside siondord business hours; {f} site

prework nol complete per proposql; or (g) ony repoirs required to ensure
equipmenl meets monufoclurer's specificolions upon oclivolion of o service
ogreemenl.

14, SITE ACCESS / PREPARATION / WORKER SAFETY i ENVIRONMENTAL
COMPLIANCE: ln conneclion wiih services provided by Hoch, Buyer ogrees to
permit prompt occess lo equipmenl. Buyer ossumes full responsibilily lo bock-
up or otherwise prolecl its dolo ogoinsl loss, domoge or deslruc'tion before
services ore performed. Buyer is lhe operotor ond in full conlrol of ils premises,
including lhose oreos where Hoch employees or conlroclon ore performing
sevice, repoir ond mointenonce oclivilies. Buyer will ensure lhol oll necessory
meosures ore loken for sofely ond securily of working condilions. siles ond
inslollolions during lhe performonce of services. Buyer is lhe generotor of ony
resulting wosles. including withoui limilolion hozordous wosies. Buyer is solely
responsible lo orronge for lhe disposol of ony wosles ol its own expense. Buyer
will, ot iis own expense, provide Hoch employees ond conlroclors working on
Buyer's premises with oll informotion ond iroining required under opplicoble
sofely complionce regulolions ond Buyer's policies. lf lhe inslrumenl lo be
serviced is in o Confined Spoce, os thol lerm is defined under OSHA regulolions,
Buyer is solely responsible 10 moke il qvoiloble lo be serviced in on unconlined
spoce. Hoch service lechnicions will not work in Confined Spoces. ln lhe evenl
lhol o Buyer requires Hoch employees or conlrociors lo otlend sofely or
complionce koining progroms provided by Buyer, Buyer will poy Hoch ihe
slondord hourly role ond expense reimbursemenl for such lroining otlended,
Ihe oltendonce ol or complelion of such lroining does not creoie or expond ony
worronly or obligolion of Hoch ond does nol serve to oller, omend, limil or
supersede ony port of lhis Conlrocl.

I5. LIMITATIONS ON USE: Buyer will nol use ony Producls for ony purpose
olher lhon those identified in Hoch's colologs ond lilerolure os inlended
uses. Unless Hoch hos odvised the Buyerin wriling, in no evenl will Buyer use
ony Producls in drugs, lood oddilives, food or cosrnelics, or medicol opplicotions
for humons or onimols. ln no evenl will Buyer use in ony opplicolion ony
Producl lhot requires FDA 510(k) cleoronce unless ond only lo lhe exleni lhe
Product hos such cleoronce. Buyer will nol sell, lronsfer, exporl or re-exporl
ony Hoch Producls or lechnology for use in oclivilies which involve the
design, developmenl, produclion, use or slockpiling of nucleor, chemicol or
biologicol weopons or missiles, nor use Hoch Producls or technology in ony
focilily which engoges in ocliviiies reloting lo such weopons. Unless lhe "ship-
io" oddress is in Colifornio, U.S.A., the Producls ore nol inlended for sole in
Colifornio ond moy lock morkings required by Colifornio Proposilion 65;
occordingly, unless Buyer hos ordered Products specifying o Colifornio ship-lo
oddress, Buyer will nol sell or deliver ony Hoch Producls f or use in Colifornio.
Anyworronly gronled by Hoch is void if onygoods covered bysuch worronty
ore used for ony purpose not permitled hereunder.

.I6. 
EXPORT AND IMPORT LICENSES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:

Unless olherwise specified in lhis Conirocl, Buyer is responsible for obloining
ony required exporl or import licenses. Buyer will comply wilh oll lows ond
reguloiions opplicoble io lhe inslollolion or use of oll Producls, including
opplicoble imporl ond expori conlrol lows ond regulolions ol lhe U.S.. E.U. ond
ony olher counlry hoving proper jurisdiclion, ond will obloin oll necessory
export licenses in conneciion with ony subsequenl export, re-export, lronsfer
ond use of oll Producls ond lechnology delivered hereunder, Buyer will comply
with oll locol, nolionol, ond olher lows of oll jurisdiclions globolly reloiing lo
onli-corruplion. bribery exlorlion, kickbocks, or similor mollers which ore
opplicoble lo Buyer's business octivilies in conneclion with lhis Conlrocl,
including bul nol limiled lo the U.S. Foreign Conupt Proclices Acl ot 1977, os
omended {lhe "rcPA"). Buyer ogrees lhol no poymenl of money or provision
of onylhing of volue will be offered, promised, poid or lronsferred, direclly or
indireclly. by ony person or enlily, lo ony governmenl officiol, governmenl
employee, or employee of ony compony owned in port by o government.
polilicol porly, polilicol porly officiol, or condidole for ony governmenl office or
polilicol porty office io induce such orgonizolions or persons lo use their
oulhorily or influence io obloirr or reluin on inrproper busirress udvur rlugc for
Buyer or for Hoch, or which olherwise conslilule or hove lhe purpose or effect
of public or commerciol bribery, occeplonce of or ocquiescence in exlorlion,
kickbocks or oiher unlowful or improper meons ol obloining business or ony
improper odvonloge, wiih respecl lo ony of Buyer's ocliviiies reloled lo lhis
Conirocl. Hoch osks Buyer lo "Speok Upl" if owore of ony violoiion of low,
regulolion or our Stondords of Conducl ("SOC") in relolion lo lhis Conlrocl. See
hllo://donoher.com/inleorilv-ond-cornolionce ond www.donoherinieorilv.com
for o copy of lhe SOC ond for occess lo our Helpline portol.

17. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES: Buyer is noi on ogenl or represeniolive of
Hoch ond will not presenl ilself os such under ony circumsionces unless ond
to

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE FOR HACH@ PRODUCTS

Confidential - Company Proprietary

2v. 2022-1 1-O7



the exlenl il hos been formolly screened by Hoch's complionce deportmenl ond
received o seporole duly-oulhorized leller ftom Hoch setling forth the scope ond
limitolions of such oulhorizolion.

18. FORCE MAJEURE: Hoch is excused from performonce of ils obligolions
under lhis Conlroct io lhe exlent coused by ocls or omissions lhol ore beyond
its conlrol of, including bul nol limited to Governmenl emborgoes, blockoges.
seizures or freeze of ossets, deloys or refusols lo gronl on exporl or import
license or lhe suspension or revocolion lhereof, or ony olher ocls of ony
Govemrnenl; fires, floods, severe weolher condilions, or ony olher octs of God;
quorontines; lobor slrikes or lockouis; riols; slrife; insurreclions; civil
disobedience or ocls of criminols or lerrorisls; wor; moleriol shorloges or deloys
in deliveries lo Hoch by ihird porlies. ln lhe evenl of lhe exislence of ony force
mojeure circumslonces, ihe period of lime for delivery. poymenl lerms ond
poymenls under ony letlem of credii will be exlended for o period of line equol
lo ihe period of deloy. lf lhe force mojeure circunrlonces extend for six monlhs,
Hoch moy, oi its oplion. lerminole lhis Conlrocl wilhoul penolly ond wilhoul
being deemed in defoull orin breoch lhereof.

19. NON ASSIGNMENT AND WAIVER: Buyer will not lronsfer or ossign lhis
Conlrocl or ony righls or interests hereunder withoul Hoch's prior wriilen
consent. Foilure of eilher porly to insisl upon slricl performonce of ony
provision of lhis Conlrocl, or lo exercise ony righl or privilege conloined herein.
or lhe woiver of ony breoch of lhe ierms or condilions of this Conlrocl will nol
be conslrued os ihereofier woiving ony such lerms. conditions, rights, or
privileges, ond the some will conlinue ond remoin in force ond effecl os if no
woiver hod occuned.

20. FUNDS TRANSFERS (PAYMENTS): Buyer ond Hoch both recognize lhql
'there is o risk of bonking froud when individuols impersonoling o business
demond poymenl under new bonking or moiling inslruclions. To ovoid lhis risk,
Buyer musl verbolly confirm ony new or chonged bonk tronsfer or moiling
inslructions by colling Hoch oi +l -970-653-1372 ond speoking wilh Hoch's Credil
Monoger before moiling or lronsfering ony monies using lhe new inslruc'fions.
Bolh porlies ogree lhot theywill nol insliluie moiling or bonk lronsfer inslruclion
chonges ond require immediote poymeni under the new inslruclions bul will
insieod provide o len (10) doy groce period lo verify ony poymenl inslruction
chonges before ony new or oulstonding poymenls ore due using the new
inslruclions.

21. IIMITATION OF LIABIUTY: None ol lhe Hoch lndemnllled Porlies will be
liqble lo ony Buyer lndemnllied Porlles under ony circumslonces lor ony
speciol, lreble, lncldenldl or consequenliol domoges, lncludlng wilhoul
limilolion, dqmqge lo or loss ol properly olherlhon lorlhe Producls purchosed
hereunder; domoges lncured ln lnslollollon, repolr or replocemenl; losl
profils, revenue or opporlunlly; loss ol use; losses resulllng lrom or reloled lo
downllme of lhe producls or lnoccurole meosuremenls or reporllng; lhe cosl
ol subslllule producls; or clolms of ony Buyer lndemnllied Porlles' cuslomer
lor such domoges, howsoever coused, ond whelher bosed on wononly,
conlrocl, ond/or lorl (lncluding negligence, slrlct liobility or olherwlse). The
lololliobllily ollhe Hoch lndemnilied Porlies orlslng oul of lhe pedormonce or
nonperlormonce hereunder or Hoch's obllgollons ln connecllon with lhe
deslgn, nronufoclure, sole, dellvery, ond/ol use of Producls will in no
circumslonce exceed ln lhe oggregole o sum equql lo lwice lhe qmounl
ocluolly pold lo Hqch lor Producls delivered hereunder.

22. APPLICABLE LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION: The conslruclion,
interprelolion ond performonce hereof ond oll lronsoclions hereunder sholl be
governed by lhe lows of lhe Slole of Colorodo, wilhoul regord to ils principles
or lows regording conflicls of lows.lf ony provision of lhis Conlrocl viololes
ony Federol, Stote or locol slolutes or regulolions of ony couniries hoving
jurisdiciion of this lronsoclion, or is illegol for ony reoson, soid provision sholl
be self-deleling wiihoul offecting the volidily of lhe remoining provisions.
Unless olherwise specificolly ogreed upon in wiling belween Hoch ond Buyer,
any dilpule relating to thh Conkocl which ir not resoked by lhe portieo bholl
be odjudicoled in order of preference by o courl of competenl jurisdiclion (i) in
lhe Slole of Colorodo, U.S.A. if Buyer hos minimum conlocls wilh Colorodo
ond lhe U.S., (ii) elsewhere in the U.S. if Buyer hos minimum conlocls wilh lhe
U.S. bui nol Colorodo, or (iii) in o neulrol locoiion if Buyer does nol hove
minimum conlocls wilh the Uniled Slotes.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, TERM & MODIFICATION: These Terms &
Condiiions of Sole consliiuie ihe enlire ogreemeni beiween lhe porlies ond
supersede ony prior ogreemenls or represenlolions, whether orol or wrillen.
Upon lhirly (30J doys prior wrillen notice, Hoch moy. in ils sole discrelion,
elect lo ierminole ony order for lhe sole of Producls ond provide o pro-roled
refund for ony pre-poymenl of undelivered Producls. No chonge lo or
modificotion of lhese Terms & Condilions sholl be binding upon Hoch unless in
o wrillen inslrumenl specificolly referencing thol il is omending these Terms &
Condilions of Sole ond signed by on oulhorized represenlolive of Hoch. Hoch

rejects ony oddilionol or inconsistent Terms & Condilions ol Sole offered by
Buyer of ony lime, whether or nol such lerms or condilions moleriolly oller lhe
Terms & Condilions herein ond irrespeclive of Hoch's occeplonce of Buyer's
order for lhe described goods ond services.

24. APPENDICES: lf checked, ihe lollowing Appendices ore ollached
herelo ond incorporoted by reference inio lhese Terms & Condilions of
Sole:

tr CLAROS SOFTWARE A5 A SERVICE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SAtE FOR HACH@ PRODUCTS

Confidential - Company Proprietary

3v.2022-1 1-O7



Tim Russo

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Dennis McNamara <dmcnamara@lockportny.gov>

Monday, November 6,2023 11:42 AM
'Tim Russo'

capital improvements/ filtration plant
Hach turb. quote filters.pdf; Grainger Quotation filter plant heating.PDF

HiTim,

While I was off sick I had a chance to talk to the mayor. The Mayor and i feel it would be a good idea to finish the filter
turbidity system/ upgrade this year.

This is proprietary to Hach. This is a capital improvement to the filter plant. The turbidity system is required by law to
monitor the filters.
Please see the attached quote. The grand total is 5S9ltq.gl.

I do not know how much I have left in the capital fund but if there is enough it would be a good idea to do some capital
upgrades to the filter plant heating system.
Please see attached quote. All items individually are under the 53,000.00 mark. The total cost would be 58,791.L6

Tha n ks

Dennis.

1



City of Lockport Budget Performance Report
Life-to- Dat e to LU 221 23

Include Rollup Account and Rollup to Account

Account Account Description

Fund H2O4 - Actiye, EX Infra. Improvements
REVENUE

Department 8397 - Water Equipment & Cap Ouflay
32801 Interfund Revenue
32801.FX Interfund Revenue From Water =und

32801 - Intefund Revenue Tobls
Departnent 8397 - Water Equipmeft & Cap Ouflay Tobls

REVENUE TOTALS

E(PENSE

Departrnent 8397 - Water Equipment & Cap Oclay
52480 infrastructure-Water System

59OOO Interfund TransferTo
59000.H Intertund Tmnsfer To Capital

5900O - Interfurd Transfer To Totals
Department 8397 - Water Equipment & Cap Outlay Tobls

EPENSE TOTALS

Fund H204 - Active, EX Infra, tmproyements Tobls
REVENUE TOTALS

E(PENSE TOTATS

Fund H2O4 - Actiye, EX Infra, Improvements Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Grand Totals

REVENUE TOTALS .00 236,267.00 236,267.00 .00

EpENSE TOTALS .00 236,267.00 236,267.00 .00

Grand Totals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

46,685.35

$0.00

Adopted

Budget

Budget

Amendmenb

236,267.00

236,267.00

Amended

Budget

199,903.86

36,363.14

236,267.00

236,267.00

Current Month

Transactions

.00 236,267.00 236,267.00

$0.00 $236,267.00 $236,267.00
$0.00 $236,26/.U0 $236,267.00
$0.00 $236,267.00

199,903.86

36,363.74

$236,267.00

.00

$0.00 $Jb,JbJ.14 $36,363.14

$0.00 $236,26/.UO $236,26/.00

$0.00 $236,267.00 $236,267.00

YTD

Encumbrances

.00 .00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

.00 3,527.58

.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $3,s27.s8

$0.00 $3,s27.s8

.00

3,527.58

.00

3,527.58

.00

YTD

Transactions

236,267.00

.00

$236,267.00

149,690.93

36,363.14

236,267.00

L86,054.07

236,267.00

186,0s4.07

Budget-YTD o/oUsedl

Transactions ReCd

.00 100

$0.00 1000/o

$0.00 100o/o

$0.00 700o/o

216,685.35

$0.00 1000/o

$46,685.35 80o/o

$46,685.35 80%

77

100.00.00

.00

.00

.00

.00
.00

.00

100o/o

80o/o

100%

80o/o

$0.00

46,685.35

($46,68s.3s)

Run by Tim Russo on LU22/2023 09:51:00 AM Page 1 of 1



City of Lockport Budget Peformance Repoft
Date Range 0Il0Ll23 - L2l3Il23

Include Rollup Account and Rollup to Account

Account Account Description

FUnO FX - Water FUnO

E(PENSE

Department 1900 - Special ltems
54070 Insurance

54078 Gasoline, Oil, Diesel Fuel

54775 Contingency

Department 1900 - Special ltems Tobls
EPENSE TOTALS

Fund FX - Water Fund Totals

REVENUE TOTALS

E(PENSE TOTALS

Fund FX- Watel Fund Tobls

Grand Tobls
REVENUE TOTALS

EXPENSE TOTALS

Grand Totals

Adopted

Budget

54,000.00

34,200.00

108,V9.00

$196,979.00

$196,979.00

.00

196,979.00

($196,979.00)

.00

Budget Amended

Amendmenb Budget

s4,000.00

34,200.00

107,979.00

($800.00) $196,179.00
($800.00) $196,179.00

(800.00)
.00

t96,179.00

$800.00 ($196,179.00)

(800.00)
.00

196,179.00

(800.00)

.00

.00

.00

Current Month

Transactions

YTD

Encumbrances

1,930.09

12,204.98

.00

$0.00 $r4,t3s.07
$0.00 $74,t3s.07

14,735.07

$0.00 ($14,13s.07)

89

100

.00

.00

.00

YTD

Transactions

46,088.41

2r,995.02

.00

68,083.43

Budget- YTD o/oUsed/

Transactions ReCd

5,981.50

.00

707,979.00

$68,083.43 $113,960.50 42o/o

$113,960.50 420/o

.00.00.00

.00

.00.00.00

.00

.00

.00 +++
68,083.43 113,960.50 42o/o

($113,960.s0)

.00

113,960.50

+++
42o/o

Run byTim Russo on LL/22/2023 09:51:58.{M Page 1 of I



1

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form
For Finance De rtment

Agenda Description: Authorize Contract for Street Maintenance Payloader Attachment

FY 2424 BudgetProposed By: Date Submitted: 77/22/2023

Please provide to Finance Directar qt least two weeks prior to Cauncil meeting.

ry: The FY 2024 Budget included funding for a payloader attachment that will assist the crew in
street maintenance perform their duties, This resolution would authorize the City to enter into a

contract for said purchase.

Summa

Financial lmpact (for current and following year)r Funding included in the FY 2024 Budget in lin
A.5110.52030.

e item

attachments: (1) resolution, {2) bid with State Bid reference, (3) budget printoutExplanation of

lncrease Line ltem: Decrease Line ltem:

NA NA

Date of Approval: Lrl28/2023 Resolution:



RESOLUTION #6 AUTHORIZE PUBTIC WORKS PURCHASE

WHEREAS, the City of Lockport has appropriated S113,423 in A.5110.52030 in the FY 2024
appropriation for a trimmer attachment; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Streets, Parks, and Distribution has collected a bid from Stephenson
Equipment, lnc. for a total of 5113,423 under NYS OCS bid PC69840 with a lead time of 35 to 37 weeks;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED, that the City of Lockport Common Council hereby approves
the City to enter into a purchasing agreement with Stephenson Equipment, lnc.



Pannedvanla L,ocstidl8 :

xallleSurg, PA. Fh[a@hia, PA ' Pitlsburgh, PA' Wlkes-Bane, PA

Hr*Yort Loodorp: tsarYbnd Locrton:
Albsny, l,lY. Syrarnrse, Ny Abbidean. MD (Sow&e Only)

Corporato Otr @r721lPodon Stseet Harrisburg, PA l7lll Phone: ?17{16+3434 Fax: 7t7.5e{-7580 Toll Free: 800{25'6't55

Syricuse Office: 6018 Drott Drine Syracuse, NY 11057 Phone: 315-*!2-{t779 Fax: 315.432{1675 Toll Free: &XF36&5a55

2l22lzs

Batavia, New Yo*

Jim & Chip,
Please see the following l.fys OGS quote for our Diamond boom mow€rs. I'll break down some details

below to share withthe City of Lockport below.
t-

DBM-C-N 2}FootRear Cradle Boom - includes boorn, mounting
,'hgr-dwqrp; tansport loclq hydraulic actuator, auxiliary

" oil cnoler, pump & grill guar4 polycarbonate safety glass

& uiheel weigbts
101 Four- Function IBC, Proportional Joystick
DBR05{FH 50" Boom Rotary
48-0003 Factory Authorized Mormting - Rear Cradle Boom Mowers

Freigbt
Grand Total:

NOTE:
Lead Time 30-32weeks. *Front Tire Size 340/85R24. Massey 571lD,4WD

NYS OGS PC69840
$41,170.00

LBM-C.EE 25 Foot Wheel Loader Boom (Tier 5 30,000 lb. or larger

loader) - includes four-function proportional control joystick,

hydraulic actuator, and polyoarbonate safety shield.

60" Boom Rolary
Wheel Loader Hooks - JD Hi Vis

$9,025.00
$12,694.00
$73s4.00
*fft?OS,,qg
$72J43.00

NYS OGS PC69840
$90,617.00

$13,873.00
$6,033.00

I}BRO6O.H
JD Hi Vis
Freight

Grand Total:
NOTE:
2OZl dD544P Loader

Diamond does not provide hydraulic hoses from wheel loader to the aftaohment. Time 35-37 Wecks

Thank you forthe opportunity to quote. Letme know if youhave any questions or concems. Best of luck

on your dea,l.

+$2s00.00#
$113,423.00

t

Tim



City of Lockport Budget Worksheet Repoft
Budget Year 2A24

Aaount Amunt Dasintion
Fund A-G€o€lellutd

F(pENSE

Departnent 3620- Code&S*tlrlGFedion
Gnbacbral

2020 Adual
Amd rht

2021 Achial
Amrrnt

2022 A€tual
Amd rnt

2024 Mayor
RffimmendF.l )O)4 Adnt}orl

2023Amended 2024Departnent
Flt rhet Pmr re<trad

54765 Judgrernent and Claims

Enpbta knefrE
&nbacfrJal Tobb

.00

$25,02u.55

19,524.9
20,772.29

65,351.59

35,45859

.00

$:42,631.E4

19112.89

15,901.12

52838.48
v,2t9.2t

.00

Trb,5bl.r+t

20,442.L4

20,546.16

70 315.81

30,6U.2s

872.00

$6r,507.tx}

21,585.00

21,513.00

72,4M.@

32,663.00

.00

$59/854.00

21,997.W

16,374.ffi
95,591.00

31,'160'00

.00

$47,n5.O0

2L,97.@
16,390.00

97,717.@

3?18.00

.00

$47,775.N

2t,997.0O

1t390.00
97,It7.@
32218.00

58010 FICA

58020 Worl€rs Compensation

58040 Hospibt & Medkal Insnjrance

5$50 Retirement

Employee enefrEToals
Departrn€nt 3520 - Coda & Safttt fnspection Totals

Deparfnent 5',lo-SteetmalnElatc
frrynalfu

51010 FullTime Waqes

5f040 PartTimewages
51060 TemporarylSeasonat

51100 ovenine
51120 Longevity

51130 Outofcrade
511@ Shift Ditrerential

51170 Additional & Other Compensation

51185 AllowarE€s

PersralfuflircTobls
Equipmen t and Ca pb I Ar tW

520$ Motorv€fricleEquipment

52035 tublicworksEquipment

641,399.41

44,636..8

.m
72,4%.47

11,750.00

5,tt420
6,315.45

1800.00

8,475.ffi

$791,983-81

582,098.91

.00

22,A6a.40

79 653.33

1e650.00

,r9,7ffi.49
5,094.98

45,600.00

28s0.00

555,475.29

.00

13,963.20

r47,74L.2I

&350.00
4s,917.45

4810.49
8,335.79

28s0.00

678,087.00

.00

20,000.m

90,000.00

29s0.00
5,otx).00

5,184.00

.00

9,165.00

$815.387.00

.00

72L,474.OO

.m
25.000.00

95,000.00

10,450.00

5,000.00

6,500.00

.00

8,750.00

$s72,r74.W

.m

744,488..M

.00

14,000.00

95,000.00

10,675.00

5,000.00

6,500.00

.00

8,750.00

$884,413.00

113,423.00

749,797.W

.00

14,000.00

91000.00

10,675.00

5,000.00

6,s00.00

.00

&750.00

$889,122.00

181,423.00.00.00

$n4,722.11 $192.543.43

.00

Run by f im Russo on IUO9PAZ3 14:05:5C PM

24,225.37 4Fs0.00 ?9,6,729.U s2000.00 40,500.00 24^500.00 24,s00.00

Page 51 of 100



8

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION
WITH A COMMLINITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

WHEREAS' the New York State Community Development Block Grant Program
provides funding to communities under the Economic Development Program to undertake
activities that focus on economic development needs such as creating or expanding job
opportunities, and

WHEREAS, Big Ditch Brewing Company LLC (hereinafter the "Company") is
proposing to construct leasehold improvements and acquire furnishings, fixtures and equipment
in connection with the establishment of a restaurant/taproom, event space, and small-batch
brewery in the former Post Office Building at 1 East Avenue in the City (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Project will have an estimated cost of $1,875,000 and will create an
estimated 52 new full-time equivalent employment opportunities within the City of Lockport;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Lockport (the "City") has submitted an application to the New
York State Offrce of Community Renewal ("OCR") for $750,000 in grant funding to assist the
Project; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to partner with The Greater Lockport Development
Corporation ("GLDC") which would act as a subgrantee for the grant funding, which would be
used by GLDC to make a term loan and deferred loan to the Company to fund a portion of the
Project costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby designated as the
Environmental Certifying Officer for the pu{poses of complying with the applicable federal
environmental review requirements for the OCR grant, and be it further

RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the OCR grant agreement
and all related documents associated with the OCR grant, including agreements with GLDC
relating to the use and administration of the grant funds, subject to review and approval by the
City Attorney.



It

By Alderman

Whereas the Locks Historic District Commission (LHDC) successfully applied for

a grant from the State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Recreation to fund the

design and construction of wayfinding signs throughout the city; and

Whereas the wayfinding signs have now been installed at numerous locations

along the city rights of way to assist visitors to locate various landmarks and attractions

and the LHDC wishes to convey by gift allthe signs so constructed and installed; now

be it

, Resolved, that the Common Council, on behalf of the City of Lockport, accepts

the wayfinding signs and assumes all future responsibility to maintain the signs in the

future.



Qtfrfree af,the

IL

LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUII.DING
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 140grt

Phone (716) 439-6665

'Fax 
(716) 439-6668

fuIichelle M. Roman
tuaYon

December ll,Z023

To: The Common Council

-May,out

under and by nhq oithe authority confered.on qre-by the charrer o{the ciry of Lockpor[ NewJ;h1!ffi:ijt$;Hf* fi"'&#ruia citv, ;;hJ*by make the fouowing appoinrnonts to the

l.Annie Coburn-Kane, 99 Lake Steet, Wilson, Ny 14172 l

?{*o n. Maj$ 1?f ryrrhi;r,"; Sfieet, Niagara Fa's, Ny 1430s
1{pur sacco, 69M creekvir*-Diiur, Lockporr, Nv r+rig; 

L La"v')

4.Nicole Cafarella, 926 James eurn-rre, Niagara Falls, Ny 14305S'Christopher R"l*til4 college Avenue, Niagara Falrs, Ny 14305S.Jason J. Cafarella g26 James.[uunu., Niagara Falls, Ny 14305 
:

T.Michael E. Benedic! 3g Woodb,rry Oriur, Lockport, Ny 14094S.Andrew G. Rosenberg,242 G;;;!e Sneot, Lockpor! Ny 14094
?.^Sy:* Dunford, 6 rcz-6"*rUJg; Ro"d, Lockport, l.iy I 4094I O.Lisa Swanson.Gellerson, C6f"d Snirt, l,oitport, Ny t+og+1l.Michelle M. Roman,-30"bd*r,-S*et, Lockport, Ny l4'g4
J?.Jh.* Lupo,- 17 Bobotink i*u, f,orf.porr, Ny t4(Jg4
JlJjrcr Dean, 4ss 7gh Su.rr, n*; Fdts, Ny 14304
l1.P-rly Allporr, t6l Lincoln A#-rockporr, \ry 140e4l5,Molly A. Lawson, 24 Grosvenor incet, Lockport, Ny 14094l6.Victoria Pearson-Breu,t +gO D*i*n Road, Lockport, Ny 14094lTStasia Lynn h"olT: gilgSilri'g, Road, Lockporr, Ny 14094lS.Alix Hutchison, 6M0 BartznoJlmrkport, Ny 14094l9'Doreen M. cafareila, laat-F;Jivenue, NiagaraFans, Ny 1430320.Amber Hill,Z247 piir., a"."*, Ni aganFalls, Ny 14301

Said torm oxpircs on December 31, 2025.

,o#.t*u* 
my hand and the sear of the city of Lockporr, New york this l lth day of December



Sincerely,

M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

Saratr K. Lanzo
City Clerk

Cc:A.Kane
J. Majka
J. Sacco
N.Cafarella
C. Robins
J. Cafarella
M. Benediot
A. Rosenbug
S, Dunford
L. Swanson Gellerson
M. Rornan
T. Lupo
J. Dean
D. Allport
M. Lawson
V. Pearson-Breau
S. Donohue
A. Hutchison
D. Cafarella
A. HilI


